
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

JANUARY 12,2015,7:00 P.M. 

1. Consideration: Resolution expressing gratitude to Patrick Davis for his service on the Planning Commission. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the December 8, 2014 regular meeting of the City Council. 

3. Approval of the minutes of the December 16,2014 special meeting of the City Council. 

4. Consideration: Resolution setting a public hearing for February 9,2014 to consider an ordinance adopting the 
20 15 International Building Code, 20 15 International Residential Code, 20 15 International Fuel Gas Code, 
201 5 International Mechanical Code, 201 5 International Plumbing Code, the 201 5 International Fire Code (all 
to become effective April 1,2015). 

5. Consideration: Resolution amending and restating the City of Mountain Brook Section 1 15 Trust Agreement 
with respect to "GASB 45 Other Post-Employment Benefits" (retiree medical insurance). 

6. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a Notice of Assignment between Ajlouny Investments, 
LLC, and the City of Mountain Brook with respect to the assignment by Ajlouny Investments, LLC of the 
Development Agreement (2014-170) and Parking Agreement (2014-172) as collateral for its Iberia Bank loan. 

7. Consideration: Resolution awarding the [Fire Department] uniform bid (pricing guaranteed for one year with 
up to two annual renewals). 

8. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a service agreement between the City and All In 
Mountain Brook to promote educational programs, speakers, communications, and related activities intended 
to raise community awareness regarding substance uselabuse, high risk behavior, preventable accidents, and 
mental health issues in consideration of $1 0,000. 

9. Consideration: Resolution approving the [service] conditional use application for the operation of a fitness 
center in a Local Business District at 2703 Culver Road (formerly Little Hardware). 

10. Consideration: Ordinance amending Chapter 14 of the City Code with respect to Storm Water plans review 
fees and Storm Water permit fees. 

11. Announcement: The next meeting of the City Council is January 26,2015, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

12. Comments from residents. 

13. Adjourn. 



 R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 

WHEREAS, Patrick B. Davis, Jr., has served with distinction on the Mountain 
Brook Planning Commission from July 23, 2001, through December 31, 2014, having 
served as Vice-Chairman from 2003-2009 and Chairman from 2010-2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, Patrick B. Davis, Jr., proved to be invaluable as Vice-Chairman of 

the Zoning Ordinance Review Committee, Vice-Chairman of the Land Use Plan Project 
Steering Committee and the committee to revise the City’s Master Plan; his expert 
architectural insight and strategic leadership capabilities being invaluable in establishing 
a legacy of sound city planning for years to come; and 
 

WHEREAS, Patrick B. Davis, Jr.’s, sense of humor was an added benefit to the 
Planning Commission’s regular meetings; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the residents of Mountain Brook to express their 

gratitude to Patrick B. Davis, Jr., for his unselfish service and tireless efforts while 
serving on numerous ad-hoc committees. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council and Mayor, on 

behalf of the residents of Mountain Brook, do publicly thank Patrick B. Davis, Jr., for 
his exemplary service and wish him well in future endeavors. 

 
 
ADOPTED:  This 12th day of January 2015. 
 

______________________________ 
Virginia C. Smith 
Council President 

 
 
APPROVED: This 12th day of January 2015. 
 

______________________________ 
Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

boone
Text Box
Resolution No. 2015-001



Minute Book 86 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

DECEMBER 8,2014 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, the 8th day of December. The Council President called 
the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

- -. - - . . . . . . - - - - - - - - . - - - - 
-Present: Virginia C. Smifhinci IPres ident  

William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Alice B. Womack 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Beech StreeKircle drainage study presentation - Walter Schoel of Schoel Engineering (Appendix 1). 

The suggested improvements can be performed by the City's Public Works crews in spring 2015. 

2. All-In Mountain Brook Committee to make a presentation on their mission and request funds from the 
city - Leigh Ann Sisson. (Contract to be presented for consideration at the January 12,201 5 
meeting.) 

3. Variance request from the 2012 International Building Code - Perry Given at 3819 Forest Glen Drive. 
(Resolution No. 2014-1 68 was added to the formal agenda.) 

4. Proposed modifications to the City's IRC Section 1 15 Retiree Medical Trust document - Steven 
Boone. (Amended Trust document to be presented for adoption at the January 12,20 15 meeting.) 

5. Review and discussion of the 7 p.m. City Council formal meeting agenda topics. 

Upon conclusion of the City Council's review of the other formal [7 p.m.] agenda issues, Council 
President Smith adjourned the meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

December 8,20 14 



Minute Book 86 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

DECEMBER 8,2014 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 8th day of December, 2014. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

. . .. 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Alice B. Womack 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the November 24,2014 regular meeting of the City Council 

2014-163 Reappoint Ken Key to serve on the Tree Commission, to serve Exhibit 1 
without compensation, with the term of office to end December 
12, 2017. 

2014-164 Appoint Stacey Turner to serve on The MROD 3 10 Authority, Exhibit 2 
to serve without compensation, with the term of office to end Appendix 1 
December 8,2020. 

2014-165 Rename "Cahaba Park" to "Cahaba River Walk". Exhibit 3 
Appendix 2 

2014-166 Recommend to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Exhibit 4 
Control Board, the issuance of an 050 - Retail Beer (Off Appendix 3 
Premises Only) and 070 - Retail Table Wine (Off Premises 
Only) licenses to Alabama CVS Pharmacy, LLC (dba\CVS 
Pharmacy 2505) located at 93 Euclid Avenue, Mountain Brook 
AL. 

2014-167 Authorize the conditional (service) use by Mountain Brook Exhibit 5 
Trading to establish a drop-offlpick-up and show room for Appendix 4 
Mountain Brook Trading at 2 Dexter Avenue. 

2014-168 Authorize the execution of an Acknowledgment, Release, and Exhibit 6 
Indemnification instrument with respect to the City's approval Appendix 5 
of an exemption to specified building code regulations for the 
residence located at 3819 Forest Glen Drive. 

December 8,20 14 



950 Minute Book 86 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Smith and 
their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Shelton. The minutes and resolutions were then 
considered by the City Council. Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard seconded the motion to adopt the 
foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was 
recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 

- - -  - -  . 
Jack D. Carl 

. -. ... 

Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes and Resolution Nos. 2014-163 through 
20 14-1 68 are adopted by a vote of 4--0. 

2. CONSIDERATION: RESOLUTION (NO. 2014-169) DE-ANNEXING A PARTIAL PARCEL 
ON OLD TRACE (APPENDIX 6) 

Council President Smith introduced the resolution writing and invited comments and questions from 
the audience. 

Whit Colvin: 
The subject property was owned by the Bruno family (now the Bruno family trust) 
The subject property represents a portion of a much larger (43-acre) parcel partially located in the 
City of Vestavia Hills 
The petitioner has secured a buyer for the Mountain Brook/Vestavia properties ("property") 
There have been many development plans considered for the property. The current proposal is 
very good for the surrounding neighbors in that it restricts the development of the 43-acre parcel 
to seven single-family homes. 
The development plan has taken two years to work out and represents a "win-win-win" for all 
parties and the surrounding neighbors. 
An easement that runs along the creek will ultimately be extinguished (to the benefit of Mr. 
Montgomery). 
Covenants will be executed to protect the surrounding neighbors. 

Trip Galloway, representative of adjacent property owners: 
The proposal also prevents a cut-through from Rocky Ridge Road through an existing Vestavia 
neighborhood which would have been disastrous to the Abington area. 

Steve Brickrnan , representative of the Bruno family: 
There are some minor modifications to the exhibits to the protective covenants. 
The access to be constructed into the development will be the only means of ingressfegress, 
however, Mr. Montgomery will allow the developer to use the existing easement (described 
above) for a period of 90-days during the construction of the new access bridgefroad after which 
the easement will be terminated. 
There will also be some modifications to the [enlarged] buffer area. 

There being no fkrther comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for motion regarding 
the proposal. Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said resolution subject 
to the incorporation of the changes described by Mr. Brickman to be reviewed by the City's attorney, Whit 
Colvin. The motion was seconded by Council member Shelton. Thereupon, Council President Smith called 
for vote with the following results: 

December 8,2014 



Minute Book 86 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Resolution Nos. 2014-1 69 is adopted by a vote 
- -. -- -- - 

of+o-- 

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Tuesday, December 16, 2014 at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church 
Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) for more 
information. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, President Smith adjourned the 
meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-163 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Ken Key is 
hereby reappointed to serve on the Tree Commission, to serve without compensation, with the tenn of office to 
end December 12,201 7. 

EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-164 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Stacey Turner 
is hereby appointed to The MRIDD 3 10 Authority, to will serve without compensation through December 8, 
2020. 

APPENDIX 1 

EXHIBIT 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-165 

DECLARATION OF NON-COMMERCIAL PUBLIC RECREATIONAL USE OF LAND 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook (the "City") previously has purchased approximately 4.7 
acres of real property in Jefferson County, Alabama abutting the Cahaba River, River Run Drive, and Overton 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014V0141208 Minutes.doc December 8,2014 



Minute Book 86 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

DECEMBER 16,2014 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 5:30 p.m. on Tuesday, the 16th day of December, 2014. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. PUBLIC HEARING: CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (1925) REZONING 
CERTAIN PARCELS ON VINE STREET FROM PROFESSIONAL AND RESIDENCE D 
DISTRICTS TO LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPOSED 
PIGGLY WIGGLY DEVELOPMENT (EXHIBIT 1, APPENDICES 1-3) 

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. She then invited Jeffrey Brewer forward 
to describe the project. 

Jeffrey Brewer with Goodwyn, Mills & Cawood of 94 Crestview Drive: 
Representing Naseem Ajlouny and Andy Vercigio ("developer(s)") 
The task of relocating the Piggly Wiggly grocery store has been ongoing for over one year 
After studying multiple sites, the location along Vine Street has been selected 
The development team has met with the City's Planning Department, police and fire officials, 
Mountain Brook Board of Education and Villages Design Review Committee. There was also a prior 
formal presentation to the City Council on November 24,2014. 
The site was reviewed using a Powerpoint presentation (Appendix 4) 
Regarding traffic, there will be a "School Only Traffic" sign posted at the entrance to West Jackson 
leading into the school, West Jackson will be one way only from its entrance to the grocery store 
parking lot at all times, and Vine Street from the grocery store entrance to Dexter Avenue will be one 
way only between the hours of 7:20 a.m. - 4 p.m. during the school year. 
The service access, originally on Vine Street, has been relocated to the other side of the building along 
the alley between the building and Church Street. This change eliminates [grocery store] delivery 
trucks traveling along West JacksonIVine Street and exiting Vine Street. 
A number of safety measures will be implemented (see Power Point presentation) 
Recently, it was decided to restrict [grocery store] delivery times to after 10:30 a.m. and there will be 
no deliveries scheduled between 7:30 a.m. to £215 a.m. 
The parking lot has full circular access facilitating ingress and egress from the main entrance from 
Church Street 

December 16,2014 



Minute Book 86 

A crosswalk will be installed allowing pedestrian access to and from the grocery store to the playing 
field across Vine Street 
There will be 93 parking spaces on the site 
There will be a corner plaza near the crosswalk (as suggested by the Village Design Review 
Committee or "VDRC") 
Developer is offering to install a new fence and hedge between the Vine Street sidewalk and the 
playing field to provide a buffer to the people on the field as well as the residents along Elm Street 
(should the Board of Education want it) 
The old store had a public area of 11,400 square feet and backroom storage of 3,600 square feet with 
45 parking spaces. The proposed new store will have 18,000 square feet of retail floor area, 10,250 
square feet of backroom storage area (which will reduce the number of truck deliveries to the store), 
and 93 parking spaces. 
A typical suburban grocery store is 40,000--50,000 square feet in area 
The site plan will provide 27 surplus parking spaces over the 66 required parking spaces (as illustrated 
in the PowerPoint presentation) 
A new sidewalk will be constructed along Vine Street in fiont of the store which will complement the 
existing sidewalk than runs from Dexter Avenue to West Jackson 
The plan complies with the Village Overlay Standards 
Turned the presentation over to Richard Caudle 

Richard Caudle with Skipper Consulting, Inc. located at 3644 Vann Road, Suite 100: 
The study area is illustrated in the PowerPoint presentation 
Recommendations include: 
1) Initially, Skipper Consulting recommended the installation a traffic signal at the intersection of 

Dexter Avenue and Church Street to alleviate congestion that currently exists. However upon 
further review, Skipper Consulting no longer recommends this signal due to concerns about safety 
for motorists attempting to back-out of Church Street parking spaces into traffic turning onto 
Church Street from Dexter Avenue with a green light signal. 

2) Reverse the stop sign at the Dexter Avenue and Vine Street intersection (stop traffic on Dexter 
Avenue instead of Vine Street)-this plan could later be changed by installing a traffic signal if 
the desired outcome is not achieved by reversing the stop signs, 

3) Leave the Vine Street access open to relieve pressure on the main Church Street entrancetexit to 
the store, 

4) Make West Jackson and the first block of Vine Street (up to the grocery store access) one way all 
the time and leave the remainder of Vine Street one way between the hours of 7:20 a.m. - 4 p.m. 
during the school year, and 

5) Install "Do Not Enter" signs at West Jackson (as this section will be one way) 
The Vine Street access is needed: 
1) as there will be certain times of the day where there are not sufficient gaps in traffic to allow 

motorists to exit onto Church Street thereby causing congestion back to the alley which will lead 
motorists to pursue other means of leaving the site (e.g., using the alley), 

2) as motorists will need a way to exit Vine when driving toward the school and encounter the "Do 
Not Enter" signs at West Jackson during two-way traffic flow times of the day, 

3) to facilitate emergency access to the site, and 
4) to prevent residents that live north of the development from having to travel along Church Street 

to access the grocery store. 
In order to relocate the loading dock to the alley-side of the store, modifications to the site plan were 
required. The radii at the street comers will have to be cut back or made as mountable concrete to 
allow delivery trucks to make the turns and backing maneuvers into the loading area. 
An independent analysis of truck traffic was conducted by Mr. Caudle and he sees no negative 
implications with respect to truck access or Church Street traffic as a result of moving the loading area 
to the alley-side of the store 

December 16,20 14 



Minute Book 86 799 

The development team considers the Vine Street access an important part of this development. If, 
however, the City Council elects to close this access, such closure will not "kill" this development but 
there will be some negative implications or trade-offs as a result 

Jeffrey Brewer: 
The developers met with school officials early on in the planning phase of this development 
Out of this meeting, the School Board outlined about ten (1 0) safety and other concerns 
The developer studied these concerns and has addressed each one to the School Board's satisfaction 
with the exception of opening the CVS parking lot access. This matter is still in negotiation with the 
property owner and the developer is optimistic that this last issue may still be resolved (see also slide). 
Formal presentation was concluded 

Council member Shelton asked Mr. Brewer which type of delivery trucks the time restrictions will 
apply. Mr. Brewer stated that the delivery time restrictions will only apply to tractor trailer trucks. 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard asked Mr. Brewer about the possibility of adding a speed 
bump near the proposed crosswalk on Vine Street. Mr. Brewer replied that this suggestion is a viable option 
and will be considered. 

City Manager, Sam Gaston, asked Mr. Brewer when construction would begin if the Ordinance is 
adopted. Mr. Brewer replied that construction could begin as early as February 2015 and would take 
approximately 8 months to complete. 

In response to a question by Council President Smith concerning construction buffers, Mr. Brewer 
responded: 

First the Girl Scout house will be moved and the lots cleared. Then a construction fence will be 
erected along Vine Street to prevent access from that side 
Improvements to Vine Street will hopefully be made during the summer while school is in recess 

Michael Krump of 3904 Memory Brook Circle: 
Would like to see more green space and trees associated with the new parking lot and suggested that 
perhaps some of the parking could be located under the new Piggly Wiggly and that either an 
underground tunnel or an above-ground, enclosed walkway be constructed from the elementary school 
to the store 

Kim Fasking of 3701 Forest Run Road: 
Voiced concern about pedestrian safety in the proposed crosswalk in the alley where delivery trucks 
will be backing up 
Asked about the procedure for background checks for construction workers due to the proximity to 
Crestline Elementary School. Mr. Brewer stated he did not know but had great confidence in 
Brasfield and Gorrie (general contractor who will be constructing the store) 

Susan Pitts of 8 Montcrest Drive: 
Asked whether access through the Regions Parking Lot be through a lease agreement? If so, what is 
the duration of the lease? 
Noted that the crosswalk through the alley diverts foot traffic onto private (CVS) property 
What variances will be needed for this project? 
Will there be a tax abatement agreement? 

Council member Pritchard: 
No lease will be needed, the City will be acquiring the parking lot from Regions Bank 
The only variance needed is in relation to (window) transparency requirement along Vine Street 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\CounciI\2014\20141216 Minutes.doc December 16,20 14 



800 Minute Book 86 

The development incentives will be discussed in the next public hearing should this rezoning be 
approved 

There being no further comments or discussion, Council President Smith closed the public hearing. 
She then introduced the ordinance in writing. Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that 
all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of 
said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is 
given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by Council member 
Carl and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl. 
Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared that the ordinance (No. 1925) is hereby adopted by a vote of 
5-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

2. PUBLIC HEARING: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (2014-170) AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT PURSUANT 
TO AMENDMENT NO. 772 TO THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
(1901) (SECTION 94.01(a)(3) OF THE RECOMPILED CONSTITUTION OF ALABAMA) 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPOSED PIGGLY WIGGLY DEVELOPMENT (APPENDIX 
5) 

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. She then invited Council President Pro 
Tempore Pritchard to summarize the proposed resolution. 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard: 
This development agreement is similar to those adopted for the Publix and Piggly Wiggly at River 
Run projects 
Depending on the performance of the facility, the owner(s) are entitled to earn certain tax abatements 
on sales taxes collected, up to $4 million over a 20 year period, whichever comes first. 75% of sales 
taxes will be paid to the developer during the first 5 years and 50% thereafter 
They can also earn an abatement of a portion of ad valorem taxes for 15 years (on taxes over and 
above $1 5,000 baseline) if they exceed [specified] sales projections. 
Once all improvements are complete and the store is open for business, the owners of Piggly Wiggly 
will convey to the City of Mountain Brook, property acquired from Regions Bank and a vacant lot on 
Vine Street adjacent to a lot currently owned by the City. Ownership will be fee simple and includes 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\2014 I21 6 Minutes.doc December 16,2014 



Minute Book 86 80 1 

all parking and access to parking. In exchange, the City will pay the developer $1.2 million - much 
less than its value. 
These incentives are only available if this becomes a neighborhood grocery store. If anything 
changes, these incentives are null and void 
The Mountain Brook Board of Education will get its full portion of the property taxes collected for 
this site. Only the City's portion will be subject to the abatement. 

Leigh Ann Putnam of 35 18 South Brookwood Road 
Stated she was at the December 5,2014 morning work session 
Asked how ad valorem taxes are projected 
Complemented Judge Carl for voicing concern about certain language pertaining to the tax abatement 
should this project fail 
What is the budget for this project? 
Can this transaction go forward without the tax abatement component? 
Where can the publci see the signed agreement? 

Steven Boone, Finance Director: 
The value of the building will be determined by the Jefferson County Board of Equalization. 
Assuming a $10 million valuation, the Board of Education's portion at 44 mils would be 
approximately $89,000 and the City's portion at 26.1 mils would be $52,000. Only the City's portion 
will be abated 
All prior sales tax abatement agreements have been satisfied. There are two years remaining on two 
ad valorem abatement agreements with Publix and Piggly Wiggly at River Run 

Council member Shelton: 
The City's General Fund budget is $34 million 
The incentives provided for in this agreement will not hurt the City's operations but rather be of 
benefit as the City will be increasing its General Fund budget from the operation of this new grocery 
store 

Council member Pritchard: 
This project would not be possible without the tax incentives 

Council member Carl: 
This is how we attract new development 
None of the abatements are coming out of the budget 

Adria Graham of 19 Crestview Circle: 
When will a proposed floor plan be available? 
Will the store have a restaurant? 

Jeffrey Brewer: 
The inside floor plans are not complete at this time 
There will not be a restaurant 

Susan Pitts of 8 Montcrest Dr.: 
Asked for a definition of a Community Grocery Store 
Will this store always be a "Piggly Wiggly" 

Council President Smith: 
Community Grocery Store is not officially defined but meets certain criteria related to design, size and 
content 
Store owners are not locked in to the "Piggly Wiggly" name but at least one of the principals are to 
retain a majority interest in the business 

Abe Schuster of 205 Euclid Ave.: 

December 16,2014 



802 Minute Book 86 

Is 56 years old 
When he grew up here, most merchants in the area had a stake in this community 
Appreciates that he will once again have a local place to [grocery] shop and that the owners seem to 
care about this community and can be reached for questions and comments 
He wishes them much success 

Randall Pitts of 225 Beech Circle: 
Asked if there is a conveyance provision in the contract whereby the City would retain an absolute 
right, but not an obligation, to exercise an option to acquire the property should majority ownership 
change in the next 20 years 
Could this be made an obligation rather than an option? 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard: 
Yes, this [option to acquire] provision is in the contract 

Council President Smith: 
The Council did consider whether the option to acquire should be elective or an obligation and the 
City does not want to make this an obligation 

Council member Carl stated that one of the things he views about the [former] Piggly Wiggly that 
made it a community grocery store is that the ownerloperator employed young people and others who may 
have found it difficult to find employment elsewhere. Considering, this store will be owned and operated by 
the same people as the old Piggly Wiggly, he views this store as being good for the community. 

Council President Smith closed the public hearing 

There being no more questions or comments, Council President Smith introduced the resolution in 
writing. Council member Shelton made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, 
would prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said resolution be suspended, and that unanimous 
consent to the immediate consideration of said resolution is given and that the reading of the resolution at 
length be waived. The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchardl and was carried, as 
follows: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5--0. 

After said resolution had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said resolution. The motion was seconded by Council member 
Womack. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared that the resolution (No. 2014-170) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 5-4 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

J:\lvlinutes & Agendas\Council\2014\2014 121 6 Minutes.doc December 16,20 14 



Minute Book 86 

3. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (2014-171) AUTHORIZING A MUNICIPAL 
PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE PIGGLY WIGGLY 
DEVELOPMENT (APPENDIX 6) 

Council President Smith introduced the resolution in writing. [City Attorney Whit Colvin explained 
the terms of the agreement to the audience.] Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that all 
rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of 
said resolution be suspended, and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of said resolution is 
given and that the reading of the resolution at length be waived. The motion was seconded by Council 
member Carl and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5--0. 

After said resolution had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said resolution. The motion was seconded by Council member 
Womack. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared that the resolution (No. 2014-171) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 5 - 4  and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (2014-172) AUTHORIZING A PARKING 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND AJLOUNY 
INVESTMENTS, LLC (EXHIBIT 2, APPENDIX 7) 

Council President Smith introduced the resolution in writing. 

City Attorney Whit Colvin explained the major terms of the agreement: 
The agreement provides the Piggly Wiggly with certain rights and obligations including: 
o Easements for patron parking in the City-owned public parking lot 
o The grocery store must improve and maintain the parking lots 
o The previously described restrictions on product deliveries 
o Use restrictions-this agreement will become void should the store cease to be a Community . 

Grocery Store unless the City agrees to the successor use 
o Indemnification provisions to the benefit of the City 

Council member Shelton made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said resolution be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said resolution is given and that the reading of the resolution at length be 
waived. The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard and was carried, as follows: 

December 16,2014 



Minute Book 86 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

After said resolution had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard then moved for the adoption of said resolution. The motion was seconded by Council President 
Smith. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared that the resolution (No. 2014-172) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 5-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, January 12,2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church 
Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) for more 
information. 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, President Smith adjourned the 
meeting at approximately 6:45 p.m.. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1925 

AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE CERTAIN PARCELS OF LAND IN THE 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA FROM PROFESSIONAL DISTRICT 

AND RESIDENCE D DISTRICT TO LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, certain real property located at 48 Vine Street, more particularly described as Lot 
28A, according to a resurvey of Lots 28 and 29, Block 25, Crestline Heights, as recorded in Map Book 
174, Page 38 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama is presently zoned 
Professional District under the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Mountain Brook; and 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141216 Minutes.doc December 16,2014 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-002 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that, at the meeting of the City 
Council to be held on Monday, February 9,2015 at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chamber of the Mountain 
Brook City Hall, the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the adoption of an ordinance 
repealing Sections 109-3 1, 109-32, 109-1 95, 109-227, and 18-20 of the City Code and adopting 201 5 
versions of specified technical codes relating to inspection activities, enforcement of building provisions as 
provided in said codes and fire prevention. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the City 
Clerk be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to publish in accordance with applicable state law, by 
posting in four (4) conspicuous places within the City of Mountain Brook, as follows: City Hall, 56 Church 
Street, Gilchrist Drug Company, 2805 Cahaba Road, Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road, and The 
Invitation Place, 31 50 Overton Road, a notice in words and figures substantially as follows: 

"ZONING NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook 
to be held on Monday, February 9,2015, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chamber of the Mountain Brook 
City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213, the City Council will hold a 
public hearing regarding a proposal that the City Council adopt an ordinance in words and figures 
substantially as follows: 

'ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTIONS 109-31,109-32,109-195,109-227, AND 18-20 
O F  THE CITY CODE AND ADOPTING 2015 VERSIONS O F  SPECIFIED TECHNICAL CODES 

RELATING T O  INSPECTION ACTIVITIES, ENFORCEMENT O F  BUILDING PROVISIONS 
AS PROVIDED IN SAID CODES AND FIRE PREVENTION 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama (the "City Council") 
heretofore has adopted various technical codes promulgated by the International Code Council (the "ICC") and 
the National Fire Protection Association relating to buildings, residences and other structures in the City of 
Mountain Brook (the "City"), and operations in the City concerning fuel gas, mechanical, plumbing, and fire 
protection and life safety (collectively, the "Technical Codes"); 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires that, except to the extent specified herein, the City adopt, the 
2015 versions of the Technical Codes (the "2015 Technical Codes") that are specified herein for use and 
application for buildings and structures within its corporate limits; 

WHEREAS, the adoption of the 201 5 Technical Codes by reference is authorized by 5 1 1-45-8 Code 
of Alabama (1975); and 

WHEREAS, the adoption of the 201 5 Technical Codes will facilitate the performance of inspection 
activities by the City, and promote the public safety, health and general welfare of its citizens and owners, 
occupants and users of buildings and structures in the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  ORDAINED by the City Council of the City as follows: 

Section 1. Section 109-3 1 of the City Code is hereby repealed and replaced with the following: 



"Sec. 109-31. Building Codes-Adoption by reference. 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Building Code - 201 5 Edition 
("ICC Building Code") and International Residential Code - 2015 Edition (the 
"IRC"), both published by the ICC and available for purchase at 900 Montclair Road, 
Birmingham, Alabama, are hereby adopted as the Building Code of the City by 
reference as though they were copied herein. 

(b) With respect to the ICC Building Code and the IRC, the City modifies the forms 
proposed by the ICC as follows: 

(i) Section rA1101.4. of ICC Building Code - Referenced codes: The 
following codes that are referenced in this Section of the ICC Building 
Code are not adopted: (a) the International Property Maintenance Code 
referenced in Section 10 1.4.4; and (b) the International Existing Building 
Code referenced in Section 10 1.4.7. 

(ii) Section [A1 109.2 of ICC Buildinp Code & Section R108.2 of IRC - 
Schedule of Permit Fees: These Sections are not adopted in the form 
proposed by the ICC, and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, 
gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee or fees as set forth in City Code Section 14-1 shall 
be paid at the time of filing application, in accordance with such 
fee schedule as shall be set from time to time by the city council. 
A list of such fees shall be kept on file in the city clerk's office. 

(iii) Sections [A1 1 1 1.1 of ICC Building Code & R1lO.l of IRC - Use and 
Occuvanc~. These Sections are not adopted in the form proposed by the 
ICC, and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

"Use and occupancy. No residential building or structure shall 
be used or occupied, and no change in the existing occupancy 
classification of a residential building or structure or portion 
thereof shall be made until the building official has issued a 
certificate of occupancy which has been signed by the building 
official and the City Manager. No commercial building or 
structure shall be used or occupied, and no change in the existing 
occupancy classification of a commercial building or structure or 
portion thereof shall be made until the building official has 
issued a certificate of occupancy which has been signed by the 
building official, the fire official, and the City Manager. A 
certificate of occupancy shall not be issued until after the City 
Manager shall have determined that the building conforms to all 
provisions and regulations of the city with respect thereto, 
including its use under the zoning ordinances of the city. A 
certificate of occupancy (whether a temporary certificate of the 
regular certificate) issued without the signature or the building 



official, fire official (in the case of commercial buildings), and 
the City Manager shall not be deemed to be a certificate of 
occupancy issued under this code or under the city's zoning 
ordinance. 

(iv) Sections TAl 1 13 of ICC Building. Code & R112 of the IRC -Board of 
Appeals. These Sections are not adopted in the form proposed by the ICC, 
and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

"Appeals regarding the application ofthe adopted building codes 
may be presented to the City Manager for consideration. The 
City Manager may elect to render a decision on such appeal or 
remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In cases 
where the appeal is heard by the City Manager and a decision is 
rendered, the appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may 
then appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. 

The board of zoning adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as said board is prescribed by Section 11-52-80 Code 
of Alabama (1975), as amended, shall constitute a board of 
adjustments and appeals under these codes." 

(v) Sections [A1 1 14.4 of ICC Building. Code & R113.4 of IRC- Violation 
Penalties. These Sections are not adopted in the form proposed by the 
ICC, and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

R113.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a 
provision of these codes or fails to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters or repairs a 
building or structure in violation of the approved construction 
documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of these codes, shall be 
subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making 
application for a required permit, all applicable permit fees shall 
be doubled. Once notified in writing by the building official of 
the City that a report or building permit application must be 
submitted, such person must submit such report within ten (1 0) 
days. Persons who fail to make such report within the time 
period required shall be subject to additional penalties as 
provided under Sec. 1-6.1 of the City Code and by 5 13A-10-4 of 
the Code of Alabama. 

(vi) Chapter 11 of IRC- en erg.^ Efficiencv. This Chapter is adopted 
except as follows: (a) notwithstanding any provisions contained in Chapter 
1 1 or elsewhere in the IRC, the Energy Efficiency requirements in the IRC 
shall not be applicable to the repair, renovation, alteration or reconstruction 
of existing buildings and structures; and (b) the minimum standards for 
insulation to be used in connection with the repair, renovation, alteration or 



reconstruction of existing buildings and structures shall not be less than R- 
30 for ceiling spaces, R-13 for walls and R-19 for floors. 

(vii) Section P2904 of the IRC- Dwelling Unit Fire Sprinkler Systems. 
This Section is adopted, but the following provision is added as P2904.8.9: 

P2904.8.9 Residential Sprinkler Exemption. Notwithstanding 
any provision in this Section P2904 or elsewhere in the IRC, any 
homeowner, upon application to the City's building official, may 
request an exemption to the sprinkler system requirements of 
P2904.1 for a dwelling and such exemption shall be granted 
upon satisfaction of each of the following: 

a. The applicant must either confer with the City Fire Marshal 
or his or her designee about the benefits of installing a 
residential fire sprinkler system or review presentation materials 
developed by the Fire Marshal concerning sprinkler systems; 

b. The applicant must certify that he or she has met the 
requirements in subsection (a) above, and fully understands and 
acknowledges the risks of opting not to install a residential fire 
sprinkler system; 

Exceptions: 

i. No exemption shall be granted for any dwelling 
constructed less than 5 feet from the property line; and 

ii. No exemption shall be granted for 2-family dwelling 
units." 

Section 2. Section 109-32 of the City Code, which reflected amendments to the previously enacted 
Section 109-3 1, is hereby repealed and replaced by the following: 

"Sec. 109-32. Same - Amendments - Reserved." 

Section 3. Section 109-195 of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 109-195. Gas and Mechanical Codes-Adoption by reference. 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Fuel Gas Code - 201 5 Edition (the 
"Gas Code") and International Mechanical Code - 2015 Edition (the "Mechanical 
Code"), both published by International Code Council ("ICC") and available for 
purchase at 900 Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama, are hereby adopted as the 
Gas and Mechanical Code of the City by reference as though they were copied 
herein." 

(b) With respect to the Gas Code and the Mechanical Code, the City amends the form 
proposed by the ICC as follows: 



(i) Sections [All 06.6.2 of Gas Code & TAl106.5.2 of Mechanical Code - 
Fee Schedule. These Sections are not adopted in the form proposed by the 
ICC, and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

"Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, 
gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee or fees as set forth in City Code Section 14-1 shall 
be paid at the time of filing application, in accordance with such 
fee schedule as shall be set from time to time by the city council. 
A list of such fees shall be kept on file in the city clerk's office." 

(ii) Sections TAl 108.4 of Gas Code & Mechanical Codes- Violation 
Penalties. These Sections are not adopted in the form proposed by the 
ICC, and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

"[A] 108.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a 
provision of these codes or fails to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters or repairs a 
building or structure in violation of the approved construction 
documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be 
subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making 
application for a required permit, all applicable permit fees shall 
be doubled. Once notified in writing by the building official of 
the City that a report or building permit application must be 
submitted, such person must submit such report within ten (1 0) 
days. Persons who fail to make such report within the time 
period required shall be subject to additional penalties as 
provided under Sec. 1-6.1 of the city code and by 5 13A- 10-4 of 
the Code of Alabama." 

(iii) Sections 109 of Gas Code & Mechanical Code - Means of Appeals. 
These Sections in these codes are not adopted in the form proposed by the 
ICC, and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

"Appeals regarding the application of the adopted building codes 
may be presented to the City Manager for consideration. The 
City Manager may elect to render a decision on such appeal or 
remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In cases 
where the appeal is heard by the City Manager and a decision is 
rendered, the appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may 
then appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. 

The board of zoning adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as said board is prescribed by Section 1 1-52-80 Code 
of Alabama (1975), as amended, shall constitute a board of 
adjustments and appeals under these codes." 



Section 4. Section 109-227 of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 109-227. Plumbing Code--Adoption by reference. 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Plumbing Code - 2015 Edition 
published by International Code Council ("ICC") (the "Plumbing Code) and 
available for purchase at 900 Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama, is hereby 
adopted as the Plumbing Code of the City by reference as though it were copied 
herein. 

(b) With respect to the Plumbing Code, the City amends the form proposed by the 
ICC as follows: 

(i) Section [A] 106.6.2 of Plumbing Code - Fee Schedule. This Section is 
not adopted in the form proposed by the ICC, and is replaced in its entirety 
with the following: 

Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, 
gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee or fees as set forth in City Code Section 14-1 shall 
be paid at the time of filing application, in accordance with such 
fee schedule as shall be set from time to time by the city council. 
A list of such fees shall be kept on file in the city clerk's office. 

(ii) Section TAl 108.4 of Plumbing Code - Violation Penalties. This 
Section is not adopted, and is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

[A] 108.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a 
provision of this code or fails to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters or repairs a 
building or structure in violation of the approved construction 
documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be 
subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making 
application for a required permit, all applicable permit fees shall 
be doubled. Once notified in writing by the building official of 
the City that a report or building permit application must be 
submitted, such person must submit such report within ten (1 0) 
days. Persons who fail to make such report within the time 
period required shall be subject to additional penalties as 
provided under Sec. 1-6.1 of the City Code and by $13A-10-4 of 
the Code of Alabama." 

(iii) Section 109 of Plumbing Code - Means ofAppeals. This Section is not 
adopted and is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

Appeals regarding the application of the adopted building code 



may be presented to the city manager for consideration. The 
City Manager may elect to render a decision on such appeal or 
remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In cases 
where the appeal is heard by the City Manager and a decision is 
rendered, the appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may 
then appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. 

The board of zoning adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as said board is prescribed by Section 11-52-80 Code 
of Alabama (1975), as amended, shall constitute a board of 
adjustments and appeals under this code." 

Section 5. Section 18-20 of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 18-20. Fire Prevention Code - Adoption by reference 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Fire Code - 201 5 Edition published 
by the International Code Council ("ICC") and available for purchase at 900 
Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama (the "Fire Code"), and the Life Safetv Code 
JNFPA 10 1 ) - 20 1 5 Edition, available for purchase from the National Fire Protection 
Association, 1 Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA, or by calling (800) 344-3555 (the 
"Life Safety Code"), are hereby adopted as the Fire Prevention Code of the City by 
reference as though they were copied herein. 

(b) With respect to the Fire Code, the City amends the form proposed by the ICC as 
follows: 

(i) Section 108 - Board of Appeals. This Section of the Fire Code is not 
adopted and is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

Appeals regarding the application of the adopted code may be 
presented to the city manager for consideration. The city 
manager may elect to render a decision on such appeal or 
remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In cases 
where the appeal is heard by the city manager and a decision is 
rendered, the appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may 
then appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. 

The board of zoning adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as said board is prescribed by Section 1 1-52-80 Code 
of Alabama (1975), as amended, shall constitute a board of 
adjustments and appeals under this code. 

(ii) Section [Al 109.4 - Violation Penalties. This Section of the Fire Code 
is not adopted and is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

[A] 109.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a 
provision of this code or fails to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters or repairs a 



building or structure in violation of the approved construction 
documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be 
subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making 
application for a required permit, all applicable permit fees shall 
be doubled. Once notified in writing by the building or fire 
official of the City that a report or building permit application 
must be submitted, such person must submit such report within 
ten (1 0) days. Persons who fail to make such report within the 
time period required shall be subject to additional penalties as 
provided under Sec. 1-6.1 ofthe City Code and by 5 13A-10-4 of 
the Code of Alabama." 

(iii) Section TAl 1 13.2 - Schedule of permit fees. This Section of the Fire 
Code is not adopted, and is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, and other 
matters under this code that require a permit, a fee or fees as set 
forth in City Code Section 14-1 shall be paid at the time of filing 
application, in accordance with such fee schedule as shall be set 
from time to time by the City Council. A list of such fees shall 
be kept on file in the City Clerk's office. 

(iv) Section 912.2 - Location (of Fire Department Connections). This 
Section of the Fire Code is not adopted, and is replaced in its entirety with 
the following: 

9.1.2.2 Location. Fire department connections shall be located 
not more than 100 feet from the nearest fire hydrant. With 
respect to hydrants, driveways, buildings and landscaping, fire 
department connections shall be so located that the fire apparatus 
and hose connected to supply the system will not obstruct access 
to the buildings for other fire apparatus. The location of the 
department connections shall be approved by the fire chief or 
fire official. 

(v) Adoption of Certain Appendices: The provisions of Appendix B - Fire- 
Flow Requirements for Buildings, Appendix C - Fire Hydrant Locations 
and Distribution, and Appendix D - Fire Apparatus Access Roads each are 
adopted in their entirety. 

(c) With respect to the Life Safety Code, the City amends the form proposed by the 
National Fire Protection Association as follows: 

(i) Chapter 24 - One-and Two Family Dwellings. This Chapter is not 
adopted. 

(ii) Reserved." 



Section 6. This ordinance is cumulative in nature and is in addition to any power and authority which 
the City of Mountain Brook may have under any other ordinance or law. 

Section 7. If any part, section or subdivision ofthis ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid 
for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance, 
which shall continue in full force and effect, notwithstanding such holding. 

Section 8. Any provisions herein that the City has adopted that deviate from the Technical Codes that 
are adopted by reference shall prevail over any conflicting provision of those Technical Codes. All other 
ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance, are hereby expressly repealed. 

In addition, when a provision in the adopted Technical Codes or this Ordinance refers to the duties of 
certain named officials, the official of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama whose duties most closely 
correspond to those of such named official shall be deemed the official responsible for the enforcement of said 
provision. 

Section 9. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be April 1,201 5.' 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk be, and he hereby is, further authorized and 
directed to give written notice of the hearing to the owners of the property located in whole or in part 
within 500 feet from the boundaries of the property described in this resolution in the form and manner and 
within the time required by Act No. 1 123 of the 1973 Regular Session of the Legislature of Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk be, and hereby is, further authorized and 
directed to post the Notice herein above set out, which includes the proposed ordinance, in four 
conspicuous places within the City in accordance with applicable state law. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of January, 201 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of January, 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
meeting held on January 12,2015, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

I hrther certify that copies of the resolution above were posted on J a n u a r y ,  201 5 in four (4) 
conspicuous places within the City of Mountain Brook, as follows: 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2805 Cahaba Road 



Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



City of Mountain Brook Mail - Re: Revised 115Trust Agreement 

A 
Steve Boone <boones@rntnbrook.org> 

Re: Revised 11 5 Trust Agreement 
1 message 

Steve Boone < boones@mtnbrook.org> 
To: Hardwick Walthall <HWalthall@maynardcooper.com> 

Wed, Dec 17, 2014 at 2:57 PM 

I will put this on the Council agenda for Jan 12, 2015. 1 will insert the effective 
date (being the date the resolution is adopted). 

I will insert the City Manager's e-mail address. 

I will add exhibits as well. 

Thanks. 

On Fri, Dec 12, 2014 at 4:10 PM, Hardwick Walthall <HWalthall@maynardcooper.com> wrote: 

Steve: 

Attached is the Amended and Restated Trust 115 Agreement incorporating the changes you provided. Here 
are a couple of points to keep in mind. We can discuss at your convenience. 

1. I think this document needs to reflect the effective date that the amended and restated trust agreement 
should go into effect (replacing the terms and conditions of the original trust agreement). Do you have a date 
in mind? 

2. Please note there are a few blanks still in the document: the effective date described above as well as the 
e-mail address for the City Manager in the notice section (9.7). 

3. In addition, the Exhibits will need to be completed. 

I am generally in the office next week if you would like to discuss further. 

Regards, 

Hardwick 



City of Mountain Brook Mail - Re: Revised 115 Trust Agreement 

Hardwick C. Walthall 

1901 Sixth Avenue North 

2400 RegionsIHarbert Plaza 

Birmingham, AL 35203 

Direct: 205.254.1208 

Fax: 205.254.1999 

www.maynardcooper.com 

Confidentiality Notice - The information contained in this e-mail and any attachments to it is intended only for 
the named recipient and may be legally privileged and include confidential information. If you are not the 
intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, distribution or copying of this e-mail or its attachments is 
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately of that fact by return 
e-mail and permanently delete the e-mail and any attachments to it. Thank you. 

Steven Boone 
City of Mountain Brook 
P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 352134009 
Direct: (205) 8023825 
Facsimile: (205) 874461 1 

www.mtnbrook.org 
ht@Y/mtnbrookcity. blogspot corn/ 
TwitWB: @mountain-brook 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-003 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of the "City of Mountain Brook Amended and Restated Section 
115 Trust Agreement", in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the City's post- 
employment benefits (medical insurance) trust. 

ADOPTED: This day of January, 20 1 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This day of January, 20 15. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on January ,2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Amended and Restated Section 115 (GASB 45 OPEB) Trust 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
AMENDED AND RESTATED 

SECTION 115 TRUST AGREEMENT 

Effective as of January -, 2015 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
AMENDED AND RESTATED 

SECTION 115 TRUST AGREEMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I CONTRIBUTIONS ........................................................................................................... 1 

.................................................................................................................. 1.1 Receipt of Contributions 2 
..................................................................................................................... 1.2 Compliance with Laws 2 

1.3 Directions to Trustee by the Company or Company Agents ........................................................... 2 

ARTICLE I1 PAYMENTS FROM TRUST FUND ............................................................................... 2 

2.1 Payments Directed by Company or a Company Agent .................................................................... 2 
.................................................... 2.2 Impossibility of Diversion Prior to Satisfaction of all Liabilities 3 

2.3 Transfer of Assets ............................................................................................................................ 3 
2.4 Tax-Exempt Status ........................................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE I11 INVESTMENTS ................................................................................................................ 3 

3.1 General ............................................................................................................................................. 3 
................................................................................ 3.2 Trustee's Adherence to Investment Guidelines 4 

.......................................................................................... 3.3 Appointment of an Investment Manager 4 

ARTICLE IV POWERS OF TRUSTEE ................................................................................................. 4 

4.1 Powers .............................................................................................................................................. 4 
........................................................................................................................... 4.2 Fees and Expenses 6 

ARTICLE V TRUSTEE'S DUTIES ....................................................................................................... 6 

5.1 General ............................................................................................................................................. 6 
5.2 Consultation ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

...................................................................................................................... 5.3 Accounts and Records 6 
5.4 Limitation on Trustee's Liability and Indemnification ..................................................................... 7 
5.5 Finality of Decisions or Acts ............................................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE VI RESIGNATION. REMOVAL AND SUCCESSION OF TRUSTEE ........................... 7 

6.1 Resignation ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
........................................................................................................................................... 6.2 Removal 7 

............................................................................................................................ 6.3 Successor Trustee 7 
6.4 Report by Trustee ............................................................................................................................. 7 

.............................................................................................................................. 6.5 Waiver of Notice 8 

ARTICLE VII REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY ......................... 8 

7.1 Authority to Establish Trust Fund and Enter into Agreement ......................................................... 8 
............................................................................................................................ 7.2 Authorized Person 8 



............................... ARTICLE VIII AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 8 

...................................................................................................................................... 8.1 Amendment 8 

...................................................................................................................................... 8.2 Termination 8 

ARTICLE IX GENERAL ......................................................................................................................... 8 

............................................................................................ Limited Effect of Plan and Trust Fund 8 
Protective Clause .............................................................................................................................. 8 
Construction of Agreement .............................................................................................................. 9 
Trust Exemption ............................................................................................................................... 9 
Gender and Number ......................................................................................................................... 9 

........................................................................................................................................... Headings 9 
Written Communications ................................................................................................................. 9 

.............................................................................................................. Electronic Data Exchange 10 
Severability .................................................................................................................................... 10 

.............................................................................................................. Assignment of Agreement 10 
........................................................................................ No Effect on Current or Future Benefits 10 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
AMENDED AND RESTATED 

SECTION 115 TRUST AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED SECTION 115 TRUST AGREEMENT (this 
"Agreement") is made, entered into, and effective as of J a n u a r y ,  2015 by and between the City of 
Mountain Brook (the "City") and Steven Boone (the "Trustee"). 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of its essential governmental function, the City has heretofore or 
herewith adopted one or more retiree welfare benefit plans (which may be a multiple-employer plan), 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, which may be amended from time to time in the sole discretion of the City 
in accordance with Section 8.1, (collectively, the "Plan"), the purpose of which is to provide certain 
welfare benefits for those retirees of the City and their eligible spouses and dependents covered by the 
Plan; 

WHEREAS, the City has contributed funds to a trust fund (the 'Trust Fund") for the benefit of 
the retirees and their eligible spouses and dependents under and in accordance with the Plan, and such 
Trust Fund has been established pursuant to that certain City of Mountain Brook Section 115 Trust 
Agreement dated effective as of July 27, 2009 (the "Trust Agreement"), entered into by and between the 
City and Regions Bank d/b/a Regions Morgan Keegan Trust (the "Original Trustee"); 

WHEREAS, the Trust Fund constitutes a tax-exempt trust pursuant to Section 1 15 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") andor Treasury Regulations § 301.7701-l(a)(3) as 
confirmed by the Internal Revenue Service by the issuance of Private Letter Ruling 200937023 dated 
June 15,2009; 

WHEREAS, The City has decided to remove the Original Trustee and appoint the Trustee named 
above as the successor trustee to administer the Trust Fund and has notified the Original Trustee of such 
removal; 

WHEREAS, the Trustee named above has accepted the appointment by the City as successor 
trustee, as evidenced by the Trustee's execution of this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the City and Trustee desire to make certain changes to the Trust Agreement in order 
to (i) confirm the replacement of the Original Trustee with the Trustee as successor trustee and (ii) make 
certain changes to Article IV and V of the Trust Agreement in order to clarify certain powers and duties 
of the Trustee; 

WHEREAS, Section 8.1 of the Trust Agreement provides that the Trust Agreement may be 
amended at any time provided that the Trust Fund assets shall continue to be used exclusively for the 
purpose of providing health benefits for the Plan; 

WHEREAS, in order to accomplish the amendment and restatement of the Trust Agreement to 
reflect the changes described above, the City and Trustee have prepared this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants contained 
herein, the City and the Trustee agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

Page 1 of 11 



CONTRIBUTIONS 

1.1 Receipt of Contributions. The Trustee shall receive any contributions paid to it in cash or in the 
form of such other property as it may from time to time deem acceptable and which shall have been 
delivered to it. Any contribution of property will be made at its fair market value (unless otherwise 
required) and such value will be provided to the Trustee when contributed. All contributions so received, 
together with the income therefrom and any other increment thereon shall be held, invested, reinvested 
and administered by the Trustee pursuant to the terms of this Agreement without distinction between 
principal and income. The Trustee shall not be responsible for the calculation or collection of any 
contribution under the Plan, but shall be responsible only for property received by it pursuant to this 
Agreement. All contributions to the Trust Fund shall be made by the City. 

1.2 Comvliance with Laws. This Agreement (including Exhibits A and B) and the Trust Fund are 
intended to comply with all of the requirements of Statement No. 45 of the Government Accounting 
Standard Board ("GASB") in order to allow the use of a higher discount rate in determining the present 
value of Other Post-Employment Benefits ("OPEB") liabilities and also to constitute an essential 
governmental purpose under Section 115 of the Code. City hereby represents and warrants to the Trustee 
that the Investment Policies or other investment guidelines set forth in Exhibit B, as may be amended 
from time to time in the sole discretion of City, are compliant with any and all applicable laws, rules and 
ordinances, including but not necessarily limited to ALA. CODE § 11-104-1, et. seq. (2014) (collectively, 
"Laws") and represent all applicable Laws with which the Trustee must comply in performing its duties 
and obligations hereunder. The Trustee shall be bound to perform its duties and obligations in accordance 
with Exhibit B. It shall be the sole obligation of the City to update Exhibit B to conform with any changes 
in the Laws, and the Trustee shall not be bound by such changes until such time as Trustee has received 
written notice from the City of a modification to Exhibit B. 

1.3 Directions to Trustee by the City or Citv's Agents. The City shall have sole responsibility for 
determining the existence, non-existence, nature and amount of the rights and interests of all persons in 
the Trust Fund. All directions by the City or a City Agent (as defined below) to the Trustee shall be in 
writing signed by or on behalf of the City. The City shall furnish to the Trustee the name(s) of any 
employee of the City who is designated and authorized to direct the Trustee in writing to take action on 
the City's behalf. The City also shall furnish to the Trustee the name of each other person who is 
designated and authorized to direct the Trustee in writing to take action on the City's behalf (a "City 
Agent"). The Trustee shall be entitled to rely fully on the written instructions of the City, a City Agent 
and/or a City Agent who is an investment manager (per Section 3.3) in the discharge of the Trustee's 
duties and shall not be liable for any loss or other liability resulting from such direction (or lack of 
direction). The City promptly shall notify the Trustee in writing of the removal, replacement of, or 
change in the scope of authority or responsibilities of any employee of the City, City Agent or City Agent 
who is an investment manager, and unless and until notified by the City in writing of such changes, the 
Trustee shall be fully protected in acting upon the assumption that the City employee, the City Agent or 
the City Agent who is an investment manager has not been removed and/or replaced and that the scope of 
authority and responsibilities of the City employee, City Agent or the City Agent who is an investment 
manager have not been altered by the City or its Council. 

ARTICLE I1 
PAYMENTS FROM TRUST FUND 

2.1 Pavments Directed bv Citv or a City Agent. The Trustee shall from time to time, at either the 
City's or City Agent's direction, make payments out of the Trust Fund to the persons or entities to whom 
such monies are to be paid in such amounts and for such purposes as may be specified in the written 
directions. To the extent permitted by law, the Trustee shall be under no liability for any payment made 

03087446.3 Page 2 of 11 



pursuant to the written direction of the City or a City Agent. Any direction of the City or a City Agent 
shall constitute a certification that the distribution or payment so directed is one which the City or City 
Agent is authorized to direct. 

2.2 Impossibilitv of Diversion Prior to Satisfaction of all Liabilities. Except as set forth below in this 
Section 2.2, it shall be impossible at any time for any part of the Trust Fund to be used for, or diverted to, 
purposes other than to pay premiums toward the Plan and/or provide the benefits contemplated under the 
Plan for the exclusive benefit of covered retirees and their eligible spouses and dependents, except that 
any reasonable expenses of administering the Plan or Trust Fund may be made from the Trust Fund as 
provided for herein. Upon termination of the Trust Fund, any assets remaining in the Trust Fund will be 
used solely to meet its obligations to pay premiums toward the Plan and/or provide benefits under the 
Plan to the City's retirees, their eligible spouses and dependents who participate in the Plan and to satisfy 
any other remaining debts or liabilities of the Trust Fund. Any assets remaining in the Trust Fund after 
meeting its obligations for premiums or to participants and satisfying any liabilities of the Trust Fund 
shall revert solely to the City, or, as determined solely by the City, to any other entity that is a state, a 
political subdivision of the state or an entity the income of which is excluded from gross income under 
Section 115. However, in no event shall any assets of the Trust Fund be transferred for the benefit of any 
entity that is not a state, a political subdivision of the state or an entity the income of which is excluded 
from gross income under Section 115. Neither the legislature of Alabama, nor any other entity, person or 
organization shall have the power or authority to appropriate any assets of the Trust. The assets of the 
Trust shall not be subject to the claims of any creditors and will not be subject to execution, attachment, 
garnishment, the operation of bankruptcy, the insolvency laws, or other processes whatsoever, nor shall 
any assignment thereof be enforceable in court. 

2.3 Transfer of Assets. To the extent allowed by law, the City, in its sole discretion, may direct the 
Trustee to transfer the assets of the Trust Fund to any other trust (including an agent multiple-employer 
trust) or account if such other trust or account complies with Section 115 and GASB 45 and such trust or 
account also will maintain a segregated accounting of assets to be used for the same purpose set forth in 
Section 2.2. However, if the transfer is to be made to a trust for which the Trustee is not the trustee, the 
notice provisions of Section 6.2 and the termination provisions of Section 8.2 herein shall apply. 

2.4 Tax-Exempt Status. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if the 
Trust Fund established hereunder shall for any reason fail to be granted, or otherwise lose, tax-exempt 
status under Section 115 of the Code, and the Internal Revenue Service notifies the City that the Plan 
and/or Trust Fund do not so qualify, the City shall provide the Trustee with a copy of such notification, 
and the Trust Fund shall continue to be operated in accordance with this Agreement, subject to being 
modified to comply with Section 115 of the Code and subject to termination pursuant to Section 8.2. 

ARTICLE I11 
INVESTMENTS 

3.1 General. The Trustee shall invest and reinvest the principal and income of the Trust Fund and 
keep the Trust Fund invested, without distinction between principal and income, in such securities or in 
such property, real or personal, tangible or intangible, as the Trustee shall deem advisable, including but 
not limited to stocks, common or preferred, trust and participation certificates, interest in investment 
companies whether so-called "open-end mutual funds" or "closed-end mutual funds," leaseholds, fee 
titles, bonds, or notes and mortgages, and other evidences of indebtedness or ownership (which 
investments may include any investment vehicles maintained, managed or advised by the Trustee or any 
of its affiliates); however, investments shall be governed by and/or limited as set forth in Sections 3.2 and 
3.3. Investments shall be so diversified as to minimize the risk of large losses unless under the 
circumstances it is clearly prudent not to do so in the sole judgment of the Trustee. In performance of its 

03087446.3 Page 3 of 1 1 



duties under this Section 3.1, the Trustee may recommend the City engage one or more financial 
institutions as an investment manager pursuant to Section 3.3 in order to make investment transaction 
decisions and hold investments. 

3.2 Trustee's Adherence to Investment Guidelines. The discretion of the Trustee or any investment 
manager appointed pursuant to Section 3.3 in investing and reinvesting the principal and income of the 
Trust Fund shall be subject to any investment guidelines or policy set forth in Exhibit B, and any written 
changes thereto from time to time, as the City may adopt and communicate in writing. The Trustee and 
any investment manager appointed pursuant to Section 3.3 shall have the duty to act strictly in accordance 
with Exhibit B, and any changes thereto, as so communicated by the City from time to time in writing. 

3.3 Auuointment of an Investment Manager. Upon the recommendation of Trustee, the City may 
appoint an investment manager or managers to manage all or any part of the Trust Fund. In the event of 
such appointment, the City shall obtain the investment manager's written acknowledgment that it is a 
fiduciary with respect to the Plan and Trust Fund. Any investment manager shall have all powers of the 
Trustee in the management of such part of the Trust Fund, including the power to acquire or dispose of 
assets of the Trust Fund. In the event an investment manager is so appointed, the Trustee shall not be 
liable for the acts or omissions of such investment manager or be under any obligation to invest or 
otherwise manage that part of the Trust Fund that is subject to the management of the investment 
manager. The Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or investment performance caused by its acting 
upon any instructions from any investment manager which the Trustee reasonably believes to be genuine. 
At the direction of the City, the Trustee shall segregate such portion of the Trust Fund held by it as will be 
subject to the management of an investment manager into one or more separate accounts to be known as 
investment manager accounts. The Trustee shall follow the directions of the investment manager with 
respect to the account of such investment manager and shall not be obligated to invest or otherwise 
manage any such investment manager account other than to the extent that the investment manager may 
utilize the Trustee as a manager of reserves. Subject to procedures and conditions as may be established 
by the City, the Trustee and the investment manager, the investment manager may place direct orders for 
the purchase or sale of securities or other property for its investment manager account. The Trustee shall 
retain custody of the assets comprising said account, unless custodial arrangements satisfactory to the 
Trustee shall otherwise be made. The City may remove an investment manager and appoint a successor 
to manage any investment manager account. If no successor investment manager is appointed, the 
portion of the Trust Fund held in such investment manager's account shall return to the unsegregated 
portion of the Trust Fund and the Trustee shall have authority to manage such account. The Trustee shall 
be fully protected in relying upon the appointment/removal of an investment manager. 

ARTICLE IV 
POWERS OF TRUSTEE 

4.1 Powers. Subject to the provisions of Article 111, the Trustee, in addition to all powers and 
authorities under common law, statutory authority, and other provisions of this Agreement including 
without limitation those set forth in Article 111, shall have the following powers and authorities, to be 
exercised in the Trustee's sole discretion: 

(a) To purchase, or subscribe for, any securities or other property and to retain the same in 
trust; 

(b) To sell, exchange, convey, transfer, grant options to purchase, or otherwise dispose of 
any securities or other property held by the Trustee, by private contract or at public auction, and 
any sale may be made for cash or upon credit, or partly for cash and partly upon credit. No person 

Page 4 of 1 1 



dealing with the Trustee shall be bound to see to the application of the purchase money or to 
inquire into the validity, expediency, or propriety of any such sale or other disposition; 

(c) To vote upon any stocks, bonds, or other securities; to give general or special proxies or 
powers of attorney with or without power of substitution; to exercise any conversion privileges, 
subscription rights, or other options, and to make any payments incidental thereto; to oppose, or 
to consent to, or otherwise participate in, corporate reorganizations or other changes affecting 
corporate securities, and to delegate discretionary powers, and to pay any assessments or charges 
in connection therewith; and generally to exercise any of the powers of an owner with respect to 
stock, bonds, securities or other property held as part of the Trust Fund; however, the Trustee 
shall not vote proxies relating to securities for which it has not been assigned full investment 
management responsibilities. In the event another party has been assigned such investment 
management responsibilities, the Trustee shall deliver the proxies to said party who will then 
have full responsibility for voting those proxies; 

(d) To cause any securities or other property held as part of the Trust Fund to be registered in 
the Trustee's own name or in the name of one or more of the Trustee's nominees, and to hold any 
investments in bearer form, but the books and records of the Trustee shall at all times show that 
all such investments are part of the Trust Fund; 

(e) To borrow or raise money for the purposes of the Trust in such amount, and upon such 
terms and conditions, as the Trustee shall deem advisable; and for any sum so borrowed, to issue 
a promissory note as Trustee, and to secure the repayment thereof by pledging all, or any part, of 
the Trust Fund; and no person lending money to the Trustee shall be bound to see to the 
application of the money lent or to inquire into the validity, expediency, or propriety of any 
borrowing; 

(f) To keep such portion of the Trust Fund in cash or cash balances as the Trustee may, from 
time to time, deem to be in the best interests of the trust created hereby, without liability for 
interest thereon; 

(g) To accept and retain for such time as it may deem advisable any securities or other 
property received or acquired by it as Trustee hereunder, whether or not such securities or other 
property would normally be purchased as investments hereunder; 

(h) To make, execute, acknowledge, and deliver any and all documents of transfer and 
conveyance and any and all other instruments that may be necessary or appropriate to cany out 
the powers herein granted; 

(i) To settle, compromise, or submit to arbitration any claims, debts, or damages to or owing 
to or from the Trust Fund, to commence or defend suits or legal or administrative proceedings, 
and to represent the Trust Fund in all suits and legal and administrative proceedings; 

(j) To invest funds of the Trust Fund in night deposits or savings accounts maintained by 
Regions Bank or its affiliates, which deposits or accounts bear a reasonable rate of interest; 

(k) To invest in Treasury Bills and other forms of United States government obligations; 

(1) To deposit monies in federally insured savings accounts or certificates of deposit in banks 
or savings and loan associations, including accounts and deposits maintained, managed or advised 
by Regions Bank or any of its affiliates; 

03087446.3 Page 5 of 1 l 



(m) To do all such acts, take all such proceedings, and exercise all such rights and privileges, 
although not specifically mentioned herein, as the Trustee may deem necessary to administer the 
Trust Fund, and to carry out the purposes of this Agreement. 

4.2 Fees and Exvenses. The Trustee will not receive any compensation for the services performed by 
Trustee under this Agreement. The Trustee shall, however, be reimbursed for any reasonable expenses 
directly incurred by the Trustee in the administration of the Trust Fund. The Trustee may enter contracts 
or arrangements under which persons (including, without limitation, agents, auditors, certified public 
accountants, internal auditors, and/or counsel) will advise or assist the Trustee in the carrying out of the 
Trustee's duties under this Agreement. Such expenses shall be paid from the Trust Fund, unless 
otherwise paid by the City. The City may direct the Trustee to pay the fees and expenses of investment 
managers from the Trust Fund. The Trustee shall not be responsible for determining the reasonableness 
of any compensation paid or agreed to be paid to an investment manager. 

ARTICLE V 
TRUSTEE'S DUTIES 

5.1 General. The Trustee shall discharge its duties under this Agreement solely in the interests of the 
retirees and their eligible spouses and dependents covered under the Plan and for the exclusive purposes 
of paying premiums, providing benefits to such persons and defraying reasonable expenses of 
administering the Trust Fund, with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing that a prudent man acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the 
conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, and by diversifying the investments of the 
Trust Fund so as to minimize the risk of large losses, unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent 
not to do so, all in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement insofar as they are consistent with 
applicable law, as this Agreement and applicable law may be from time to time amended; but the duties 
and obligations of the Trustee as such shall be limited to those expressly imposed upon it by this 
Agreement notwithstanding any reference herein to the Plan, or the provisions thereof, it being hereby 
expressly agreed that the Trustee is not a party to the Plan. 

5.2 Consultation. The Trustee may consult with counsel, and the Trustee shall not be deemed 
imprudent by reason of its taking or refraining from taking any action in accordance with the opinion of 
counsel. The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or any other security for the faithful 
performance of its duties under this Agreement, except such as may be required by a law which prohibits 
the waiver thereof. 

5.3 Accounts and Records. The Trustee shall keep accurate and detailed accounts of all investments, 
receipts, disbursements, and other transactions hereunder and all such accounts and other records relating 
thereto shall be open to inspection and audit at all reasonable times by any person designated by the City. 
The Trustee shall furnish to the City a written statement of account upon request by the Mountain Brook 
City Council setting forth all receipts and disbursements for the requested accounting period (or such 
more frequent reporting basis as agreed to by the parties). Additionally, the Trustee shall furnish to the 
City an annual written statement of account within 120 days after the end of the Trust's year end setting 
forth all receipts and disbursements. Failure by the City or City Agent to disapprove any such statement 
of account within 120 days after its receipt thereof shall be deemed approval thereof. The approval by the 
City or a City Agent of the statement of account shall serve to release and discharge the Trustee from any 
liability or accountability to the City as respects the propriety of the Trustee's acts or transactions shown 
in the statement of account, except with respect to any acts or transactions as to which the City or a City 
Agent shall file written objections with the Trustee within the 120-day time period prescribed. The 

Page 6 of 1 I 



Trustee shall not be required by the terms of this Agreement or by the sole capacity of acting as trustee to 
file an accounting with any court. 

5.4 Limitation on Trustee's Liability and Indemnification. The City, or its designated third party 
administrator, shall administer the Plan as provided therein, and the Trustee shall not be responsible in 
any respect for administering the Plan nor shall the Trustee be responsible for the adequacy of 
contributions to the Trust Fund to meet or discharge any payments or liabilities under the Plan. Further, 
the Trustee shall not be responsible in any respect for any act or omission of any prior trustee or custodian 
of any assets of the Trust Fund or the Plan, and the City agrees, to the extent permitted law, to indemnify 
and hold the Trustee harmless from and against any liabilities that the Trustee may incur, which are the 
direct or indirect result of a prior trustee's or custodian's acts or omissions. The City further agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee against any and all claims, damages, liabilities, costs and 
expenses (including without limitation attorneys' fees) assessed against, incurred by or imposed upon the 
Trustee andlor its successor in connection with or arising out of any claim, demand, proceeding, action, 
suit, settlement or compromise in which the Trustee may be involved or to which it may be a party by 
reason of its acting and serving as Trustee hereunder, except in the case of willful negligence or willful 
misconduct on the part of the Trustee. The right to be defended, indemnified and held harmless 
hereunder shall extend to the Trustee and its successor and shall continue to apply after the Trustee ceases 
to serve as Trustee with respect to acts or omissions committed prior to such cessation. Therefore, the 
provision of this section shall survive the removal or resignation of the Trustee as to acts or omissions 
committed prior to such removal or resignation. Such right to indemnification shall not be exclusive of 
other rights to which the Trustee may be entitled as a matter of law. 

5.5 Finality of Decisions or Acts. Except for the right of a participant to appeal the denial of a claim, 
any decision or action of the Trustee made or done in good faith upon any matter within the scope of 
authority and discretion of the Trustee shall be final and binding upon all persons. In the event of judicial 
review of actions taken by any fiduciary within the scope of its duties in accordance with the terms of the 
Plan and this Agreement, such actions shall be upheld unless determined to have been arbitrary and 
capricious. 

ARTICLE VI 
RESIGNATION, REMOVAL AND SUCCESSION OF TRUSTEE 

6.1 Resignation. The Trustee may resign at any time by giving 30 days' notice in writing to the City. 

6.2 Removal. The City may remove the Trustee at any time upon 30 days' notice in writing to the 
Trustee. 

6.3 Successor Trustee. Upon the resignation or removal of the Trustee, the City shall appoint a 
successor trustee who shall have the same powers and duties as those conferred upon the Trustee 
hereunder. Upon acceptance of such appointment by the successor trustee, the Trustee shall assign, 
transfer, and pay over to such successor trustee the funds and properties then constituting the Trust Fund. 
The Trustee is authorized, however, to reserve such reasonable sum of money, as it may deem advisable, 
for payment of its fees and expenses in connection with the settlement of its account or otherwise, and 
any balance of such reserve remaining after the payment of such fees and expenses shall be paid over to 
the successor trustee. Until such a successor is appointed, the current Trustee shall have full authority to 
act hereunder; provided, however, that if no successor is appointed on or before the effective date of a 
resignation or removal, the Trustee may file a civil action to seek the appointment of a successor. 

6.4 Report bv Trustee. Within 120 days after the resignation or removal of the Trustee, the Trustee 
shall furnish to the City a written statement of account with respect to the portion of the year for which 

03087446.3 Page 7 of 1 I 



the Trustee served. Failure by the City or a City Agent to disapprove any such statement of account 
within 60 days after its receipt thereof shall be deemed approval thereof. The approval by the City or a 
City Agent of the statement of account shall serve to release and discharge the Trustee from any liability 
or accountability to the City as respects the propriety of the Trustee's acts or transactions shown in the 
statement of account, except with respect to any acts or transactions as to which the City or a City Agent 
shall file written objections with the Trustee within the 60-day time period prescribed. 

6.5 Waiver of Notice. In the event of any resignation or removal of the Trustee, the Trustee and the 
City may in writing waive any notice of resignation or removal as may be provided hereunder. 

ARTICLE VII 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE CITY 

7.1 Authority to Establish Trust Fund and Enter into Agreement. The City hereby represents and 
warrants that it has consulted with legal counsel regarding the City's authority to establish the Trust Fund 
and to enter into this Agreement and that it has been conclusively determined that the City has the 
authority to establish the Trust Fund and to enter into this Agreement. 

7.2 Authorized Person. The City represents and warrants that the person executing this Agreement 
below is authorized by the City to enter into this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII 
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

8.1 Amendment. Any or all of the provisions of this Agreement may be amended at any time and 
from time to time, in whole or in part, by an instrument in writing, signed by the Trustee and the City. No 
such amendment shall authorize or permit any part of the Trust Fund (other than such part as is required 
to pay administration expenses) to be used for or diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive benefit 
of the retirees and their eligible spouses and dependents; except as provided in Section 2.2, no such 
amendment shall cause or permit any portion of the Trust Fund to revert to or become the property of the 
City. Exhibit A may be amended from time to time in the sole discretion of the City to add or remove 
plans that are covered by the Trust; however, a plan may not be removed from coverage under the Trust 
unless and until all liabilities associated with such plan have first been satisfied. 

8.2 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by the City, and upon such 
termination, or upon the dissolution or liquidation of the City, the Trust Fund shall be paid out by the 
Trustee as and when directed by the City or a City Agent, in accordance with the provisions of Article I1 
hereof and the terms of the Plan. 

ARTICLE IX 
GENERAL 

9.1 Limited Effect of Plan and Trust Fund. Neither the establishment of the Plan nor the Trust Fund 
nor any modification thereof, nor the creation of any fund or account, nor the payment of any welfare 
benefits, shall be construed as giving to any person covered under the Plan or other person any legal or 
equitable right against the Trustee, the City, or any officer or employee thereof, except as may otherwise 
be provided in the Plan or in this Agreement. 

9.2 Protective Clause. Neither the City nor the Trustee shall be responsible for the validity of any 
contract of insurance issued in connection with the Plan or Trust Fund or for the failure on the part of the 

Page 8 of 1 1 



insurer to make payments provided by such contract, or for the action of any person which may delay 
payment or render a contract null and void or unenforceable in whole or in part. 

9.3 Construction of Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced according to the 
laws of the State of Alabama. 

9.4 Trust Exemption. The City has previously submitted this Agreement to the Internal Revenue 
Service for a private letter ruling on its status as a tax-exempt trust under Section 115 of the Code. 

9.5 Gender and Number. Wherever any words are used herein in the masculine, feminine or neuter, 
they shall be construed as though they were also used in another gender in all cases where they would so 
apply, and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or plural form, they shall be construed as 
though they were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply. 

9.6 Headings. The headings and sub-headings of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience 
of reference and are to be ignored in any construction of the provisions hereof. 

9.7 Written Communications. All notices, demands, directions, designations, specifications, 
consents, instructions, approvals, requirements, information, statements or communications between the 
City and the Trustee required or permitted to be given, made, disclosed, furnished or transmitted under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and/or an electronic medium or format agreed upon by the City and 
Trustee and directed by first-class (postage prepaid) U.S. mail, electronic facsimile transmission, or 
electronic mail to the recipient at its physical address, facsimile number, or electronic mail address set 
forth below in this Section 9.7 or at any other physical address, facsimile number, or electronic mail 
address of which a party shall have notified the other party in accordance with the procedures of this 
Section 9.7. All notices, demands, directions, designations, specifications, consents, instructions, 
approvals, requirements, information, statements or communications between a City Agent (including a 
City Agent who is an investment manager) and the Trustee required or permitted to be given, made, 
disclosed, furnished or transmitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and/or an electronic medium 
or format agreed upon by the City (or if applicable, a City Agent) and the Trustee and directed by first- 
class (postage prepaid) U.S. mail, electronic facsimile transmission, or electronic mail (1) to the Trustee 
at its physical address, or facsimile number set forth below in this Section 9.7 or at any other physical 
address, facsimile number, or electronic mail address of which the Trustee shall have notified the City 
Agent in accordance with this Section 9.7 and (2) to the City Agent at a physical address, facsimile 
number, or electronic mail address of which the City or City Agent shall have notified the Trustee. 
Notice of a change in a City Agent's physical address, facsimile number or electronic email address shall 
be given in accordance with the procedures of this Section 9.7. 

(a) If to the City: 

City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Birmingham, AL 35213-3700 
Fax: 205.879.6913 

Electronic Mail Address: gastons@mtnbrook.org 

(b) If to the Trustee: 

Finance Director 

Page 9 of 1 1 



City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Birmingham, AL 3521 3-3700 
Fax: 205.879.691 3 
Electronic Mail Address: boones@mtnbrook.org 

9.8 Electronic Data Exchange. Notwithstanding the foregoing Section 9.7, the City (or a City Agent, 
if applicable) and the Trustee may establish procedures to facilitate the secure electronic transmission and 
exchange of data (such as computer files) between the City (or a City Agent, if applicable) and the 
Trustee. All communications pertaining to any such procedures shall be subject to Section 9.7. 

9.9 Severabilitv. If any provisions of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be 
construed and enforced as if such provision, to the extent invalid or unenforceable had not been included. 

9.10 Assignment of Agreement. The Trustee may not assign this Agreement to any other trustee, 
corporation, person or entity unless the City consents to such assignment in writing in advance of the 
effective date thereof. 

9.1 1 No Effect on Current or Future Benefits. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to define 
or otherwise grant any right or privilege to any benefits to any person. Benefits, if any, shall be governed 
by the terms of the applicable plan document. Further, this Agreement is not intended to assure or deny 
any existing or future employee, retired employee, any of their dependents, or any other person of any 
right of employment or entitlement to any benefit or otherwise restrict the ability of the City to modify or 
eliminate any existing or future benefit. 

Page 10 of 11 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed the day and year first above written. 

"CITY" 

City of Mountain Brook 

By: 

Its: 

"TRUSTEE 

Steven Boone 

Page 11 of 11 



EXHIBIT A 

Copies of Retiree Welfare Benefit Plan(s) Covered under the Section 115 Trust Agreement 

(attached) 



Local Government 
Health Benefit 

Plan 

Local Government Plan 
Effective January 1,2014 

INTRODUCTION 

This r m m u y  of hsalh care bandits of ma Local Government Haah lnsuranm Plan (LGHIP) Is darlgnea to 
help y w  undcnund pur  mraraga. Thb W e t  replscsr any pravlwsly &sued InlmaPMI. M tens. 
m d l l h s  and U m l u h r  are notmvsrsd here. M banarb am rubled to the mnr .  mndUbns and Ih&atlonr 
OI ma mtnd w mnbact. bstvnan h e  Smts Employser lnrurincs Board (SEIB) and Blus Crms Blus 
Shlald (BCBS) of Alabama w o h r  m M  party admlnllbam mat h a  SEIB may mnbad wllh that B dasmr Is 
necsrsary to carry out IQ rtahltwy obllgalonr. Copbr OI rO m t n c b  am kept on (Us at ma SEIB olMm and 

The SEl0 shall have abrobrte dlscnwn and rvmotity to lnlsrpmt tho 1-s and m n d b  a( tho LGHIP and 
resewer lha dght to change the tens  and m n d l h r  and101 end h e  LGHIP at any Uma and fw any r e a m  

The following provisions oI lids bmkkt mntabl r summary, h EngOrh. of y ~ u r  rlghll and 
banalllr undsr h a  LGHIP. If haw q u a r h r  about y ~ u r  bamllll, pbara mnlad Customer 
Ssnica at 1.800-321-4391. Ifnaadsd. shplyrsquarta Spanlrh brnslatrr and one MO be 
pmvlded to assllt you ln underrlandhg p u r  bmfl t r .  

I demehos dalplan. Sl h w  algune pmgunta a c m a  h skb.n.flclos, pol hmr 
p6ng.s. en conlaclo con .I depanamnto d. Smlclo .I Clhnlm Ilamando .I fJn. 
2 s 7 2 5 0  S O I I C ~ .  slmdarmnk un b t ( m n ~ m  d. esmnol v s. ommmbnard uno o.n I 

Local Government Health Insurance Program 
Benefit Plan 

Administered By: 
State Employees' Insuranca Board 

Post Mlim Box 304900 
Montgomery. Alabama 361304900 

Phone: 334.263.8326 
Tall-Free: 1.866.836.9137 

Wmbslle: www.rlselb.org 

BlueCrossBlueShleld 
of Alabama 

SUMMARY OF BENEFITS 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN 

JANUARY 1.2014 



TABLE OF CONTEMTS 

COORmMwm OF... -... + si 
WwdBr*mD- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . ,  ......................... - ,,,., 51 
* n m E - r * r m m r R M a L * b M I w  . ........................................... 
COBW w st .. hl"~um c ....................... ............................ ...,. , ... 32 52 

D.taMruhd*rm"..I- ......... ,,., . , .,.,,.,, .. , 52 
........ ... ...... ..................... COB T a n  . .,.,., .- .,,.,.,,,, .,, , ,.,,.,. , 63 

nlghlhruIR.M-Ud.Pl- ................ 9 
.. F.dUf, OI P . M .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  -. ,. ..... - , ,,,., ..., 54 . .... n5hld~.rmv ... ., ............... ,.,, ,., ..,.. .,,,. $4 

..... Spd.1 R ~ l m m r a W m r h -  ...................... ...... ..,.,,, , 54 

*mwm.--. ...-......... ..-..-... ..,.,, 
WYIP'dSu* ......................................................... ,, ., ..,. , 5s 

........... WqdR-rr- ,, ,,,, , ,  ,,,, ,.,,.,, , ,,,,., ,,., ,.,5$ . WSbR.cm*). 55 

F R I W C A C W O U I D - * I I D I C ~  W-Dew .. .. s 
F l W d C k  wund ..................................... ,, 56 ............ 

. .. .- -. * FIW Cl- , ...................... ., , , ,,,,,, ..... . ......... .........,.. 
w.%= R u m  P w n  

-. - $4 . ...................................... -......-..................... * ........................ '+ow ro F ~ l s  Clllma 55 
WnlpWBnunh ............. . - ,, w ..... ~ m d v  S a m *  wd OPwCOH4 - , .............................. ........ I? 
at" . cm.1 mrwna c- - .............................. , .... , .. ., . .. 5, ................ Wan C-m UI.1 8. S m n m c  ,,.,. ,.,,.,.,,.,,.,., . - ........................... -51 

. nrmr rrr ww.wva am, ................................................ ,, .,, ,,,,,,,.,, ........ SI 
- - ......-..-............... ............ ,.,.,, ., -,-, , , ............. .- 57 P.,'.!.r."~ E *nu 

Pm S.k. O. . .. , , , . , . , ., . , ............................ - - . -- .- . 54 ...................... . . ......... c m m *  - 7, , , ,, ,,., ,,,, d l  
9Mwb.l WJrVJul ,,,, , ........ 60 ................................................................ 



... OVERVIEW OF THE PLAN 

Purpose of thm Pian 
The LGHIP b intended to help you and ywr -red dependent9 pay fw  ms mst. of medlul cam. The 
LGHiP does nM pay for aO of ywr medical u rs .  For aumpls, yw may ba w u M  to pay deducUbie% 
mpyment., and cdnrurance. 

Using my8iueCross to Get Moro infonnatlon owr tho internet 
Blue Cmaa Blua Shield ol Alabama (BCBS) b me Wlms Mmlnbkamr (a me LGHIP. BCBSs home 
page on Be  internet b w.bcbsal.mm. n you go men, yw will see a re- of BCBSs h m a  page 
u r d  mfliu.Cmss. Rsglrtsrlng for my8lu.Cros. Is easy and sawra. Once you have mgbiered, yw 
will havs a m s t  to informafkn and f m r  mat win help yw t a b  m h u m  advantage ol ywr benefit. 
undsr Be  LGHIP. 

Definitions 
Near the and of mi l  bDoWat wu Mi m d  a sscllon catled DshiUons.' which I d s n ~ r  vmdt and Dhrarar 
thst have fpdaIl2ed w pardalar meanings n order to make thb bookkt more readabb we pbncnily 
do not use hlthl capltall2.d lhMm to denote d e w  terms mare take me Ume L IamtUarlm punen  
*Im mere dsmibmt so mat yw *I1 vndentand your baentr 

R.crlp( ot Medlcal Cam 
Even ii the LGHiP dmr not mver bsndb, you and your pmvidsr may dsdda mat u r n  and kaaunent 
are necessary. Y w  and ywr pmvidsr am msponrlbie for mrlrhg thb dsdrbn. 

Beginning of Cowrage 
The s a c h  ol mt. W i e t  unsd ' EilgibUiY win tell yw what Is requka for you to ba mvsmd under 
Uw LGHiP and when ywr -raga bsginr. 

Limitations and Exciuaiona 
in Mder to mahWn me mst of 01s LGHiP at an werall h w l  mat b mamabie to .I ptan msmbsn. the 
LGHiP mntaht numba d &bns that Umlt bsnenlr There us  abo exdurmt mat vou need to oav 
pamculualtanum to u wan.'~hsrs pmvlslons are found mmugh me mmalnder of thlr k t .  YL n b i  
to bs I- of these lknlte and axdusbns h Mdar to take m u b n m  advantage ol the LGHIP. 

Modicd Nmcassity and Pnurtincation 
The LGHIP VII only pay for ore  m a  is meaicaly neussery and not hv.stJgstlona1. as dnsrmhea by 
BCBS. BCBS asveloWd meaicai nKsrslh sunduds L a i d  BCBS whsn BCBS maker mealul neussk  
dsiermhauw. BCBP pubbher mare standuds on the intamat at w.bcbsal.mrmpmvidanfpoo&. ~ h ;  
ddnltion of medlul nscarrlly Isfwnd In ma Dellniha.'rabim of Lhb W h L  

in toms cater, ma LGHiP rsqulrsr mat you w ywr baakg pmvldsr pracatny ma med id  necessity ol 
w r  care. The p&bnr later in this boolrht *In ten w when ~ r s c e r d R u h  is mubad. L d  m Uw b a d  
b ywr 10 urd .(a ma phone number mat yw or youipmvldsr ahwld oil In soma &set. BCBSs m k a b l  
fflm p r d d u s  muk the pmwder to kmate the p m M u U o n  pr-ss fw you You pmvlder shoub mli 
yw when these IeqY6ement. apply You am mtponsbb l w  m k h g  sure that your p d e r  inlU.ur and 
mn~L1 4th any ~rscer ln lu lm mu6emsnb under the LGhiP &ass note that DmurUncaUon mtams 
&to ma mediai newsslly of m i :  it dm, not msan that your care win be m v s d  undsr Be  LGHIP. 
hcerdRcaUm also dm, nol msan mat wa have b a n  pald a0 mmhs necessary for ow admhbhah ol 
ma LGHiP to ba in faceon me dab mat ssrvica or rvppUss are rendered. 

in-Nmtwork Bonafib 
One m y  In which ma LGHiP Mer to manage hsalthum mst. b thmugh nagolated dbmunla with h- 
neNYOIL: provldan. h you read ms remainder ol mlr booWaL yw rhwld pay aMnUon to me type o( h- 
n s t w d  pmvidsr mat Is baakg you. If you receive mvamd semicar fmn m Ic-nstwd pmvidsr. you will 

undsr the brms of ma LGHIP. if BCBS danhr a dalm In wh* w in part. you may me an appeal wim 
BCBS. BCBS win give you a fun and fak ravlsw. Thamanar, you may havs ma rlght lo an hdepndsnt 
sdanal review. The pmvlsbns ol ma p h  dealing wlth d&s w appeals am fwnd further m In thb 
boolrbt 

Tannination of Cowngo 
The rsdbn bdow called .%lblbllllf tells yw whsn mvaraga will termhate undsr the LGHIP. if mmnga 
termhams, no bansflte win ba p r d e d  maraansr. m n  U fw a mndllon Bat m a n  k f w a  me LGHIP or 
ywr -rags iermhaUon. in some caras you '+A have ma opponunity to buy COBRA -raga aner ywr 
LGHiP m n g e  armhaas. COBRA mveraga b sxplahed In dstal later h m11 bmkiet. 

normally only bs mrponrbb for a m f - W e t  m r u  such as deducVhiss. mpa,m.nls. and mhruranu. if 
yw mcew servims horn on out.ol.nehrolt pmvidsr. these services may not be covsmd at a1 under me 
plan. in mat care. you ml be rerponsibie lor .I chaqsr bUied to you by the wt-oFnsNYOIL: pmvider. n me 
~~t .o l .ne twd  services are mvema. h mmt uses, you 4 1  have to pay rbnlUcanW mon man what y a r  
w w b  p y  an b n s t w d  povlda because ol lower benelt level. and hlghu mst-rhutng h one elample. 
~ ~ t ~ e n . t w d f a d ~ t y  a i m s  vd! ofmn induae wry expenwe andlbrych.q.s (such as hpbnmbl. devices) 
lor whidl no em. relmtunement b avaibbia as there chames ars nM separately mnsldered undar the 
LGHIP. Mdiuon.lly. wt-d.neNYOIL: Pmvldem havs not conmaed with BCBS a m y  Blus Clorr andlot Bus 
Shield plan fw nagorlatea a i r m u  and un bl l  you (a amwnb h exwss ol the d o M d  amount. undsr the 
LGHiP 

in-netwd pmvidan am hospbir, phpldans, pharm*der, and omer hsalthum pmvlders w rupplars mat 
mnbacl wim BCBS or any Blue Cmrr andor Blua Shleld p h s  (dim* or l d m c l y  Bmu~h. (a axnmph. a 
pharmacy bsnsm manager) for furnishing heaimura tarvicar or auppUes at a r e d u d  prlce. Examples ol 
lc-natwd pmvidarr lnduda PMO. h f e n e d  Cam. and Bluecard PPO. To i-ta h -ns twd  pmvldan h 
Alabama. go t o w . b c b r d m n .  

Flnt, dl& 'Fhd a Ooclor.' 

Ssmnd, ralsd a haahcare p d s r  type: donor, hospll, pharmacy. other healthcars pmvldsr, or 
omar fadUtyw supposr. 

Thfrd. enter a seardl buh by ualng me rip mda fw me ama you would O b  to search. or by 
sakthg. state. 

A spedai faatum of y a o  plan gbaa you amaa  to the nalonal n e w  ol pmvidan uned BluaCard PPO. 
Each Iwl Blua Cmrr anfflw Blue Shield plan dealgnaaswhlch ol It. pmvidsn are P W  pmvidsn. In Mder 
to b u t e  a PPO p r d s r  h ywr m a ,  you rhwld u O  me B l u s h 3  PPO m i h a  amsa Ona at 1-800.810- 
BLUE (2583) a virlt Be  Bluahrd PPO PrDvldar Fhder website at http:llpmidsr.bcbs.mn. To receive In. 
n e t w d  PPO baneflu for tab aerviw* ms laboratwy mutt mnbad with the Bhle Cmss andlor Blua Shield 
plan b u b d  In ma sane state as ywr phpldan. Whsn you or ywr phpldan wdsn durahie m d u l  
equipment (OME) w suppsas. the service pmvlda murt paddpata wim me Blus Cmsa andor Blua Shield 
plan where Uw rvppUar am shlppad. if you pwdlara OME ruppUea dlrecuy horn a ratali stwe, they must 
m n m n  with the Blus aorr andlor Blue Shield plan in ma rt.ts w service ama whem me store b b u b d .  
PPO pmvldnr wiO fls dalmr on ywr beha with ma local Blue C m s  plan when mrviws are randared. 
The bul Blue Ooss plan MI man f m r d  me rWms to BCBS fw  v e r M u h  o( aOgmiYly and detsrminatlon 
of baafit.. 

SomsUmes n e w  povidn may furnish a service to you that Is either not m r s d  undsr me LGHiP or Is 
not -red under 01. mnbaa bshssn the pmvidsr and the local Blue Cmst phn when services am 
rendered When mls happnr b v l d t r  may be dsnhd a may bs m e m a  under some other pornon ol me 
LGHIP. rvdl as'Othsr Covered Saviwr.' 

Reiationshlp h t w m  Biua Cross andlor Blue Shield Plans and thm Biuo Cross and 
Blue Shhid Association 
BCBS t. an independent mrporaUon opraUnQ under a llwnaa fmn ma Blus Cmss and Blvs Shield 
&~sodaUon. an a s d h  d independent Blue Cmrr and Blue Shhld plms. Tha Blue Cmrs and Blua 
Shbld hr&Uon pumlt. BCBS to ura me Blus Cmas and Blus Shield service mat!a In me state ol 
Alabama. BCBS h not acUng as an agent of me Blue Cmas and Blua Shield hrodslon. No repascntaUon 
is made thst any organiuUon &a than BCBS and ma Stab Empbps'  insurance Boud '+A ba 
responslhle f a  hmaing thlr mnkaa Tha p u w s  of U I ~  pangraph It for isgal darlllutlan: It does na add 
addlUwlabPOabnr rn the part of BCBS nM created under Ba  dgha i  agrasmanL 

Claims and Appeals 
Whsn yw mcelm rarviws fmn an h-nelwmk provldar, yw pmvldcr win genemy (Ua d a h s  f a  yw. in 
other carer. yw may ba mqubsd to pay Uw pmvidar and men ma a dakn with BCBSfor rshbussment 

ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT 

-. . . . . -. .. . . -. . - 
1. Empbpa - an smpbps murt ba a permanent a* full-Ums cmpbpa, uho la nM on tayofl or barn of 

rbrsnce. An ampbps murt ba empbpd h a boa. M e  empbyer-empbps &Uonshp, m h g  30 
h a m  (minhum) per wsck. Y w  an nM aUgbla for m n g a  U yw am dasstbd as an smpbps m a 
temporary, pr t - the,  rsarmal. Inlermltmnl emargsncy. a mntran baa ,  or ii smpbymsnt Is knom to 

E b u d  oflcen d a local gwemmsnt unk u s  alw elgbls whoe In om- Ekaed omcers *O ba 
a rsdhd  fm Inrutance Purposes as a** employsea upon proper n o m c a h  lo the SEiB and 
mnpnance wth the LGHIP'r enrdment miss. 

N eilpibb empbywr murt ba s n w  at .I Umer d h g  me6 em#oyment 401 the unll except la any 
he(,) mat the cmpbpe Is -red by other gmup m n g e  fl an etgibl. emplqae is m m d  by oms, 
omuo m ~ r a o e .  mat emcbse must n rdds  a .Dadnaban al Cowrage' I- to the SEiB with pma( d 
olhe; g r w ~  &wage i l 'kem~lws; has d a d h i  -rms h m a  LGHiP and iamr lola. thet om=, 
gmupioviraga. eiigibh mp&a must knmsdbtely noliytha SEiB and an- h ma LGHIP. 

2. RaWee - a round empbps may a h a  to conlnus mvcnga undar a ptan dsslgnabd by the SEiB If: 
R e h e  has 25 yean ol adtable serviw. regardlass of age, or 
R&ee has ten p a n  of service and: 

b60yeandd  or 
is daiermhed to be dbabbd by the S d i  Security M m h b t r a h  rn me Rstbsmcnt Sptems ol 
Alshma 

IndMduat. andllng In the LGHiP anar January 1.2005 murt 
Have been cnmW h h e  LGHP for 10 pars p k  to Ba  dam d mWsmcnL or 
if unn has bean snrcded kaa man 10 p a n ,  tha ampbpa murt ham been cnmOed mnkuwslyhorn 
me m i r ~  incspum data. 

Any mured empbps who dma not meat me rbovs mquframsnb win be mnddued a termhalon 

Each government unn ir rsrponslbie for deierminlng whether eblhl. mwess may mnUnvs met LGHIP 
coverage and. U so. whemer it may be mahhlned upon enliuement to Mealum Once gmmmsnw "nil 
maker a i r  determlnalon it mutt bs sppllsd uniformly L ail mtbses 

An abim cmpbysa, who m h s  fmm a bcal govammsnt unit that doas not a b w  mWess to m k u a  on ma 
m r a g e ,  44 ba Dnamd COBRA upon wlnen nolMcah of mWemsnt h a  ma local govsmment u n l ~  (Sea 
' T s r m l n ~  of Services..) 

An adks empbpe who tatbsr horn a h i  gwemmsnt unit that a b v .  mtbsss to mnbnus merage has 
the op lm of etewng mess mvengs or COBRA if COBRA mmrage b eleaed. me relm. wll (or(eit hb a 
her dght l o e b n  mue. m n n g e  at a later dam 

Elblhla reatsat mum enred on the data they Rnt bemms eilgbh fw  raWee health bsnetlb. if -rags b 
dadinsd, snrmbnant v d  not ba aOo-d after me mUmmsnt data. Rstbaaa who eied m r a g a  and are 
canwlsd for any rearm Mi m t  ba ailowsd to e n d  at a later data. 

Ellglble Dependent 
The tarm 'dapndant' Indudes ma foliawlng lndMduais rubjen to appropriate d m m e n t a h  (Sodai Sewdly 
numbsr, manlapa WrdRcata. birth cerlnluta, murt dsaee, stc.): 

1014 U)UL EOYERHUENTCULTH I N W C F .  P U N  



'sBus~m 
lueum IlulAwa~ Jwn Wuunruyldqdlus -1 low1 1UUm D q wd slqmdmy .teAqdw. ~ewou. qllm 
-E=l.Aoa dnola p pad eIwdn=a pua s6.t-3 lo uonmu1la.a mw lnoq p ldlnw6ul~(pj wuou ow 
ID AWP IW sw aq IIC uqlennun lo 4.p wsw ~smea eu I .sun due 10 06uam autne~ dew saddluz 

'mmyp a snp ssmds ~auuoj e 6qddolp usw (soaap a-p) 
DvayP P SDynh 813s eu 'uqlnuuou uww lo 8dlmeJ s.813~ ow 6u-I wuow aw p dep 
1-u ow 09 IIP Uqlw-aun IO DIIP awew 1sa11vea sul 'OW dm P D~J- 41luej ~DJP dwu sdqdus uy 

eBwao3 41luaj 40 uonulleaus3 

'peen ohm dm6 law qep ew oq 01" e6uwm 
lo qep wwaw ow 'pmdde u .IU~AO Buy(fflmb. 0 pnuavadxe ow =ow PO 01911100 mu~puadap 4uo aql 

'uqdau 10 nqu 'pnwpuu6 e p Apo~rm lo 'uqldopw 'wlq 'otlvlu q6mw ~uspuadsp 
uu OW 6wnb. lo sAep 09 ulwp pmou 11 813s ow II pnwus eq delu ~UDPU~~DP pyh. dpsu v 

~UmpUmdea *.N 6uglnb=* 

DqueDoq IW o6u-m wepwdap DDW~ lrennol alp '*ED 09 orow *w 813s ew 
Aq psynel lou SI urnnumumop pol(nb.1 a4 u .leu* alp jo 09 ww puluqnr mq lmmu 4muaumop 
DaqnDDl eLP ~PLP nal OI nnou s puns lllu 813s ~LP 'uoj eluelp m uoj 8uauw~ua uo LPP pwner leu 
CI YORI)U*UI~OD Dw~nh 0w 11 'qqenn~e IOU SI uqmueumop pe4nbod em 110 u uaw 813 aw OI peuwqns 
eq ~mqs vrll01 elmy3 'law ww raqlpeep lua~~ue 1.4 wnrue a :WN 813s ow ol psu~qnr aq ~mnu 
I'qe 'WnoD urn 'emllu;a u~o 'nnun ebwnu '~aaunu &uroe~ ~sr~ocl uoonuaumoo ol=udo~ddr 

0Llu.m 
aluunrul wwoq dm16 rdqdwe ~awo jo joold ww uoj uon~ulpa~ .81wqns ro ~IHD~ ew q IPUD lrnw 
(llun ruowwaros aw As w~vnoa u qvpw pwqe we) uun weuum6  no( OLP p lsdqdu eww IN 

8uowllolug eeAoldlua lol8lul 

v.4~3 dmm ew p awp eweyo ow p sm elmem mj pqp~ eq lllu ~~4~03 dm3 sql p q.0 
MUDO@ 0w swq lo uo uonnndde ewu ow quspusdap pu. "erpw 'unw mqe 'seeAqdua s1q913 

8uolullolu3 dno19 Ienlul 

uo1~~9n6 mx,w-d 1qpo8.m S.DUW ewa ~paq~ mrP wes0.1~ w 813s a41 
dlH91 u( lwua 01 POW oLP *CUD 01 uqprwrd lob1 a 1uw.d ~1pol.m s ~nyr ol ruuoj pu. wwwjq 

l~qlws ewold -I. ~llu e13s eu mom em m Apo~sm DOD1U. "am S~U OW m10l.n6 1.b.1 a lumd OL. 

~q CJ~PJ~ ps4nb.l owaw 
10 ldnxe delanm S.WW ow 01 wads= w wsus w vpuw .yw pue suq- ~IHD~ ne 'OS~WD 
D 10 llnw D I* dl~m sw lawn p~em rl p(~o sw polad ow 6ww 'a6e~m 1.10 mb uun sw s6nw 
IW 813s ew 'POW ew Jam OI eqxa Aed 01 pqnbw r! eeAqdus RR JI 'luapuad~p 01q1600 uo lo wwsp 
sw 4511- OI resen PIIP sy ow sw q dn ~apm aq1 q pypsds wad su mj DnURum deu e6w- 

'~uars 6uUl.nb awp dep 
a9 qwln psuluqnr oq lsnlu (p~o~wq Led- w uqlequuq gsullqduo '$.a) a6e~m jo sml Aq 
wau~ slsnpwpul II* lal rrqw *UP pue uossa~ ow bnql lus~o Bu#!~nb sw jo pad sw '~swwau .E 

puo :-I she@ gspuadap polstdwm n .z 
pun baqwua lrpads OW q uql~dpped 6qsanbD1141q n .L 

.s6e~wm dm6 ~dqdlua 1aw 11aw p ma sw q s6u.w munsqnr e . m s6wm dnw6 ~aAqdue ~wo 4~4 q slllnyr munsqnr e . m aII*~elu m wdopn 'wq qllno~w ~wuadap uu e p UDUIPP. sw . :ole~wm p rsq 01 met lou quwo B&Ienb 6wopj sw a dldd. d~uo mn 1usqo~ua 
Iepads 'sBe~wm dm6 ~dqdluo awo sq dew usw uqd sw q ~pua sdqdus ue 1.w swnbal 
Ape=- ~IHD~ sw nqs 'I~A~MH ~uepwdap e jo UWIPPO sw m sBusm dm6 ~dqduo ~swo JP~ 
lo sml re vans 1usm 6Wwnb e nuvodxe a(m rsaQdlua sww mb ~vsqwua uDdo 01 WIPP. q wad 
1Ue~w~O lrpads 0 leu0 lsnlu dl~01 sw wv 410qmunanv puo 4~qwv.j rnuwnsu!  wee^ ow lapun 

..eAqdw3 

.'rsAs BWenb. E p~luavodxs ow eow em slq91s su~p~sd~pd~uo ql :S~U~PY~~D(I 'wad lusluplu3 
IrpadS. ass .psnn s6eJm dmld ~swo sw a'dp sg oq I~A s6e~wm p aep ayllaus aql iusup~u3 
us* IA~O~S Iuapuadaa JOI 4dde Aplu ~eplaws aln 'due~ol hw6 mlno I!eq1 wrq luepuedep e 11 

- '1 dmnuep oq 
Plmqr -I sw uo pDIngul *UP swaua aql 'wrp sways 1 henuor e mj J~~UOMN jo wuolu sw Wnp 
e8um 4111101 101 dldd. a luspwdsp w ppe 01 4dd~ dslu sDqlPl10 lrpwo pvqs 'sdqdlus 6unrdpwrd v 

IY~W(IWU~ uaao lenuuy 

'813s sw 6u~amum Aq ship 
p 004 reJnpooold asow lo Ado? e welw 01 1~6v e e~eq noA 'OS~WD = q JDP ue wnr ~swsw 6wu1uus1sp 
101 1011pmd pldop. req 813s su 'ellelem mj putpew pawus rq~dqduo 0w~swowp rrqpreb~ 
allp spak7ldlua sw 1- 01 uqd sw 6wqp bua6w ewe4~1qtups n unm s um~ ~apm pg)nenb 
e n OS~WD v '(os3wa) J~PJO lloddns ~113 Inlm ~glllrno = SI JDP sw ~swaw D~LUIDIDP IM 813s 
ew '~IW e JMM ol ~IHD~ 01 6wyp dauah awulrlqlups m urn? e u4 laplo ue soyme1 813s ow II 

uaPJ0 lroddns PIN3 I*aIPaw PIUIIEnD 

'luadkidue )o ~AWD a9 4wlu lw~rpdap PolmPdnul u. aj e6.r- qranb.> eOAqdua uu w ueqM 1 
el0 mj ldnm srwua4nbal4n1q16na WI qeau 

OW l~m~~ed.9~ pslwsdnul uo DP OI qqlrwd aq A-w 81 WIW lepun auqerqp w ere olau uqdaq 

'060 jo srnnsq p~s~m oq 01 DIDn arwswo mmm POV, aep ow uoq rdrp 
09 qwlw 813s sw pewd aq lsnlu 41nqqp p jmd 'unsn ln~psw Aq pquuslsp sq np uqlnpednq 
lo wdds 1sw3 'uuod wwwa3 ~u~~uadea ~awedw uo UIWO a 813s sw ww 'W 01 

'wenrnro oq up 
4p~dn Bullurs qu p 1uwo sw '4mqes1~ SI~ sudsap '6~y~. q lus~uads~ pqqoqp dunlsAqd m hualu 
m II I~nqlana IO muaw 'usm1 JO 'q ~usullqdlus puu 01 4n1q.q nu 4pedn 1(1~n y uqllnpwn J~WI~N 

'amcdr mm.4 m nd 01 dpolsm p1ueJB rw urn ow umw mj wsqdsu m nslu 'pnyrpuuB ~nd .p 
pnyrdasmm.4 .a 

(nd wlm -no1 PDynh .I 
pow sw Wlw 6Uvnp wad A~euqleqold Le Bqpnpq) srdr ~nd m nal dq pldop. dflelal p(lw s .q 

(.snp sq IN aupu rplge& sw 6up.1~ omwn wq ppuaue us ow ww 
1. '6.p 09 mj awsus 4w~cdua1 eq IW 41wq.d Bqqsnqqsa wmp Unm v) ~lqll6n'dp m uos mm.4 .e 

:q P~W ow u ~IW .gz 06. lapun POW v 'z 



Wi PROVISION FOR MEDICARE ELIGIBLES 
/ ." 

Active Employees 
The Slate Emebwes' intunnca Baud orovkier aclh'e emdoveer. over aoe 65. mvenoa under lh LGHiP 
under me same imdMons as any e m p i b e  vnder age 6 5 . ' ~ ~ d l u n  is ssZmdary lo beidits payablawder 
lhe LGHIP fw empbpsr over age 65 and met t p o w n  wcr age 65. if lhs service b abo m w e d  by 
Medicare, me d a h  o n  be rubmlttsd to Madiure who may pay al  or a podon of the u n p d  balanca of Be  
d a h  sub)ect lo Medicare UmiaUonr. 

SEiB will not provide an adke employes or hUhw spouse d m  bandit. lhal suppismen1 Medicare. The 
emplow has lhe dgM to eted coverage undsr lhe LGHiP on me same basis as any nhsr smpbpe. 

The LGHIP wil be me prhary pap1 lor more hems and rav iwr  covered by Msdiun. (Note mat Medlom 
m m  h~~pIIPOzabon. post.hmpiW nunhg h a s  u re ,  and home health seNlcst 1 Thb meant mat me pbn 
will P.Y me mverw caahr and more of me emdowe's Mwlcarbsnulsd r m t e  I h L  uo lo me bmitr 
mnWned h me plan. and Msdlum may pay .I or i pomm ol me u n d  b;ance of me'dalmr. n my. 
subjed to Mwiu te  ilmitelar I me employsss rpovrs Is not eUgibla (or M e d i m  lhe Pbn a ba me rok 
WIW ofpapentolm. spouse's d a h r  

Shw me LGHIP a b  m n  lmt and services not W m d  by Medicare, lhs LGHiP win bathe sola source 
of papsn l  o l  medm daims for lhsss asrvlcas. 

Retired Em~iovees 
heaim bsnsni wiliba modmed when yw or y w r  dependent bammss entlusa to Mwlcan. conrag. under 
mb pan wil be reduwd by mote baneam p p b i e  vnder Medicsre. Pans A and 0. il a mV.. or dependent 
bemmes enlea to Msdlum beuure of a ditabilty bawe ape 65. lhs mtte. murt noWy me SEiB lo be 
e11gibte for me reduwd premlumr and lo ensure mat a i m s  ars paid pr-dy 

The LGHiP remahs prharylw relmet unbi me rsllres is enllled lo Msdlum. Upon Medlore enUIkmsnt h e  
member's mvsrqs unda h e  LGH P wil mmplanenl hlLma Msdlom Pam A and B mnraget Mwlcam 
dl ba Ihe p r h w  pap1 and lhe LGH P MI ba Be  rsmdary papr. A Ymdlun m t l m  andlor Yadlum 
d*p*nd.nl should have both Y.dlur. P u b  A and B to h a w  ad.qu.h coverap. with th. LGHIP. 

Medicam Part B pmmlvmr are me redme's rerponribUily. There pemiumt .re deducted h a  me rehe 's  
Sodai Sacurity check. 

H a d t u n  P u t  D Pr.svfmion D N ~  C0v.r.a. 
Medium mttees and #srse ~edlcam dep'ndena are enro0ed In me LGH P'r prercnpUon drug Empbyer 
~ r m p  waiver ~ b n  (EGWP) me LGHIP EGWP b M i c a r e  Pan 0 p m r d p m  drug plan hat b h addium 
lo lhe m n g s  wder Msdlute Part A or P M  B 

It Is your msponslbiilly l o  inform LGhlP d any pr.svfmlon dmp covenp. that you haw or may 0.1 In 
lh. h l tun YOU s~ only be mnm1l.d In on. Y e d l u n  proscrlptlon d ~ p  plan at tlm.. You am not 
requlnd to be .n&d h me LGHiP EGWP b u  d you wan1 lo opt wt,  you murt m p l s t s  an EGWP Opt-0ut 
F m  snd mhm ittome SEiB Opt-out lams am ava0abb on SElB's unbslle .ta*rr.riscb.we 

if you opt oY~oIUII. plan, you wiii have no prescription drug m m g .  hem lh. LGHiP. Youdl, h w v e r .  
stm haw me LGHiP temdary Medicam Part A and B mwrags if yw opl-out ol  ms LGHiP EGWP. You can 
aim dedde lo jDIn diifemnl Mediors Part 0 p r s r a l p h  drug plan. Y w  can ?A 1-BOO-MEDICARE (1.800- 
633-4227) 24 hwrr a day. 7 days a wwk for help h teaming how to e h i  h anoma Medicare Pan 0 
pmrcrplbn drug plan. ( I N  usen rhwld can 1-8774862MB.) 

TERMINATION OF COVERAGE 

When Coverage Terminates 
The m a b c h  covenas will hrmhals: 
1. On me k t  day oilhe monm h which me manbar's a n e l m s n l  termhater. 

Keep In mhd mat if yw leave me LGHiP plan and do no1 have or do no1 e n d  in another pmrm@Uan drug 
plan, you may b w  to pay a b ls  e n r h s n l  penally h addilan lo ywr premium fm Msdlwm pmsm@M drug 
coverage h lhe fuhlre. 

Medimm UmlQ when yw can make changes lo ywr conrage. You may lean  h b  plan only at camin Umss 
of lhe p a r  or under w r t l h  spa& ctcumbnws. Generaw. lhcre b an open e n m s n t  priod a1 lhe end of 
each p a r  vhen yw un change Madicare Part 0 prerm@bn drug piam for mwnge lhal win ba cnscllvs 
January t o l  me f M n g  par. To request to leave lhe LGHIP EGWP, pteua submit the EGWP Opl.0ut 
F r n  Lo: 

S a b  Empiopet'inrunnca Board 
PO Box 304900 
Monlgmsry. AL 36<3M900. 

Oncs you are a manbar of the LGHiP EGWP, yw have lhs *hl lo appr i  plan d s d s h r  about papent of 
ssNlwr if you diragme. Read EGWP plan dDcumsnts lo h a  lha mlar yw murt f&w lo rewive -raga 
vdih mlr Medicam pmrm@lh drug p h .  

a. m h e  b r t  day of lhs mmm In &I& ruch p n o n  w&er lo ba an elbible 
dep"ds"L w 

b. if lhs dependent b a m s r  c8glbls lo ba hrured as an empbyes in lha Rqlram. 

In many carer you MU have Be  o p h  lo chmre conlnuam of gmup bendit. as probided by me Rlbiic 
Hsaim Sarvfw Act (see COBRA SecUm.) 

Family and Medical Leave Act 
The SUte Employset' inturanca Board win adhere lo the pmv i rh r  of lhs FamUy and Medlul Leave A d  

i4, 
CONTINUATION OF GROUP HEALTH COVERAGE (COBRA) 

introduction 
The Pvbllc Health Sarviw Act I42 USC Ssdms 300bb-1 lhrwgh 300bb-81 raqufras lhal the SEiB Dner 
mvend empbyssr and lheh f m W s  ma opportunlly (or a lsmpasry extenah of health coverags (caLd 
'unUnuaUon conrage7 at grmp rater h cart.h h r m w s  whem mverage unda Be  LGHiP v w l d  olhemisa 
mnd. COBRA conrage can be pdculariy h m n l  as il wlll allow you to m W u e  grwp health care coverage 
bspnd lhs pml at which you w i d  ordharliy b r s  IL 

Thtl no lw  b htsnded lo l n f m  you, in a summary h s h h .  of ywr tights and obllgamr under the 
m h u a l o n  conrage pmvtrlmr of lhls im. W mnd mur m d  take m. tlm. to a 

What is COBRA Continuation Coverage? 
COBRA mnlhuabn mnrage I1 a mn l lnuah  ol  mvsngs undsr lhe LGHIP when average MUM 
omalvlrs end because d a id0 event k n m  as a 'quamykg event.' Spadflc qua0fyhg ewna ua lusted under 
h e  sedon enUW 'RuaiMcd Bcnmldahr' blow. AUsr a q u m g  svenL C O W  munuation coverage 
mutl be mend lo each p n o n  who b a quawed banmld.ry. Yw, ywr spouse and your dependent children 
m M  bemms q u d W  banefl-s if mvenps undsr me LGHiP is bst bowuse of a q u a W g  event. Under 
the LGHIP, quaMled benslidada who sten COBRA mlnua lbn  mvsrage murt pay for such average 

Quaiifled Beneficiaries 
IndMduait en lad  lo COBRA m L u a l b n  coverage am u i k d  qu.IMed bandidula. iwJi4du.l~ who may be 
qualed bandidahr ua lhe spouse and dependent children ol  a mvemd employso and. h wrWn 
drmsbncat,  me mvsred smpbpe. Under cunsnl law. h d e r  lo be a quMed bsnsfldary. an hdMduai 
must generally bs m n d  under lhs LGHiP on lhs day bafws Be  wen1 lhal caused a b r r  of mvengs ruch 
as termhnion ol  emplopenL w a d h c a  ha. w dealh of, lhe m n d  empbpe. (*n Inmeare h me mrt  
of rs*ee conrage m l a h  lo a d w  smpbpe mvarage is also mnsldered a loss of mvenge (or COBRA 
purposes.) In addition, a chM ban lo the mvsred employs. or who is plawd for adoplbn with Be  covered 
employee, duhg lhs period of COBRA mnUnvalon covarage, b air0 a quamod bsnefidary. 

COBRA Riphtl for Covered Empioyns 
if yw are a m n d  employes, you HI bemms a qualhd benendary if yw lots your average under ma 
LGHiP bemuse simer one of me f W n 9  qudnylng ewnla happas: 

Vwr hwn olemp!qnenl an mduwd. or 
Vwr cmplqmentendt (or any malonother man gmrr mbmdud. 

COBRA mvcnge urlO mntlnue for up lo a lohi of 18 mmlhr ha me date of ywr te rmhah ol  
amplopentor mduabn h houn, arrumhg yw pay ywr pmmimr on we.  

n yw am on a ieaw ol  absenca m e n d  by me FmUyand Medical Leave Ad of 1993 (FMLA). and yw do 
not reNm lo wmk yw will ba given me oppmnly  to buy COBRA coverage. lhe priod d your COBRA 
-ge w i l  b q h  when yw fall to reium lo & foaowhg me expkam of ywr FMLA leave w yw h f m  
me SEiB mat yw do n a  hland lo mlum to &, whichever Dccurs Ihl. 

COBRA Rights for a Covered Spouse and Dependent Children 
I yw .re lhe spouse of a m r d  smpbps, yw will b c m e  a q u a W  banefldary if yw b r s  ywr m r a g s  
undsr h e  LGHiP beuuse elther one of the ( o W g  q u a W g  wenu happens: 

~- ~ . - -~-  - - -  . Ywr spouse's hours d emplopentare rwuwd: 
Ywr rpaue'r .mplqmentendr for any mason olha man gmss mllmndua 
Vwr teane bsmmer e N l W  lo Msdicam banefib (under Part A Pan B or born). or 
Y w  & m e  d i d  or legally tepramd horn your spouse. 

14 1014 LOW U M R N H U l T  HENTH Pis- PUN 



Your dependent chudmn '40 b a r n s  qualillsd banalldahr U thay bae mvenga undsr the LGHIP because any 
of thsfollming qualllying awnb happens: 

The parentampbyw dkr: 
The parent-empbyes'r houn of anpbpcn t  are reduced: 
The parent-empbyes'r empbpent ends for any r e a m  other man gmss mbmnducl: 
The parent-empbyes bammss snlled to Medlcare bsnsllts (under Pan A. Part B or bom): 
The pamnb bamms d h c e d  or legally separated: a 
The chud stops bslng e0glbb lor mvcnge under me LGHIP as a 'dspndcnt chud.' 

Coverage Available 
If yw chmrs mnlnurlon mwrags. the SElB Is rsqulmd to offer you mvsnpa that as of the h e  mvsnge b 
bslng pmvlded. Is ldenUcal to me mvengs p r d s d  under me LGHIP to tlmbtiy allurted empbyess alam6y 
mcmban. 

When Your Employer Should Notify the SEIB 
COBRA mntnuabn mverage will be onered to q u a l m  bsnsflclarfsr only onor h e  SElB h u  been nounsa mat 

quatdybg swnt has m u n e d  Y w r  empbpr b rerpmribls lor n o w g  me SEIB 01 the l m m g  qua!nyinylng 
evmb 

End of emplopen1 
Redudm ol  h w n  of empbpen l  or 
Oeam of an smpbpe. 

When You Should Notify the SEIB 
Theempbpa ora famUy member has the rsspmrlbllltfto Inform me SElB d me ldbwhg qudlying wenw . Adhona. 

A legal sepamtbn. a 
AchUd lorhg dspden t  rtamr. 

Written noUm must be given to ma SElB vimh 60 days of the date of the qualUyhg event a the dam In vhlch 
m v s w e  m l d  end unda the LGHIP beuuse 01 me quawng emn l  vhlchsvcr b later. An nolws rhwkl  ha 
rsnt to me d d m r r  Usted undsr'SElB Conmu InfomuUon' at me end ol  mb recum. 

- . . . . . - 
When me SEIB Ir naUUed that s quaMylng event has hsppned. COBRA m n l h u a h  mverage $40 ba onemd 
to esch qY.lfflw benencury Each qualmed bmsfldary will have an hdependslt tight to e h a  COBRA 
mnmuatbn cownos In addlUon a covemd smobwe mav e b a  COBRA mnlnualon mwrsos on bah.11 d 
his a her spwse aid slmer -red parent may i e a  c006.A mnfhuatbn mvaaga m behaw oi mehchlldren. 

I pu do not dime m n U n ~ a h  mvemge. p u r  gmup heal* lnruranw v i U  end. 

Alter me SElB receiver Umely nd lw  mats quaillying event has occurred. the SElB will (1) noMy ppu that 
you ham me optbn to b u y c o ~ w  and (2). rsnd you a c o ~ ~ ~ e l a d o n  nouw. 

You hsw 60 days Mmn v h l a  to elecl to buy COBRA mverage The 6Way pemd h g n s  to ~n h m  me 
later of (1) me date p u  wwld b r e  mvsrags under h e  LGHIP. (2). me date on vhfch me SElB notmss 
p u  that pu have me o p h  to buy COBRA mmrags Each +.W benetlcury hss an Independent dght to 
e b d  COBRA coverage You may e h a  COBRA mvemge m behaU 01 y w r  rpwre. and parsnu may sfscl 
COBRA mwr8ga m behail of their &Wren An elsdlon to buy COBRA mverags will be mnrldsrsd mads 
m me dam me slaman noUw Is rent b a a  to me SElB 

Onw me SElB has bas" notified of w r  4uaUMng avant. Wur mvenae under me LGHIP will ba reboacWelv 
tsrmlnatsd and papent o( a0 dam; Incuned me dl& mvsr8ge&.rw will be rescbdw. I1 p u  e l m  tb 
buy COBRA durlng h s  6W.y e l s d m  psdod. and fl p u r  prembmr am pab ar lms. me SElB will 
t e u o a h i v  mfruuts w r  mvenoe and ~ r o w s r  c(.lms lncunw durha ma 6~%davsbclan mrkd  - .  

1 1 4  LOUL OOVERNMENl M A L M  ! N W C E  PUN 

rpwre or dependent chlldren to lore mvsnge undsr me plan I1 me mvsred smptoyss had not h e n  
tcrmtnated hwn empbpcnt. 

Fw mb l m m m  smnslon to apply, pu must give me SElB h s l y  noUw 01 me asmnd qualK,lng 
went Mmk 60 days smr me went occurs orvimh 60 days after the date on which mvenge w l d  bs 
lost baca~se ol  me event. vhlasmr IS later. 

Adding New Dqmndents lo COBRA 
You may add new dcpcndsnb to your COBRA mvenge under ma d ra rmbnwr  psrmlned mdsr me 
LGHIP. Exwpt as sxplalned babw. any new dependents that you add to your COBRA m n g e  will not have 
hdepndant COBRA rights. Thb msanr, f a  mp, mat n you dla. msy wiO not bs abla to mnlnua 
mvengs. 

I1 pu M L s  m e n d  errqbyse and yw acquhs a chUa by b rA  or plewmsnt lor adopuon vhtb pu am 
recelvhg COBRA mvsrags, men y w r  n a  chtb dl have Independent COBRA tighb This msanr hat $ p u  
db. hn sxunob. Wur chUd may slscl to mnmue mcelvha COBRA banants la u, to 36 mmmr 1- the 

11 p u r  new chfld b disabled mmm me 6Way p m a  begmnmg m the date 01 blnh w pbwment 01 aaoptbn. 
the chW may ebcl m n g s  under the alublUly e m n h  6 yw Urnsly no* the SElB 01 Soci.1 Sscudh/. 
d b b l l y  dstermhatbn sr srptahed a b m  

Family and Medical Leaw Act 
I1 yw are m s leave o( abrsnw mvaed by me Fadly and M M l d  Leave A d d  1993 (FMU). and p u  do 
not mNm to & p. OL be given me oppmnlly to elea COBRA mnUnuatbn coverage The psdod d pu 
COBRA mnlhuabn covsngs OL bwln M e n  vou tall to reNm to & lobvho  me sxnhmn of r w r  F H A  
barn a yw h f m  p u r  emibpr  maryou do not Intend to rshrm to won, vhldl&er oc&n b r t  

' 

Pmmium Payment 
I p u  qualify la Conlnurtbn Coverage. you wiO ba requtnd to pay ma group's prsmlm piur 2% 
admkbush  f w  d h d y  to me State Empbpsr' lnrunnw BOW. Mamban who are dbabled undsr ntls I1 
or Tltte XvI ol  me soda1 Security M vhcn a qurugfying s m t  occurs. wi l  be beeqvhd to pay 150% of the 
group's prembm lor me 19m mmugh me 29th mmm of mvengs a me monm that bsgtnr m m  than 30 days 
after me data Is dstermlnsd mat p u  are no bnger dlrabled under Tlls If a Tlls XvI of tha Soci.1 s e a m  
M. vhlchwer mmer bst. (If me only pmt who c ln t  me dlubUii e m n r h  am nondhablsd famUy 
membars. the mrt  of mvenge wlll rematn at 102% of the full mr t  of covsngs.)Your coverage W l  ba 
canceled u you fsU to pay me e n h  amount h a timely manner. 

Your kWd premium papent murt be rewived by me SElB vimln lmly-lke (45) days ha p u r  date ol  
eIeC1IO(I. All s~bsequenl premiums are due m h e  h t  day ol  me monm ol  coverage. Them Is a mhyday (30) 
g n w  p e w .  

Termination of Continuation Coverage 
The law pmvldsr that p u r  COBRA mnlnualon mverags may be tsrmlnrted f a  any of tha fonming nw 
r e a m :  

1. SElB no langer p d d s s  gmup hsllm mvsrage: 

2. The pmmlm f a  ywr mnthuatbn mvenge b not pald on h e :  

Bemuse there may be a lag bstrrssn me h e  yw mvengs undsr me plan ends and me Ume w barn of 
p w  bsa of mvenga. It la porsibla mat me LGHIP may pay h l m a  lncuned dumg the 6W.y alsdon 
oeriod. n mb haonens. mu rhwid rot assums mat vou have mwraos under me LGHIP. TM on!yway pur 
mvengs v i u  mnwus ir u p u  elscl to buy c o ~ w i n d  pay ywr p r ~ m m s  on #me 

Length of Coverage 
COBRA mnfhuation mvsrage b s wmparuy mnfhuabn of mvengs. COBRA mfhuaUon mvenge will last 
for up toe toW of 36 monms vhen one of tha fdbvhg quaWymg events occun: 

0-m of me emobvw. . Olvons a l s g a l * s ~ a n h ,  a 
Dependent chW loses elbibUlly as a'depndent chUd' under LGHIP. 

COBRA m n m u a h  mvcrage will last la up to a total of 18 monms vhen one ol  me fdbwhg qualnylng smnb 
occur*: 

End of employment a 
Redudm h me h o w  of cmpbpent. 

Thas are mlytwDwsys to emnd the lamonm COBRA mnhuatbm mvengs p b d :  
O1s.bllity - I1 you or a mverd  membar of p u r  family b w bsmmss dlaabfsd under Title I1 (OASOI) or 
Tlaa Xv! (ssl) of me Soci.1 Security Acl and p u  h o l y  natty ma SEIB, me i a m m  p e w  of COBRA 
m r a g e  la me drabled p n o n  may ba extended to up to 11 addltbnd months (fw a told of up to 29 
moilthal or me date the diubled Denon bsmmsa m r e d  bv Wlcam. vhlchsvsr occurs m e , .  Thb 
29-mmm psdw abo apples to ;ny non-dbabled lamlly members vho u s  rewMng COBRA m n g s .  
regadless 01 vh&er h e  dtubled IndMu.1 s b m  me 2 9 m m  m o d  lor hlm a hsnsn The 2 m m m  
mrkd  $41 N" from L e  data ol me larmhnum of a n h m s n t  n r m d l o n  In houn. For mlr dbabuny 
kxlenrbn to aoolv the dhbUllvmurt ham-smnad at I k s - M a e  me 60"day of COBRA m n g e  
and mud last at kart  unM the &d of me 1 amonm wdod of COBRA mvengs 

The m r t  lor COBRA mwrags sner me lb mmm uill bs 150% of me hl mst 01 mvsngs undsr the 
phn. arrummg hat me dhabled p a ~ n  ebcll to be -red undsr the dbabUny sxtenrh I1 the mfy 
w n m s  VhO etea the dlsebUIN snsnrlm .re nondbabbd l v n k  members. tha mr t  of m n g s  $41 
remain at 102% of me fun mst bt coverage. 

F a  a spouse and chlrcn. the disabluty smnslm may ba funher enended to 36 monms n anomsr 
qualnylng emnl (dsam. divorcs. snrment In Medicare, a bas ol  dependent s W r )  occun durlng me 
29-monm phi. See me fdbwhg dlacuarh under 'Eatsnrlanr of COBRA for ssmnd m s l n h p  
-for more h l m a h  abwt mb. 

For mls dlsabllty extension 01 COBRA mverage to apply, you murt give a s  SElB lmely noUu ol  S a i d  
Sscuriys dhbWlydstermhalm M o m  the end of me lamonm pdod  of COBRA mvengs and vimh 
60 days amr the later of ( I )  me date of the hitlal quallfyhg want. (2) the date on vhlch m m g s  w l d  
be bsl  beuuas of me hltbl q w W g  went. a (3) me dated Soci.1 SecuriVa dstermhatbn. You murt 
b ~ l f y  me SElB vimln 30 days ol  any r s w l o n  d S o d  Security dlubmty bsnsflts. 

. Ext.nslons d COBRA for S.sond Oualilvlno Evan* - la rpwse and chlldmn m w h g  . . 
COBRA mverage. h s  lbmmth p r k d  maybe;dsnaw to 36 monms I another qudyhg  event 
ocan dump me l s m m m  prkd .  d pu gne h e  SEIB Umely no lw  of me rsmnd quaMyhg event 
The 3 h m m  p r k d  MU ~n 1- the date 01 me tsrmha0m 01 emp4oymsnt a redudm In hovs 

Thla extanrlan Ir avdlabis lo a s p a s  and chUdmn rewMw COBRA mverage I me m m d  
c m p l v a  or l o m a  anpbyss dl-, bsmmer ended  In Medlure. gsb dtmwd, a n  me cNm rtDpr 
balnp esglbb unda the p n  u a dependen! chW, but only I Iha swn l  vwM have caused .e sparse 
or &!M to lore mmmge under me #an had the first q u a l m  mwnl ml omMd. For example. n s 
mwmd smptoyse b termhated fmm emplopen1 abus fsmb w m n g s  undsr COBRA. m d  men b b r  
snmUs h Medbm, mla second went W l  nrely ba a rsmnd qusugng went mat w l d  snuls ma 
spouse and chlmmn to extended COBRA covsngs. Thb b so because thlr svsnt muld not cause me 

I# 1 4 4  L O W  CdMRNUEMWM H S W  RUI 

5. You extend m r a g c  la up to 29 mmmr due to your dlubUl(yand mere has bssn a lhal demrmhalon 
mat you me no langsr disablsd. 

You do not have to show mat yw am hrunbls to dlmre COBRA mnthualm m n g e .  Howsver, undsr me 
law. yw may have to pay aU a put of me pmmhm la ywr COBRA mnlnualon mvenge. Them Is a g n u  
prim? of 30 days f a  papent of me rsgutatiy adleduled premium. 

Not.: I p~ .re enUM to Medlcars bafore p u  bsmme a quaUUsd bsnslidary, yw may slsa COBRA 
mnfhuafiM m r a g s :  hmaver, p u r  Msdl-m mvcrags wls ba pdmary and your COBRA mfhuatbn 
mvsnge MU ba ssmndy. You musf have Medlura Pa* A and B In Mdsr to have fun mwrage 

Keep the SElB Informed of Address Changes 
In mdsr to protnt y w r  l ~ l ~ a  tights. pu must keep me SE B nlonned 01 any changer h the address otfamuy 
memben Y w  should aIM keep c w h n  you mmds d any noUws yw rsnd to me SElB 

If You Have Any Questions 
Clusrtbnr mnwmhg p u r  COBRA mnlnualm mvcrags dghts may be eddresred by camp me SElB at 
1.866.836.9137 a 334.263.8326 or by maU at me mntacl b led blow. Fw mats I n f m a h  about ywr COBRA 
rights. me HeaM lnrunnw Pwbsl ly and *cmuntabully M (HIPM) and omsr Imr affecnng gmvp health 
plans. YL.11 me U.S. Oepurment of b W r  Empbyss BanaMI Security Admhhbstbn (EBSA) wbslm at 
mm.dd.govlebsa a Ull hehtdl-has number at 1-86e-444-3272. For mwe h l o m a h  about health lnrunnw 
options available lhmugh a Health Insunnw Mavkstplaw, v k U  mm.hsalthcare.gov. 

SEiB Contact lnformatlon 
All nolwa and nquerts la Infmmah r h l d  be rsnt to the fdowlng address: 

Slata Employssr' lnrunnw Board 
LGHIP COBRA S s d m  
P.O. Box 304000 
Montgomery. AL 3613049W 

3. You bamme mvemd. aWr elecnng m n l n u a h  mvcngs, undo, another gmup plan mat d w r  not 
Impose any prwdrfhg m d b n  sxdvrlan f a  a pmexlrfhg mndlbn ol  me qudmd bansfldary. (Note: 
mere am UmltaUona on plans imporkg a p r e ~ l n g  mndlbn of exdurlon and rudl  ex&rlons wlu 
bemme praNblted bsglnnlng In 2014 under the Madabla Cam M.):  

4. You bemme en lLd  to Medicare; 

1014 LOWUMRNMENTMALM INSUWCE PUN 



I : 

9: 
vp- 
i ' BENEFIT CONDITIONS COST SHARING 

To quaUfyas plan benefits, medh l  ssrvlws and ruppUar murt mast the fdowing: 

They must be fumbhed after your mvsragebemmar effecUM: 

Blue Cross muL determine bafom. durlng. a ansr rerviws and rupplter are tumbhsd that lhay are 
m.dlcs6y nswsrary. (Note: all Inpatient hosplbl s u p  and a m s  outpatlent procedures murt be mvlevsd 
by Blvs Cross. See UUOzalon Mlnagsmantssdon for dstab). 

. PPO banefits must be tumlrhsd whlk you am mvcred by lha LGHlP and the prwlder murt be a PPO 
pmvidsr when lha servlwr are turnishe4 to you. 

. Separate and apart fmm lha requkemant In the pmvlour paragraph. ssrvlws and auppllsr murt be 
furnkhed bv a ~mvldsr Iwhelher Preferred M e r  or nM) who Is mmnlzed bv Blus Cmsr as an 

right not lo pay lor tons a a l  rervlwr or ruppbr tumWled by wrUh psnons who am not Madlul 
Ooaon (Mot) wen If lha rervlws or suppYsr am rrllhln lhs scope of h e  praf4.r~ Ocsnrs Can Blue 
Cmfs Curmer  Sanlwr n w have any gueslon uhsthsr w vmvidn b mmodred bv Blue Cross as 
an appmwd provldsr f a  thsiervlws a iuppues you plan c i m c i ~ n ~ ,  

Servlws and supplter must be tumlrhed when h e  LGHIP and ywr m a n g e  are both In anan and fuOy 
pdd fa. No benclib will be pmvided f a  rcrviws yw rocaka a b r  the plan a ywr m m g s  ends. m n  If 
lhsy am for a m d l h  whlch m a n  b a l m  lha LGHIP a ywr m e n g s  n d r .  

*mount. In .xc.ss of th. allowad mount: As a gmanl mla. and as explained In m m  deal1 In 
' O N I ~ . '  ma a m m t  may o n n  be tenMcanLtv lass than lha Drafdah amrd chamas You 
should ba .ware mat whsn ushg out-o(.n.twon <mvidcrs b u  can hcur sbnmunt a t -d -pxks i  
expasst at the pmbI0.r ha1 not mnmaed ah BCBS or their 1-1 Blus Cross sndlm me Shteld plan 
la a nsaoSted n ts  and lhsv un b 0  ~ x l  lor amounts h srwss d As a l l w d  amount For aramols 
~ ~ t d - k t w o n  ~mvidsr d&s mav ~ c h d s  smenska andllarv charoat IbUed bv lhs fadltv & a 
phpldan) rmh i s  Implantable dsvi&r for uhlch'no s n n  ranb&sm& Is ;va~abd as mere &argss 
am not separately mntldsred under h e  LGHIP. Thlr means you vlll ba mtponsibk lor mess charger U 
ya u w  an w t 4 - n M  prwlder 

O u t d - h a  Sowices 
BCBS has a nrlaly of r&Lhrhlpa wilh olhsr Blue Cmrr andla Blue Shteld UWNsas referred to generally 
as 'Inter-Plan Ragunr.' Whsnenr yw obtaln healthcars rcrvlws wtslde of BCBS'r r a M w  area. lhs 
dams for mare rcrviwr mav be Dmcsrred lhmuoh one of lhssa Intar.Plm Rmnmr .  whlch Indudst lha 
h e c a r d  Program and may lnduds nsgoSted ~a<onon.l Acmvnt arnngpnam av&bla belvam BCBS and 
olher Bba ~ D I S  and Blue Shlald Uwnsaar. 

TypbPy, whsn accarrlng m a  outrlds the BCBS ssMw area, yw w!d obtaln u r s  f r a  healthcare pmvldsrs 
mat have a mntnrmal agreement (1,s.. ara'putldpalng pmvidera') Alh the Iwl Bba Cross andlor Bba 
Shteld Ucsnrss In hat other gsographlc .ma ('nos1 Bba'). In m e  krtanws. you may Dbtaln cam horn 
nonpsrtldpalng healthcare pmvidcrs. BCBS In both Inrtmws am dsrcrlbad below. 

A B i u e C a d  P m g n m  
Under the BlusCardO Rognm, when yw accarr m e m d  h ~ l t h u r a  ssrvlcsr *In the gsognphlc 
ama sewed by a Host Blus, BCBS vlll remain m s p s l ~  for tumOkg w r  contrama1 obllgatbns. 
H-Y~C the Host Blue Is r c s p s l b h  f a  m m & p  with and generally hurdhg all Intenctimr with b 
put ldpalg haallhum pmvlden. 

W h e m r  yw a m s s  mwred heallhcam servlws MIUlde the BCBS ssnlw am. and the dam ls 
p r - r d  lhmugh lhs BbsCvd Rogram. lhs a m n t  yw pay for mared  healthcare rsrvicsr Ir 
calculated based on the lowsr of: 

. The MLd -red charger f a  ywr -red servlws; or . The mgotietd pdw lhat the Host Blue makes available to BCW. 

Obn, thb'nsgoUated pnw'vlll be a slmpla dltmunt that r d m s  an ach.1 pnw mat lhs Host Bbs 
p a p  lo vour healtham pr0vld.r Sonsmar. It Is m srmated prka mat Wsr lnto s-nt rpadal 
amnomenla wlh ~ u r  healthcam ~rov lda  or DrovI0.r OraD ha1 mav h&ds met d SslUsments. 
l n w n b  payments..andlm other crsblts or chupaa. ~ c & l d l y ,  It mayba an av&ga pdw, based on 
a dbmunt that rasulU In axpaded avenga M a g s  f a  rhl lsr  types of haaimcare pmvlden ancr takkg 
Into acmvnl the Isme Wet of u a n a a ~ s  as with an arUmated pdw. 

EsUmated ~ d d n a  and avaram Dridne Qolna fomrd. a b  take lnto acmunt adlusmentr to mnaa f a  
wsr a ulder a;mnaaon 01 i o d r n ~ ~ & i  of-past pmng f a  the types d tranra& modmcamns n ~ e d  
above. Hanver, such adjutmenls win not ane l  lhe prim BCBS usas for your dalm W u r a  they win 
not be spplhd mboacthly to dabnr almady paM. 

Lam In a r m d  number of stater may requks lha Host Blus to add a surcharge to ywr calculah. n any 
state laws mandate other IlablUly ulwlaUm methods. Indudkg a surcharge, BCBS wu ld  l h a  cahlste 
p u r  IlablUtyfor any mvemd healthcare rarviwr &ing to appucabls law. 

8. Negotiated (non-BiueCard Program) National Account Arnngements 
As an dtamatbe to tha BlueCa14 Pmprun. ywr dabnr for mMmd healmum scrvlws may be 
pr-ssed lhmugh a negotiated N a h d  W w n t  mangemant with a Host Blus. 

Caiendar Year Out-ofPocket Maximum 
The calendar p a r  wl-of9adiat mulmum b t p s W  In lha tabla above. /UI mst.shulna amamts fulcndar 
piv deductible. wpaymsnt and rmnrunnw) la In-nstwon m s m d  rsrvlus hat y& or your'lmliy b 
rsqulmd to pay under tha LGHlP apply to lhs calendar p a r  ou t -o fWst  mudmum Cmw lhsmaxbnum ha. 
been reached. m e n d  expanses of h e  ryp. ma1 count t-mr me m m u m  w i l  be pald at 100% d the 
aIOIW m m t  lor me mmmder of the dendar p a r  

There may be many expenses you ye mqulred to pay under the LGHlP that do not mbnt towar4 h e  
catendar p a r  an-d W e t  madmum. and lhat yw murt mnvlu. to pay wen a b r  yw hare met As  
catendar p a r  a * 4 W s t m a x b n u m  The Idlowing am r a s  sx8mpl.s 

Out-of-netwon m r l - s h h g  amounts (dsdudbks. mpaymants, m(nsuranw): . Amounts paid for nm-mered wrvicss a suppLs: . Amounts paid for servlws or supplkr In exwrs d the r U d  a m m t  ( fa  sxampb. an wtot-nabwk 
pmvldar mqukar yw to pay ma dlnsrsnw between the aUarsd a m m t  and lhs provldsh lDul 
charges): 

Amounts pdd for servlm a rupplter In axwas of any plan Umlts ( fa  axample. a Umlt on lhs number of 
mered  h l b  f a  a partfwlay twa d ~mvlderl; and. .. . . . Amounts pdd as a p n d v  ( f a  axampte, fawn to pmwrdfy). 

The calendar p a r  wl-of .Wet maximum appuaa m a per penon p r  cakndu p a r  barb. auWa to the 
funny m&m. 

The ulandar par frmUy outof-podrat m h u m  b an agQreQal. ddlsr amount Thb means that aI mounts 
mat munt Unard h e  ndMdual ulendu p a r  out4-&et m m u m  win count tomm me IamYy aggrsgats 
amount Onw lhslamliy cabndu p a r  ou t -o lWst  m m u n  Is met. ansctsd bendla lor a l  mere4 ImUy 
members win pay at 100% of h s a l l w d  m a n t  lor the rsmakder of lhs calendar p a r  

Exampls: H m e  m a r k  the frmlty reaches the maxbnm of 16.250. that m a  m a b a h  m w n d  h e f i b  
w U  be m a m d  at 100%. Out d expanses f a  all other famlty mambcn vlll mnUnus to a n t  tarard 
ma bmlly maxbnum ol112.500. 

Other Cost Sherlng Provisions 
The LGHlPmay mposs oher t y p t  d mr t  rhadng requirements ruch as the Iomwing . Per .dmlsslon d.ductlb1.s' These appiy upon admlrslon to hospltal Oniy one per admbnon 

deductbls b requlnd h e n  two or more famliy members have expenses tsrvlUng hm, Injuhr 
rewhed In on. acddenL 

Copey~nts :  A copaymant Is allxed ddlaramount you murt pay on mwlpt of ura. The most mmmon 
axamp b ma omw h i 1  mpaymant thal mwt ba aaLtshd whm you go to a dodctr d w .  

Colnsunnsm: Ca(nruranca Is h e  amount lh.1 yw mutt pay as a percent d the a l l d  m w n L  A 
camon axample Is the parwnlsgs of lha a lbwd  amwnt lhat you mutt pry whsn you mcalvs other 
covered rarviwr. 

c. NonPaRicipallng H e a i l h c m  Pmv iden  Outside tho Blue Cmss and Blue Shioid 
Of Alabama SonrlCe h a  

f. Member LI.blUlyCalwIaLton 
When m m d  healthcam aarvlwr are pmvMsd oublda of BCBS rcrviw area by nm-putldpalg 
healthcare pmvldsn. theamount you payfor ruch servlwr win gsnerfly ba based on eltha lha Host 
Bbe's nonputldpaUng haahme pmvider Iwl payment a the p M g  arrangements raqvked by 
applicable stale law. In lhsrs s h a h s ,  you maybe Uabh f a  the dmamnw batmen lha amwnt that 
the nm-partldpat!ng healthcare provldsr b l h  and lhs payment we Mil make f a  the m r a d  rervlws 
as rat fcdh In lhb paragraph. 

2. ExwpLtw 
In r m s  s x w p h  cases, BCBS may Day ruch dabnr baed on lhs Damant BCBS w i d  make Hws 
wsm pagng a non-panidpalg pmider kdde of the BCBS sarvlca aka.  as das&ed slrewhsm In 
lhb benefit bmkkt. whew the Host Blue's mmspondlng payment W l d  be mas than ma BCBS In- 
aervlw area ~npar t idpUng pmvidcr payment. a In BCBSs dols and absdule dbcrswn, BCBS 
may nsgotlats a pamant with such a Drwldsr on an s x w ~ L h  bmlr In other excsnlon cases BCBS - - -  ~ 

may uri other p&&ent barer, such as b k d  mvered d;arga.. to determlns the amount BCBS win 
pay for ssrvlul rendem4 by nonpanidpamg healthcam pcwldm. In mere sllualoru. yw may be 
Uable lor h e  dmemnw between h e  amount m u  the MnpanidpaLhg hsrdmcus pmrida b l h  a d  
lhs payment BCBS dl msLsla the -red rsrviws a1 set lorn h lhb paravaph. 

The mount you pay f a  mered healthcam ssrvlwr undsr thb anangamsnt MI be calculated bared on 
ma negoSte4 pdw [lower of slthar bUld m w n d  charger or negoUated prim) (Refer to the d e s d p h  
of negoUated prks under S a h  A, BlueCa14 Rogram) made avaUabte to BCBS by the Host Bba. 

1014 L O W  MYERNMENTWW W W C E  PLAN 21 2014 LOW 00KWMENI HEALW INYlRLNCE PUN 



4; 
INPATIENT HOSPITAL BENEFITS 

Preadmission Certification and Post Admission Review 
To be slbbls for lnpalsnt hospital bansfib. all InpaUcnt hmplbl admbrhs and r t a p  (sxwpt med ld  
amsrgancy must have Pmt-admbrh Ravisw) murt ba reviewed. appmvsd. and wrtMad by BCBS as 
msdtully nswsrsry bsfas you are admitted to Ihe hos~ltal. SElB mnbad.ulth BCBSfa haam manaasmsnt 

BCBS wlll only cartlty the mmdlul nmussny of the nqumst.d b.n.flt, not whether you am .llglbl. 1. 
n u k e  the nqumshd b n m l h .  You am nsponsibl. for h l n g  awam of the IlmltsUons of your b.nmlh. 

TO 0M.l" pmadmlsslon cmRMuUon: 
Y w  a p r  pmvider murt tsbphona BCBS at least seven dap b s f w  the pmpsed elective horpllal 
admbrlon at 1.800.551.2294. It 1. your nsponslblllty to make sun this 1s don.. Fsllun to comply 
may nsul t  In reduced b.n.lih. 
BCBS MI d a s n h a  *hemar ms pmparsd Inpatlent hoaplbl admlrrlon and stay am medically nswssq .  

To obtain post-admhslon rmvlw: . Yw. your ~mYlder a a DC- adng for you murt tcb~hona BCBS at t.800.551.2294 ulm dstaUs d an 
sled& admlrsh prlork the edml;th.~Admlssht due to emergency dlagmls shwld ba reportad to 
B C B S ~ W t h . n l 2 h o u n m w ~ I t b y r ~ D n u l w n W h d o r u . A R u  
p U r  admbsh, p~ a ywr phpldan may ba asked to supply mitan h f o r m a h  regarding p r  m d M  
and tmahant plan Fanum a -ply may mrun In raduwd bansfib. . Ywr pmvidsr and the hmpb l  must p M a  BCBS ulm all medical mmrdr abnn your admlsrh upon 
rwuat.  
BCBS 4 0  d a s n h s  *hsmsr lhe hpathnt hmpnal adml r rh  and stay w r s  medluUy nswssuy and 
*hather the adml r rh  was f a  a medical emergency. 

Subject to your rlghts 01 app.1. If you do not obtain p.admhslon cmrtmuuon w post-admbslon 
appm.1 of an Inpatlmnt ho.plhI admlmslon and SW. BCBS wlll pay no bnmnb f w  your h o s ~ l W  stay 
w I w  any rehtsd chug.. . If you oMln a d m l ~ ~ l o n  urtl(lutI0n but not wlthln the s~s1lI.d ttme l lml t~,  
you w111 b. rasponslbl. lor 1600 deductible for tho admlsslon Inshed of the nonna11200. 

to k. s u m p  

inpatient Hospitai Benefits for Maternily 
The SElB may nol. under federal law, mlbta bmsmr lor m y  hospiW length d stay In m n m l o n  ulth 
chldbb-m la the m o h r  a nsubm chld to less than 48 h m  lolomno a nonnsl "soma aelbrv or less Ih.1 
96 h a n  f m h g  a wraman aacth, or requh that r provider &ah authdGtlon I r a  6a LGHIP w 
hsuram Issuer f a  pradblng a length d stay no( h sxwss of the &ow psrbdr. Hanvsr. il h a  hpalant 
horplW slay b gmatsr than 48 hwra f a  vaghal dellvsry and 96 h w n  for Ceraman S e a n ,  par1 admbsh 
review must ba obtained fmm BCBS 

NOTE. Newborns $410 ramah hmpltaumd ansr me m o h r  Is dlrchargsd MI rsqulm wmcatbn d mdca l  
nswrrfhlhm BCBS. 

Deductlbie 
The dedumbla f a  s a d  w r W d  hpatlsnt hmpb l  admbrlon Is 1200 (with a $50 p r  day copay for the 
second through thefmh dry). Y w  we mrpanribb for paynant of the dsdvcllbls and mpsyna t  to the 
hospbl There b a separate dsdumbls f a  each edml r rh  a madmlrrh of aadl m m b a  a a hmplbl 
sxwpt *hen 

Them b mas than one admbsh b tmat the same pregnancy. 
Two a more family mamban ulth family m w n g a  am a d m W  f a  acddsntal I n ~ ~ a  mwlved h me rams 
acddsnt, 01 

Y w  am banrkmd dhctiyhom one hmpltal to mother 

1014 LOUL MMRWEMHEUTH IXSURCHCE P U N  23 

4, OUTPATIENT FACILITY BENEFITS 
dJ 

The bsnenu baa .  are avanable f a  chargas by a fadkty fw  the type of sarvlcar and suppuss listed (sxcapt 
bad, board. and w n h g  care) *hen mdsred by a provider and furnished In b w w t h n t  dspsmsnt whUa yw 
an not an Inpathnt: 

Fadlily charger f a  tmahant of a msdtul emergency (tmahsnt of sudden and severe rynplomr mat 
requts hmsdtats msdlcal anmfkn) .R.r a 1200 sopaymmnt. C l m s  ulth emergency man charges that 
dond  msst medical smaqsncy guldshsr ul0 be mnrldsmd undu Majar Msdlcal. 

. Paynant d the hmpflds chargar f a  shop dbadar ssrvlwr rendand h an appmnd sleep d b a d a  
d lnk  Flaua mnhct ma BCBS Curtamer Saviw Department for8 k t  0 t h  appmvad fadllthr. . Chsmahsnpy and ndlatlon muapy sawlws anmr a 125 sopaymont p r  vlslt. 

Hamodfalyslr ssrvlwr . I b r  a 125 copaymmnt p r  vlslt. 

IV therapy anmr a 125 sopaymmnt p r  vlslt 

Laborat~yand pathdogy sarvlws aflmr a 13 copaymmnt p r  h.1. 

X-ny tarvices dmr  a 1100 copaymmnt per vlslt. 

Surgarydtmr a 1100 copaymmnt or cost p r  visit. 

It b p ~ r  msponslbUlty to make sum lhat ywr pmvidu OMahr prlor authorhlka from CarsCore NaUonal. 
BCBS's r a d l w ~  mview omanlLalon. f a  wrtah w b t h n t  dlaonorls o r d u m r .  Falure to m ~ k  mav 
resuit reducadbansnb. ifyou do not obtain p h  a&rizatloni~ an oltpausnt dtagnosb pmwdire'bls;l 
bebw. BCBS wiO pay no b a ~ l i u  f a  ywr wtpathnt pmcadum or f a  any rataled charger. If p u  obhh pr la 
authdratkn, but not ulthln the rpdf ied Ums Ihlb. yw 4 0  ba rarponrlbts lor a $25 penany fortha wtpatlsnt 
pmwdura Y w  am abo rasponslbls f a  balng amm d ma UmbUonr of p v r  bsnsntr. 

0 CATSca" 
o MRI 

PETScan 
m MUGA,,ated Cardlac scan 

BUIaWc Surglul prouduns .n llmlhd to one par lilmtlm.. subjact 1. prlor authab.tlon by 
BCBS. Benefits for there rarvlwr are prodded only *hen the rsrvlws are psr lmsd  by a PPO proddcr. 
#I phpldan and anarmsrta ravicar mlalsd Lo Barlabtc Surgical pmwdure am llmllsd to SOX of me 
anowable n te  

h-ver. If p u  u e  admlnw as an InpaUent h any horplt.1 mmsdlately a b r  recavtng any of the above 
outpadent rsrviws lor i m l n  seven dap  rewMng lestr)no outpalent hmpltal baelim M I  be avaitable 
a you lathore selulwl ana mole sswlwr Inrtsaa wl0 be mnred  as lnoalsnt h o r ~ l b l  bandm Wo.  n ~u 
ar i  ahmsd ar a hoapltal InpaIhnt mafa than asvan d a p  afisr the pi-operatbe isre, no bansnb &be 
paid f a  mam under any part of this -bad 

1034 LOUL EOKRNMENTHULW INSURbNCE P U N  25 

Inpatient Hospltai Benefits in a NonParticipaUng Hospilai in Alabama 
If p u  mwlva hpabnt hospUl ssrv(wr In Non-PdcBathg Hospltal In the Urbama rslulw am. no 
banflu are payable unaer Ihe plan unbuths relulws are to beat an a&enUltnJury 

Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act 
A msmbsr *ho Ir r s w w g  benefits h mnaction wlm a martsctDmy MI a h  mwka coverage f w  
ramnswtllon d the braart on which a mastemmy was p h e d  and rsmnswction of the &er braart a 
pmduw a symmsmcal appsanncs. pmrtharar. and b e a h a t  of p h p l d  mmpscatbnr at all stages d the 
mastectomy, hdudhg lynphedema. 

Traahant d s d r h r  am made by ma attending phpldan and paUcnt. Banant. lorlhb mahant ulll ba rubbct 
10 ma rams calendar p a r  dedumbbr and mlnrunnw pmvlrlona mat apply for o h  medlcal and surgical 
bsnalitr. 

Organ and Tissue Tnnspiant Benefits 
Inpathnt andla wtpalsnt banants am avaihbla fw sUgbls ba~pbntatlon rsrvlws and expenses f a  the 
fdbAng organs and Ussuss: 

. heat I . Iher 1 . panmeas 1.  skin 
bone m a w  I . lungs 1 .  m e .  1.  kldnw 

• heart v&e I. maOhl ( I 

'*I used tor the LGHIP, the term 'bone m a w  mnapbnt' Indudas Ihe hawsdng, the LnnaphbUMI and the 
chemotherapy mmponmb. 

Banenu shall ba payable d y  ma pro-tnnrptant servlws, the banspiant pmwdum and postdlrchargs 
ssrvlws are parlonad In a hosplul or frdOly ulth mldl Blue Cmrr has a M e n  -ban You may call 
Curtamer Se* lor h s  name d h e  hdnty newest yw. ma approval d a hmpltai a b d t y  f a  
mnaptanbtbn rcrvlwr la h l m d  to the rpdc typas  of onpans and k r u s r  stated h the approval. 

F a  mnsp1ant.h rerv(wr to be mnsbema sPgibbfa cavsngs, p h  banalit amtermmatka lmm BCBS shd 
be mqulmd In advance of the prawdure. BCBS sh.0 obWn the nswslary mealul blonnallon m a  make a 
astenhatlon as to whelhsr the reNlcss .re In ScmmMW 4th 9sner.W a m p t w  p rds r rha l  msdlcal 
standards and n d  'InveslpaUonal ' (Sw 'Gbsury 7 

Transpalallon Induoas pm.banrptant. V.nsphnt and part-abcharge ssrv(wr. and b u h e n t  d umpOcaUons 
aner mntphnmtbn. The InlW baNptantalon na lua lm at Ihe bansplant faouty aws m t  rsqute a prlol 
benmt dsterm~na~on mmugh BCBS 

n the msmbar 1% me redplent of a human wgan a Ussue uanrptant pmvlourty ttama. aona onpan 
pmcurement msb are mvered. b l e d  to %earth. rsmovsl of Ihe organ. storage. hntpalat lm d the rurglol 
hawssllng Dam ana theonpan. and other mwluliy nswsrary p-rsmsnt msb 

hgan  and TLIsus Transplant BaMlits are sxdudsd: 

For redcar or axpensas lor raptawmsrdr d naNd 0rgg.N ulth aRMcl.1 a machmld devices. h a11 
hospltab acd fadllthr lor all onpans 4 M t  sxwpUon: 

When donw banalits am .vanable thmugh omar group mvcnga; 

When govsmmmt lundhg dany  khd Is providsd: 

When me mdpbnt Is not mvsmd under the LGHIP 

For redplant a donor IodgIng, fmd or banapatrUM msb: 

For donw and procuremant aarvlwr and m r b  Incurred wblds the Unnsd States. 

Outpatlent Hospitai Benefits in a NonPartlcipating Hospitai in Alabama 
n p u  rewhs outpabent horplml reMws h a Non.Pardcplthg Hospital In the Uabma relulw m a  no 
banenu am payable unasr the phn vnbrr the rslulws are to tmat an .&enmi Infiry 

PrecertificaUon 
Certain ouipathnt rurglcaUdtagnortlc pmcadumr mqulm Pria authdratlon. C m b d  BCBS 1800.551.22s4 
befare mcaMng Ihs following rsrvlca: 

. Blaplumptarty . Redutllon Mammqhrly . SsptdRhhoptasly Uwla Rawdura . Barlrbic surgery 

BCBS MI only wrdiy the medical nawsslly d the requartad bsnslil, n d  *hather you are aUplble to r e w b  
me w u a t e d  banant 

I1 Is ywr rsrponrlblUly 1. make sure pmwrlhlulka b obtahed fw catah wtpabnllsurglcal dlagnostlc 
procedures. Fallurn to m m m  may mrult In rsduwd banenb. n p do n d  obWn prawrdlcatlon of an 
outpalntlrurglcal dbgmslc pmwdum. Blue Crms MI pay no banenu f a  p r  wtpathnt pmwdum a f w  
any related chargar. If yw obtah wrdncaUon, but mt 4lhh Nnms rpsdbd Ums Omnr, yw MI ba msponribte 
f a  a $25 penany f a  the w w l a n t  pmwdum. Y w  am abo responsible f a  balng a- d the UmbUons d 
p w  bancms. 



--- . . 
i . 
i/> 

UTILIZATION MANAGEMENT 
ALamabs Benefns are svsUabls lo you wiy when may mplace rewlcer, ore. mamsnl a supplies mvared 
by Moma re- of lhb mnuact For arampk. aibma*e bsnsrar may not ba made av.0abk as an 
sllsmaVva lo any b e m l  exc*asa (such u redbl Lierammy) 

Beours indhlourl cara mansgemant Is aaslgnw m provide the mosl approprtals banenu lor each MMu.1 
u s e  me AlmmsUve b n d i b  plan for any mambar may diner h a  mother marbar s p n  even n msy haw 
ma same medicsi ma l tbn  Rodding Msma*a bnenb  m you or any omar mambar la no1 m be m n s w w  
as w e ,  of ma nphl m admlnbkr m d  anlons !ha m u a d  u a d y  as 11 b mttsn 

I y w  bcibve Vld you should recelre Albmalfve bnaf lu you may wdm BCBS sxpbhlnp the ma-, lor your 
hG.1 if BCBS dalermlna that you sra a candldale lor haMdusl u s e  mmgemant. msy nl m n b a  yoo and 
t q l n  lhe p-sr n BCBS aemnnhst ma1 your medlcal m d i m n  aoss no1 mab you a subbk unalaak lor 
UIemalhe Bsndiu or il b demmlned ma1 you am no1 aopbls lor A l lemah b n d i b  msy WU mlm you of 
mat aadslon M s r  reulnnp me ds* you may wile lor mmrlderatm ruling all me reasons why pu 
ba6.v. ma1 rar sra rtsl allow lo AlmmaaM Benenu V w  mav abo rubmlt u l v  adaiuonai winen mlormatm 

Inpeu.nt Hospl t l lMfon 
11 Is your mrponrlbllity lo "My BCBS about all admissions. Failure lo now BCBS may rasull In a $800 
dmduc(lb1e on the hoapiU1 admlssbn. NOTE: BCBS MI only certify the msdcal nacesslly of ma requested 
band l  nol whaher wu are elblbk lo mcelw me rwusrtad bcnsflt You am rarwnslbk f a  balm a w e  of 

Conllnu.dStly Rmv1.1 
n ywr hospllal slay murt ba extended b a y ~ l d  the day. InlhOy aulhuhed, BCBS win mkd your provider 24 
h w n  b d m  ywr sdled~lW dlsdlarge 10 obUh &lcal data and procars a request for sOnrion-of-stay 
a ~ ~ o r l u b n .  Al ma compkun of h a  I&, BCBS win s m h  discharge or auhuhs addIlona1 day. fw your 
slay. 

ma1 y w  mink b related lo ywr requaal f a  rsmtldcramn il b u  fall to rubmli a requaal for mmr ldsn lon  
wimln r lxv day. ol  tha dadtion yw wake any rlght lo dlanengs mat dadslon iamr 

Y w  musl fDlm me pmmdurar h mb w d m  bslore y w  o n  brlnp kgsl a d m  sgdnrt BCBS lor Memr*e 
Benenlr Thb ama no1 changa ywr mhl  Io have inaMuaI dabs r&wsd unam h e  radon uttsa 'Fllhg r 
cbm. R d w i n g  cub Dedsbn and *ppulof  Bsnsnl Dsnbi- 

Delermlneuons by BCBS lo Umlt or R.duce Previously Igpmved Cam 
if BCBS has pmvlwdy appmved a mums of usament lo be pmdded over a paiW of m e  or nmbar of 
usamsnls. m a  Iakr adder  m lunlt or reduce h e  pr.vlwsly approvw -a ol m a m s n l  BCBS MI piva 
y w  enough advance mlnsn nonce m pannil you lo h iB la  an rppesl m a  obuln s dscubn b a l m  Uu dale on 
ahlrh care u UsrnanD u e  no longer appmved You murl fdbw any rkuDnabls rules asuMMd l w  llPnp of 
ywr appai. such as Urn. Omlb wimh which ma appeal musl be (Pea 

BCBS win m l n a l e  ywr AIIemlfve Bendits when any ol  h e  f o M g  happns: . The llme umn (r any) of h e  wmcn &math  Benane pian expires. . BCBS delemhss mat me M e m a t h  Bsnsnb being pmided m y w  are no iongar Medicany Nscesraryor 
are no longer r m l  a s * .  . Y w  n u k e  cue, ueabnsnl rarvica, or suppika ma1 are nm set fDrm In ma AlbmaUva Bsnsnb plan. 
Thb dms m t  apply U cars. tmamanl. serviwr or suppika rrsm f u a  aepank medical mndl lh.  
Ywr covecage ends. 
Y w  tall BCBS, in w h o ,  ma1 you wish lo stop MsmaUva Bandb. Thlr MI lcmlnats your A l lamah 
Bsnanb no more mn fhe day. after rswlpt of ywr nonce by BCBS. 

n you iau lo notiiy BCBS .bar1 a hosplklluUon y w  may rsquarl a RamspacWs Ravlw f a  medlcal 
n s w r m ~ .  Raqwala f u  mmarmcUva mvlsu murt ba rubmittad lo BCBS elmsr In urilhg a by mlephona. All 
h f o r m a h  m q u M  lo pmceaa ma mmspaclhrs mv lw  murt be rubmittad to Blue Uoss wihh  hm pu. horn 
me dab me d a h r  r a m  Is bsued by BCBS. 

In order lo axpsdlla ma m t m r p c l h  m h w  p-rr you may maU a mpy of your m e a d  r e d s  lo BCBS. 
T h  m d r  u n  ba obbhed horn the hosplbl or baaling pmbidar. Y w  will be nsponrlbls f a  any and an 
charger a r d b d  *nth m W s l  and mpyhg of medical m d r  for mwlcal ravlew. U p  dalemhrmn of 
medical nscerslly ma clrlm vUI ba pmcssred acmrdhg lo the pbn bansnb and MI Indude any appnubb 
penally f a  f rb rs  lo pr-My. 

Disease Management 
Disease Management Is r program f a  m a b a n  diagnosed with Dbbelm. C m a r y  Mcry Dbaara, or 
Chronls Wsbuclhra P u h w r y  Dlraars (COPD). Thlr pmgnm b avahbla Lo eClbb msmbanal no r m l  as a 
put of your bendill. 

Het.mlY Hanrp.m.nt 
'Baby Y w n s r .  SElWr Mammlly Manapmen1 P q n m  m a n  a mschvllrm f a  WaniW,lnp hlgh.ll.L: 
p r e g n d s  a d  m-ghg *am lo pmwnl oomp0mkms a1 h a  ma of de0vsry. k smn as a pregnancy Is 
m n h e d .  the pallsnl or ma dator should call BCBS at 1.800.551.2294. By p ~ r t l c l ~ f i l n g  In 'Bdv  Yourun" 

Blue Cmss uansialas your doctdr haman1 pian hlo dally adon, m mpmvs ywr h e m .  They educals you 
h the dbaua p-ss h hops o l a d d h g  m!aprar ma1 un lead lo hosplbl and emergency mom vltns. 

FlnL Blua Cross IdalMaa manbars who wwld baelil fmn the pmgram by analydng medical and 
phamace~llcal dams Once IdanlMsd. an h v i l a m  and welmma WI Is malled. end noliiylng BCBS b . t m  lh. end d the second blnwsler, your 1npetl.nt d.dusbbl. and'eppllsdle 

ally copafis) will be waked. M s r  s&g m e  quatnonr mgardhp ma pregnancy and medical Nstory. 
BCBS's nuns mnuar  the aator m &lah WalUonai dnical hlmatJon Wa*kg rnth you and y w r  m*or, a haald w n  pmfarsmsl s p d a k h g  In ywr m a i m  dewbps your 

Pnonsl  health goslr such as b t h p  wight or lwamg ywr baod pressure or bimd sugu You gel t u p m  lo 
hap y w  n.ch ywr geab. Fd&g BCBS's evabatm. ma axpaclan1 mother and the pmbidsr are rant hfmaUon hrthsr sxpblnlng L a  

pmgrm MaUomIly. me e x p e m l  mother b rent s %pedal Baby Vwnalf kll Uul Indudes wuumns l  
mated& relatad m pngnancymd c h l u r s .  Evsqlhhg about Iha pmgnm b m M c n h l .  Only yw, your d m  and Blva Crms Llnow you am In the 

pmgrm. CaU Blue Cross a1 1.800.551.2294 
Case Management 
V w  may ba s C b k  lo mceiva certain a l lemah beneUb lhmvgh IndMduaI cars management when ywr 
m n d i h  1s calarlmpNs u r w l m r  long tam care. The pmgnm b admInlsbmd by BCBS. To mnlaa mam mu 
1.800.551.2294. 

Appeai of Utiiization Management Decision 
BCBS providar a lhras-step appeals pmcsrs that elmsr ma paIhnl a me attsndkg p a e r  u n  hhk. M 
Informah required Lo p m M a  the appsl  muat ba rubmlltad lo BCBS *nthh one p a r  fmm h a  dab h e  
d a h s  m m  b Issued by Blue Cross Blua Shkld. if BCBS debmhes that p U  are sulUbk cambale fW hdMdUsl U S E  m.Ngsmsnt. they MI n o w  you The 

b m r  MI kl you mat you are sYglbla lo receive MamaaM Banana 6 you, ywr prmlaar and BCBS u n  agree 
m an UIsmaDM Benenl plan E x w l  (or exaeUanr sUted h wu UIsmallva BsMnU Dbn. a1 Isms and 
m d l m n t  of ma oonuaa ipply m you whue yw.mcefva &ma& ~cns f ib  

1014 LaUOOKRH1ENTHENTWINSURWCEPLW 

ROUTINE PREVENTIVE CARE "Peer to Pee?' Review 
The ananding pmvbiar m lnlhla p e r  to p e r  nv1.w by mntadng BCBS a1 1.800.551.2294 or 
1.866.578.1395 10 dbarss any case f a  which requestad services ware redumd or m-authorlzsd. Bared on 
me bkphona dbcurrbn, ma BCBS physldan win delamlna whether h e  wlghal dadsion was appmprlah a 
shwtd ba amended. Pmpr  d m m s r d a h  Is pmvlded m ma palcnl m d  me attsndhg w a r  aner ma 
revla. 

Roulhs lmmunlullonr and prswnlfvs cam services when pmvlded by an In-ns* PPO pmvldsr am 
~ M I W  d 100% of lhe BCBS allwnbls rats with no daductlbla or mpapant. 

~ P ~ ~ ! d l r a g r s s m s n l  bahrssn the ansndlng pmvidar and a BCBS phpldan b no1 mrolwd by p n r l o  p a r  
nvhw, mvhv of the cars can be lnlhted by the mendbg pmvldar andlor pattsnt vla a bbphonls a mlnsn 
raqvet1 10: 

Blva Crorr Blvs Shkld of Nabma 

vlslt m bcbul mm)pnvsnaMrarvres lor a Oslng of r p d c  mmunlllUons and p n w n h  cars service 
mars now that thb Gsl b rubled lo change in aadiUa, lo ma rswlcss bled on L s  websib. me ldlowlng 
PrewnaM servicesare a lso~~&ed d 100% of h e  a h a b l e  m b  with noawudiblaor mpaymenl 

450 Rivcrchua Parkway East 
Blmhghm. Alabama 35218 

1.800.551.2294 
Uh1y .b  (once by age 5. man once bsfwssn agar 12-11) 
CBC (once swry 2 calendar para ages 8-17, men once awry cabndu p a r  age 18 and Mer) 
Gl~oose msl lg (once every calendar p a r  age 18 and Mer )  . Chdssbrd larlhg (once every &ndar p a r  age 18 ard M a )  
TB sun krling (once bafua age 1. once batwesn ages 14.18) 

W l c a i  ramrdr are obUInw Md r&vsd once a muan n l e u a  has been received h a  me psunt n h e  
Commlttw mar adanbnsl msalwl Informam m jusOly the authorlzallon. Ihs services are a M l W  if no1 the 
nm-aumorlzam b u~hald If an orloma aawne dedsbn b mversed bY ma Commlnw h e  ansmlna 

m e  h u n l u h s  and pnvsnlbe cara services when pmvided by an wt-of-nsbwh or "on-PPO p w s r  
am m ~ m d  a1 80% of ma a l m b b  ram. subJed to me cabndar p a r  dadudbk. 

For d a h s  mvdvlng m w i u i  Ndgmenl analor rssdssionr of coverage. you may a110 Ne a nquest with BCBS 
la an Indspsnaanl. extamai ravlaw ol ma daclsion V w  must requatl lhb external review *mm 4 monms of 
me date of w r  recab1 o( adverse Mndi l  aslannlnsUon or Rnal a m n e  .meal dslamin.mn Your rwuast 
fw M axtaial rsvlsw murt be h mllng, must slab y w  are lOing a mquadior extsmd review, and m d t  ba 
submined m ma followlng adban  

Blue Cross and Blua Shleld ol  Alrbama 
Ananuon: CurtDmcr Service @peals 

P.O. Box 10744 
Bhhgham. M 352024744 

ll y w  mquasl an axtsmzd ravlew. an hdepndent q a n h l o n  MI n v l w  BCBS'r dadsbn. You may submit 
addlUona1 m e n  mmmantr lo the r a m  qanlmlbn. Once your axtsmal ravlmr Is hllatsd, you vUI r a u h  
hrmmbnr .ban how m do thb. If you gke h e  nvlsw 0qanhUon addIlona1 InformatJon, ma ravlew 
wganhlon win pmida BCBS wih eopkr of mlr add1lhon.l h f m a m  lo albw BCBS an m m n l t v  lo 
m ~ l d a r  me dental. Both will be nolMsd In mllng of me r a v l a  0qanbKWn.r dsdslon. The d&rion &ma 
mvlew q a n l u l o n  win be b a l  and binding. subba IoarblmtJon. 

1014 LOULGWERHUENTWEUTH INSURLHCE P U N  



: -' PREFERRED PROVIDER ORGANIZATION (PPO) 

When you use a PPO PrDvidcr lor rcrviws w beamant omcrthan roulna pravanUvd rawitas. you will rewive 
anhand  bensnm. When yw DO NOT use a PPO Provider f a  sclvlwr mnred  under Ihs PPO program. 
mnred  ralvlws ampaid at 80% ofma PPO h a  rchcdula under Major Med id  aubjecItotha deducflblc. 

TO maxhhs your Mnsnm, see* medlul rewitas hom a Preferred Provldsr who psnidpaer h the Bluecud 
Relamed Provider hpanlzallm (PPO) Prognm. Ream ul 1 8W.810 BLUE (25831 ol a m r r  As  Blus Cross 
website at w bcbr cmheaimbavemdst hurl to Rnd out U y w r  provider b a PPO manbar. 

Preferred Provider (PPO) Benefits for Physicians, Nurse PncUtioners. and Physicians 
Assistants 
TO take advanlage of PPO bsncnm. shpiy chmrs a PPO RwMer horn me BlvaCard PPO dkaday. Your 
pmidm Mi nie ail d a h r  f a  PPO bcnaflb. W h a  your PPO pmvidar raquarb ma serviws d anmher pmvldar 
fw  yw. mat pmvidar murt slsa be a PPO P r M a r  in wdcr for yw lo rswlva PPO benefits f a  hls w her 
r d w r .  1.e.. an anaIhsridqb1 when surgary is padomed or an hdspsndanl iaboratay w radbWal lor 
dhgnmtk selvlws. 

. Dnk. cv. S.IYIU. - VU aUmlnaUm. d(agnas1r. a d  baabnmt lor an Ekm~a W W r y  In a P W  
PIOWer's omw. The term beamant b Industwe of I n d w  mhw surgery. You mum1 pay a $35 
Phyrlstan cop* or a $20 Nun. Pnditl0n.r or Physician Asslsbnt sopay fa*achvbl t .  . Sumlc.1 Cua S.rvlus - rsrviws for mcramns and cuning nmcadurer and lhs usual cam b&c and 
aiie;opanams. IW r d u h g  tmrmr.s 6na d~siootlmr, ~ w a e  enammpic p w m r  rempniud m a  
amplea by Blus Crow and of an arsltthg pmvlaer who assisb In pdmmanw d rurg ld  pmuaums 
whsn medluQy n.wsury Surgcrl.1 pdonned In the omW are sub)scl lo a $35 c o p y  . i n p l s n t  Y.dl~i Can  S.wius -vlrltr by a PPO RDviaer f a  your on w bsamsnt v h k  you are an 
hpalsnt ana snmba to h p l e n l  horplW banslib under thb m b a b  h a n v c r .  you vl0 not rewive 
benslim f a  Inpalent med id  cam rsrviwr if yw mwive bensntt la tu rg id  care. obrtswbl care. w 
raalallm menw rerviwr d&o me rsme hordW SUV bscavte medical care rsmmt am hduaed In 
the surpicai, ab;amcal w ndtaion menpy re;. n-&r, n Biua Cmsr d d a a  i n p e n t  medical m e  
was medlwliy nswssary and unmiatad lo the mndlUDn for uhlch p u  rrsra hosplbUzed p u  vl0 rawiva 
mediul u r a  saNlws bencnm. 

Y w  vlli not be rasponrmic fw  n m - m v e d  msdlcal rsrvfcss whsn yw ura a PPO Rovldcr. sxwpl whsn 
msra b a a n c d  agmsmsm m ma in ma PPO Provider's omw, taWw palanl mrponrlblOly fw  
n m - m e n d  sewitas. in which care, yw Mi be rasponsibb for the loel charger fw  ma nm-covsmd 
m e d U  scrviws. . ConsuI1.Uon S.rvI~s - Umltad to m a  mnruiuUon each f a  medldna. surgery. and mammlty by a PPO 
Provider Uhih 111 InpaLbnt d h g  each pcrbd of m l n u a l  hoapilaUraUan. The o ~ n a u b l m  must ba for m 
Uhars wh jv ry~quHng the r p d a l  rkM w knowladpa ofAe PPO Rovldar. . DIa~nostk X-my - ssrviws are m e n d  h fun. . 0utp.U.nt Diapno.tis Lab and Pathology - mvenga Is pmvMed fw  wlpabnl  diagnmlc lab and 

rsrviwr whsn p d m e d  by a PPO Provldsr. Th. m0mb.r pays $3 wpay p r  test. . Emerpsncy Rown Physician S.wlcss. u m  ana beamenl bye  PPO Prmdsr h horpl1.l emergency 
r m m s  h an emergency other A m  la surgery or chlidbkth You must pay $35 Phys1sl.n copay or a 
$20 Nun. PnS1IUon.r or Physician &slstult c o p y  la each visit. 

Noh: The term 'lee rd ledl lc nlsts u, Ae SEiB'r nsgohted fee lhal me approwd fadlilies and prmders 
hare sgrew to actspf Iu pmvdhg ptychiabic w substanw abuse rervtcss The lee rchwub appued lo nm. 
a p p m a  hduler b mnrbtentvlm me lee p d  tome appmved l a d l e s  

NOTE: A mmprchanh OsPg d an appmved mcnlal health pmvidan is avaUabis on VU BCBS wabsie a t  
w.bcbul .org 

----. 
MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE j / ;  PREFERRED PROVIDER ORGANIZATIONS (PW)  

--. 
v 

The LGHiPir designed lo pmvMa lhafDODwlng mcnlal health and rvbrtanw abuse bsncnt . OulpaUsnl Care 

- indMdual ThsrapylCwnrcUw 

- Famny ThcrapylCounrahp . Emargsncy Sanriwr . i n p e n t  and outpaem sarviws in a SEiB Appmved Fadlily . Alrnhd and Drug Mura CMlnrcOng 

Ywr benefit m n g c  wiO vary dspsndhg on whsmsr yw chmrs an apprwed or non-appmved provider. 
Ywr  mvcmgs with an approvad pmvidar is as f a a n :  

Lgpmved Outp.l.nt P rw idsn  - When you v b l  r CeNRsa Reghal Mental HedLh Center w omer 
- v M  pmdm ( h t  a v a l a k  al w ~ . m g l  ouqur*nt truaunt lor o r W  and m t  e W m  Mi 
be m m d  YD lo a maxhvm d 20 rlsim sadl ubnaar war at $14 m a v  wr vlril lOmer moarmenb mar 
anniy b a s d ' m  me rswiws r a w i ~ . ~  ~ s n i a ~  inner; day hmpiiaGubn, ~ n l a j v s  day ;&ant a d  
i u p h e  day beamam are covered uplo a mumum 6 60 days inch cabndar par at 80* of fee schedub 
vlth no dedudlbh. You on rewive up lo 40 oulpalbnl rubrlanw abuse a a r r l w  covsma at 100% of fee 
rchedtic Mlh no dadudlblc at an approved daylmcnhp w m a k a d  baamen1 pmgnm. 

Ippr0v.d inpa11.nt Prov1d.n - inpallent prychlaMc m a  and rubrlanw abuse lmamcnl rswlvad at an 
approved hosplld will ba mvared at 80% of fee schedule after a S2W fadulydedudlbla par admhrbr,. 

To ba eOglblc lor hpatbnl fadlily banslim. aU Inpalent admlrrhr and slays (axwpl medical amergandas 
mat murt have Pml-admbrbr, Ravlm) must be mviawad, appmved. and w m  by BCBS as msdluOy 
nawsaary b d m  yw am admind. The SEiB has amplaled BCBS as h e  UlYkatbn RC*W Mmhlsbalw. 
BCBS can be reached at 1.800.55f.22W. 

BCBS A0 miy wony ma medlcal nawrsily d the mqusrted bencnl n n  **hsmcr p u  us elbibla to rewive 
me mquesled bswnt. You are ratpondhis for k i n g  a w n  of Lha hleUDnr d p u r  bensnm. 

To t&a advanlapa d bmsUb pmvldcd by ma rppmved pmvldcn undar h a  SEls'r Prslernd Provider 
oqanhatkm (PPO), -tau SEiB. BCBS Curtmar Sclvlw, w vlrlt wmr.bcbsal.mg. W h a  yw make an 
appdnmsnl idcnlfy yawreif 8s havhg the SElB'r Manlsl Heah  and Subsenca Muse PPO. 

beamen1 la mental m a  newws di ladsn will be covered l w  up lo m m u m  of 20 vlrib per calendar par 
at 80% of fee schedlle aner S2W annual aedvcabb You wil be responsible fw 20% of fee rchedub, plus 
anvdmemnw bebeen me fee rchwub amount and the amant the nrovlaa d l a e s  These b no sovan- 
fw..srvicas provided by a nmappmnd Llcsnsed Prder rha l  CMlnrab w ~ w n &  Sodal WDncr w w i l y  
mat Is mbiy darrmed u 8 s u b s m u  .bus. outpU.nt or nmldmd.l facUity. 

Nonapproved inpaU.nt Provlden - inpalent paychiaMc u r n  and svbrenca abuse lmamanl r e c a m  at 8 

nmannromd hmnilai Mi be -red at 80% d fee rchdula aft- 8 $200 dedudlbla osr .dmisslon. You are 
mrp&lbb f u  26* of fee rchdula, pius any dinemnw betwssn me fee schedule ;mount and ma amwnl 
that ma FacUily charger. This m w n l  u n  be subrenlal. as much as 40% of ywr bUI, and Is not aUplbb for 
cowrage under any other pan d ywr rnnbad M m l r r h  Prcwm(icallm is the rama as h an Appmed 

I .  

!/. -1 PARTICIPATING CHIROPRACTOR BENEFITS 
L; 

The Partideathg Chtmpac(M P r w r m  Onen members rmerai advantages Men Ihsy vlril 8 Partidnauna 
Chmpradu. Simiwr an coverarb1 80% d the Chkopradc Fee Sdlwi ie vllh m aabudlbb. ~ u d d & n g  
Chlropracfors have agreed to Rb a1 dabs  and amp1 Bila Cmrr' p a w e l  (along mh me 20% cdnsvrsncs 
due tmm me mtbntl as Damen1 h L O .  the DaUenl vlli not be balanw-Wled Iu anr-wer.nnoe- dluasr U 
b a s r ~  pap&* wili gpoio ihs Pamdp.ung h i w a c ~ o r .  

- - 
Pnwr tmu lm Is required after the 18th b l L  if m m  than m a  pmrlder is hi= uUked (even if the pmvidcr Is 
unda Aa rama Lax idanUflulhm number) pmwrtmcalm is mquked agah after ma 25th vlrlt. 

PanIdpang chbopracforr may be tsqulred lo precntlty relvlwr aurlng the rmm of y a r  (rsabnent il M. the 
Pamclpalng Chbopnuu wiO hillale Ae pmcaMfuUn pmcsrr fw you il prasNRulon b denied. you wil 
have me right toappai me denbl 



4, TOBACCO CESSATION PROGRAM 

A T&CCO CsssaUon Pmgnm Is now pmided by me SElB for b mvered members. hgnm IlmraNre u n  be 
obtained thmugh w r  Wclherr Pmpnm and m our wsbrlta. For mom h f m U o n  about avaLbm pmgnmr. 
please u U  A1ab.m.'~ Tobasso Qdtlln. at ~.~OO.QUIT.NOW (f.#W.7M.8669J. Onlhs rsrwrcer .nd support 
am also avdhblemmugh the f d h g  OqanilaUonr: 

I I m . u n w r . o m  I 

T h  SElB al mtmbvns each m m b a  80% ol  the m r t  of ma program. a m  no deducuble Them Is a Msms 
m u m m  benefit o l  $150 Tobarn c a r s a h  smnarr and a l  forms d nlmUne raplaument ale m r e d  rervtwl 
F m m  your name adalert -bed numbs, and a mpy of lobarn ussaun  program mcalpb to 

American Cancar Sodew 
Agsncyfo. Heallhum Research and QuaUw IAHRQ) 
NatfmI Canwr InrUNte 
Amcrlm Lung Asrodation 
Maw Cklc 

Stat. Emp1oya.s' I n s u n n u  B o d  
Wall- D l v b  

PO Box 304900 
Hontgom.ry. AL 561304900 

w.awwdavcholcar.wg 
m.ahm.gov 
m . m n w r . g w  
m . h m g u t ~ ~ ( g n o b a r n  
w.1 

Pmscrlptlon m.dluUons for l o b a m  wrratfm are mvamd Lhmugh the Prercriplm Dnq P r o g m  and are not 
rvb@ct to ma $150 U(eUms m a h m  benefit. 

NI claims must benhd with th. SEIB, not BCBS. 

2014 LOCU 0 0 M M N T W M T H  INSWCE PUN 

SEIB DISCOUNTED VISION CARE PROGRAM 
> 

!. 

The SElB has mntraeed lndapandsnlly with a p  care pmvldan across me state to form the RwUns Yirion Cam 
Nelvmk. This la not Blu. Cross prov1d.r natvwl. Chad with ywr pmvldcr w virlt w r  wab page at 
*m.alrslb.mq prior to ncalvhg t c h r  to damrmhs *metha the provider Is a panidpaling provider. 

Under the RwUns Wskm Cara Na*. panidpaling pmidcn  will onar the f&whg dlsmunted rsrvlws: 

RwUnevirion examlnalm (me par par)  ............................................... 140 Member payment 
RwUna v i s h  sxamhalon-dlh d U s h  (one per par )  ................................... $45 Member payment 
lnllw mtae lsns  illling ...................................................................... $25 Member payment' 
Fdbwup a t a d  kns visit. .......................................................... $25 Member payment 

R u n e  vision u r a  aramlnahr. hlhl -tact k n r  filUng and fdavupmntae  lens vidm are subk.3 to the member 
papnsnt. smtad above and will be accepted by the pafUdpaling provider as hlll and cornplate. Bs rum yw lsnUfy 
ywrseU as a I d  gowmmant ampbpe bdwe rewhing ssrvlcar. 

h e r  *Ion m e &  rvrpsry b avaUabta at a dlrmunted rate thmugh Penidpaling VLIlm Cara Pmvidan. Y w  may 
&ah a b t  of Plnidpaung Pmvidarr at: www.alssib.wa w m t a e  SElB at 1.866.836.9137. 

r -1 

- PHYSICIAN SUPERVISED WEIGHT MANAGEMENT - AND NUTRITIONAL COUNSELING PROGRAMS 

The SElB will mver appmved phpldan rvpsrvkea n igh t  manapsmsnt and numtfmal m r a k g  programs. The 
SEIB MI rehbvna up to 80% ol  the mrtD(a phyr1hi.n supervlrad n igh t  maMgement prcgam a n d l w n ~ m h a l  
m u n r s ~ g ,  with no dsducUble, not to srwed $150 pa u k n d u  par.  You u n  apply f a  mtmburcment by 
fol~ardlng ywr name, address. m n m e  number. damno ohma number. m v  ol the omoram rsaclnllsl. and . . .  
pmgram &itact h fo -M to: 

. . - ,~,. -. - 

State Employees' Insurance Board  
Wel lness Dlv is lon 

PO B o x  304900 
Montgomery, AL 361304900 

866.838.3059 

Madlcatfm. elmer by prescriph w owr the muntar. am axduded fmm me program. Food and Dietary 
Supplams, ampt In mme by the Supcrvbsd Wstgm Managmant Plan. am axdudad 
fmm the pmgram. 

You must Ria your claims for this b n e f l t  with the SEIB, not BCBS. 

i ,, 

MAJOR MEDICAL BENEFITS 
Servlws not mwred under the BluaCard PPO program m prld at 80% of the &vmd m m n t  as Majm Medlul 
bmdtltt aner a $200 ukndar p a r  dedudbk, mubnum d 3 dedumbbr per famw. Major Medlul dedudmhs and 
cdarunnca apply to annuel out~f-pocl;et maxhwmr of $6,250 forlndMduala and $12.500 aggregate for famaes. 

Only m e  dedudbk Is appOut& to mvcmd Maw Mid s w n r s s  Incurred fo. bsabnsnt ol  acr*lsnW Injuries 
mwived h me urns acddant by two a mare fmUy mcmberr wim IamOy mvcrage. 

Y w  are rsspmrlble fw  payment d your cove& Majm Medld axpnaaa to which the deduaibla applks. 

Covered Major Medical  Expenses 
Soma of the mortfmquanVy uUued maw medld wrvlwr are lbtea be lw  Cmtae BCBS Customer Ssrvlca at 
1 800 321 4391 for spedlic mwng. quarms prim to rarvlwr belng p r d e d  . Ssmlpllvats rmm and boud. genenl nurshg cam and a1 normal and nawsrary hospllal ssrvtws and supp6.s 

*men hospbl bendtr haw expired. Mew M.dW Benefit. fm rsrvlcar and ruppllsr prrmdsd to InpUenu are 
svbjsato the mqUlnm~nUand Umltahs olpr.admluh c a n N l o h  and port-admlssh rsvlm. . Allergy tastfng and trsabnsnt. Thb m n g e  b offered mly under the Majw Medlul benefit regardless d 
*mether a PPO Provldu b used. . Phyr ld  therapy Is m r e d  at 80% of the allannw. subjae to ma calendar p a r  dedudbls and lhned to 15 
visit. each ukndar par.  PRaufhom.rion b requked allar ma 15'"~ to dabrmfne ma m d u l  nswsslty for 
a t h u e d  therapy. It PmaumMLUh i. not obtahed. mvsnge fw  all ssrvlws assodated wlUl the 16th and 
subsequant *It. will be denied. It Is yDvr reapanr0Ulty to make sure that p m w f U l u M  has bsen obtalned. 
b a s e  uII 1.800.551.2294. 

. speech therapy Is mwred at 80% of the d h m c a .  sublee to ma cahndar p a r  deduaible and Umltad to 15 
*It. each ukndar par.  PnsvfhomafiDn b requlmd after me 15'"s~ to dstemha the m d d  nscasslty fw  
mnth~ed  therapy. H p m a ~ d u t i m  Is not obmlned, m n g e  for an rervlws assodated with the 16th and 
subsequent visit. be denled. It b ywr maponslbUlty to m i s  sum mat praaulkdraUon has been obtahed. 
Please call 1.800.551.2294. 

. OccYpahal therapy b mwred at 80% ol  me a l w n w .  rub(sc( to L a  uleMar p a r  dedumls and h t e d  to 
15 vis~t. ..a miendar yssr hsv lhwiw@ IS required after me 15'" virlt to datamh. the medlol newsrity 
fw mthued  ~I.PV. If oreaumorlrsh b not obtlhed. mvsraaa f a  a1 services auodated with ma 16% and ..... 
subsequent VLIlt. MI be dsniad It Is ywr resmrlbUlty to ma; sure that o m w n i i l u h  has bean obtained . . .  
m a r e  ull 1.800.551.2294. 

Dlabellc e d u c a h  b mwmd at 100% of the aOomnca. wlUl no deduclbh. IhHed to tfvs dlabstic darrar (In an 
approved dtabatfc eduuUon fadlty) per psMn vimh a sir-month period for m y  dtabatlc dhgnmls (not held to 
hrvlln dependent dtabetics): servlwa In excess d thb m a h m  must be wrdRsd thmugh u s e  management 
-11 1.800.551.2294. . Prosthetic devices such as an a M  a m  and orthopedic dsvfcar such as a leg bra-. . MdlcaI s ~ p p b s  such as oxygen, crutches, rplht., cart.. busses and braws. a.*lngss and nssdtas (other than 
hrvlln ruppht), catheters. a9otlomy bags and ruppOar and aurglul dmsslngs. . Pmtasshal ambulanw rarvtw appmwd by Blue Cmas to ma cbaeat hosplW mat muld lumlrh ma bsahcnt 
needed for ywr m n d m .  A provider must carWy hat the ambuhnca ssrvlw war nscasaary. I Blue Cmss 
~ ~ Y O S I S  n. . Rental oldurabh medical equipment veadbed by a Pmvidu fw  thcrapeulk use In a m m w s  hma. h l led  
to ma amwnt ol  It. mwnebls and curtomarypurchaae prim. It .pu can buy H for !art thm you u n  rent It or U 
It Is not avahbta fw  rent, Blue Cross will pay lu nOavsd purchase prlw. Some sramphr ol  durable medlul 
equipment am wheelchabl and hospital beds. 

1014 LOCUGOKRWIENTE~LTH INSWCE P U N  



Hamodhipi. services pmvMad by a Paddpatfng Renal DlaCh Fadlily. 

m l a  duly nunhg ssrvim ol  a Ucensed rqb tsnd  nuns (R.N.) w a ilcenred pradcal nma (L.P.N.) if: lhs 
aerviws .dually rsquka ma prolssthai skins of a R.N. or L.P.N.. are p d e d  oulrlds of a hospital a omsr 
bdllly, and are provided by a p e r m  not related lo you by blmd or mamhgs w a member of p u r  hwsshdd. 
NO bender are prodded fw  any wrlodlal cue. in order lo bs mvsmd. pdvala duly nunhg services must bs 
pnurtM.d by BCBS. 

h a s  heawl u m  b mvsrw at 80% ol me aUaraca. rugscl to Ihs denaar p m  asdumbla. when rarvimr us 
rsnasmd by a pamdpabp Hame hsaim agency I Is ywr rsrp~10lUty to make sum mat prscemnuurn has 
been obtainw. Caw 1.800.551.2294. 

Polnr-or-..~. drug benmnta. (See Pnasrlptlon Drug ..ctlon.) 

MEDICAL EXCLUSIONS 

in sddlUon lo alha sxdurbnr rat forUl In lhb hsndboak, lhs LGHIP wlti not p r d s  bsnanu Iw ma f&whg. 
whemer w not a Pmddar pc r fms  or prarcrlbat ltmm: 

A 
serviwt or expmras f a  sladva abortions. . S e h s  or axparas f a  acupunshlm. bbfeedback. and other forms ol  scii-cam or seChelp Uahhg. . hmsth.sir service9 a supplbr both by h i  hfflbalbr. 

. Serviws, cam. uealmsnt or ruppUas fumbhed by a PrDvldsr that b not ramgnirad by BCBS as anapproved 
pr0vid.r Iw ma tvps d asrvim w supply bshg bmbhed. For amp la .  lha LGHIP reserves me rlqht not to 
pay for rams or ail sewcat 01 ruppihs CmWled by wnah panon* who are not m w i u l  ace& (M D.r). 
even ii h e  services w suppler am vilhh lhe rmpa of lhe provlaw'r Gmnre. Csli BCBS Cwmmsr Service Y 
wu haw MY auerUon as to whether wur ~rodasr Is mmclnlred as an amroved omdeer for me rsrviwr or 

Services w expenses for w related lo AssIstad R.produdk. Tmshnolony (ART). ART Is any p-ss ol  
takhg human q g r  or r p m  or bolh and pumg lhsm into a m d u m  a ma body lo y to cause mprodudon. 
Examps of ART are h duo fartmmtkn and g m a b  In@afaIb+n mnrfsr 

C 
Services or expanses of a hospital stay. except one fw  an emergency, unlatr BCsS has approved and pe- 
~ l t m e d  U b s b  p u r  admb&. Services or sxpnras ol a hospltai slay f a  m emergency If w am not 
nollled vithh 72 hrun, w m our nan business dry afhr yDur admbrbn, w ii w dalarmhs mat lha 
admbrlon war not medh!& necessary 

services w expanses f a  whM a claim b not p m w y  submInW lo Btue Cmss 

. Services ar expenses for psnonal hygiene somlort or conv.nl.ns. llamr such as. abcandlllonen. 
humbmp., whklpool balhr, and p h p l u l  nmsrr or exsdra sppmsi Exsrdse squlpmsnt b abo exchded 
Some sxMlDlar ol  sxsrdse wubmsnt are rhosr. m i o l U  sxsrdss bicvdes or backs. *smhD or ndabla 
mrbtanca machhsry. and equipment producing llolalid mmurde evaluations and rbsngmanj1g. Treabnca 
pmgnms, lha use of aqulpmaa lo sbsnglhan musdsr a d h g  lo preset N ~ S .  and rewed services 
p r f m e d  dump lhs same lhsrapy s s r r h  are abo axduded. 

Services or arpsnras f a  sanitrrhnm u m ,  s o n v a h s ~ n t  un, wrest care, hdudhg cam In a nurrhg 
home. 

Services 01 expanses for m.m.tls surgery. Cotmallc surgery is any surgery dons p h a w  lo lmpmvs or 
change lha way one appan. 'Rsmnsw*a surgcv b any surgery dona prhsny b reston or h p v s  lha 
m y  ma body M s  w mrrad datmillss that mruU han disease. muma or binh dafactr. Rsmnrwc&a 
rurgsry is a mvcred bensflt, mrmalc surgery b not. lSaa Wmsn ' t  Hasim and Canwr Rlghu Aa' for 
sxcepUonr.) CampQcaIbns or later surgery ralated in any way lo mrmalc surgery b not mvsred. swn ii 
medically nswrrary, ii caused by en a d s n t ,  w ii dona for mental o~ smollmri relief. 

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS 

Actlw Employees and NonMedlcue Rellms 
RarcrlpUm Drug Cad Program 
Gnsric drugs mvared at 100% ol  ma aOownce, rubbdloS5 w a y  p r  p r a r w t k n  whsn p u  use a 
Pamcipbg Phmacy. 

Polnt-of-SIIe Drug Prognm 
Bnnd-name drug3 m w e d  at 80% of h e  &wan-, subledlo lhs calandar p a r  Ma@ Medlcai dsdudbia 
when yw use a Putlsip.tlnn P h . c y .  I I . Y w  are msponslMe far paying ma phamacyfa your pms&llm. I 

chbnr au~&Uon numbar k u i n d .  
. . .  . 

Fils p u r  pmrcriplbr dalm vim Wus Cross Blue Shhld ol  Alabama, using ma Majw M i c a 1  Pht-of-Sab 
Prasdpuon Drug Clam f m  (CL-94) wyou can file your d a k  onuna at w.bcbui.org. 

NOTE: NO bandits .n avaliablm for prascrlptlons purchasad a1 a NonPartlclpallng Phumacy. 

Medlcue nUnea and Mmdlcarm Dawndent. of retlms covered under LGHIP's Employer 
Group Walwr Plan (EGWP) 

Pnscriptlon Drug Card Program for Genmric Drugs 
Pmhmd1Ensnd.d Supply Nalwork Pharmaslms 
I 5 m m v  fw  3W.v ruoolv 

I $10 m b & f o r ~ ~ a j . s i i ~ $  
$10 mpayfw OWay supply 

5 mpayfor 3Way supply 
$10 mpay for 6Way supply 
$15 mpsy for 9W.y supply 

Polnt-of-Sale Drug Pmgnm for Bnnd Drugs 
Rmtall 6 Extended Supply Natwork Phmnnaclms 
20% mhruranw aflar ma $100 drug dedudbh b maL Dedudble applies only lo Msdlcan m r e d  Pan D 
Drugs. 

NOTE: AM Medicam Pan B-aUpibh pmrcdplbr drugs, lo hduds HsprUUs Vacchss and all dlabstlcsuppibs 
are exduded horn EGWP m n g s  rhce Ihay am mvared by Pan 0. I 
Drugs purchased a1 m out-of-netwon phamacymry be mvsmd under w r t l h  drcmslances. such as for 
an illness whib UavaUng ou lds  the phn'r rcrviw araawhara a nstwal;phmacyir unanllabla. 
Drugs purchased at an out-01-natwal; phamacymay rsquta higher mal-ahamp. MdiUonally, yw may 
haw to pay ma full charge (or lha drug and submit documentalon to rswlva nlmburtamcnt. 

if p u  am not snroaed In EGWP, p u  have no pmsdqllon drug mverags lhmugh me LDul Government 
Hedm insurance fin. Please sea me EGWPplan doansnu to kna. lha rubs p u  murtfolar lo 
rsceke mcorage vim mb Medicare prerwUon drug plan. 

u You may m l a c l  BCBSprbr lo surgery lo fmd w t  whamar a pmwdun MI be rsmrWc&s or mrmauc. 
You and ywr phpldm must pmva lo w r  saUrta& hat surgary b ramnsw- and not mrmab. 
You must shw us h l r W  and phpicai exma.  vlsual lhld measures. photognphr and medical r e d s  
batam and afhr surgery. Wa may no1 ba abia lo dalcmhs p h  lo p u r  rurgsry whether w m me 
proposed prDcadum wUlbe mnrldsred msmauc. 

n 6rms rurgsry Is .hip mrmaUc such as ear phrdng. neck hldu. faw lifts, buttor* and migh um. 
hplanu lo smell bul n m  bmatu (except as W e d  by lhs Wmsn's Health and Cancer Rlghb Ad). 
hat lmpllnb f a  m.lbpattsm baldness and m n a d m  d from ihar on ma fwhsad. in other rurgsry. 
such as bhphampllsly(spiMs), rhhopiarty (nose), amid peal and chh lmphtr ,  n dapnds on why 
hat pmwdura was dona Fw sxampb. a p m n v i l h  a dshlad septum may haw u w b h  bmamitg and 
may have msny shus hfa&r. To m m c l  lhis lhsy have reptoplasly. During surgery lhs phpidm may 
r a w a  a hump or rhaten lhs nose (rhlnoplarly). The raploplstly w l d  be nmrbucdva surgery whib 
me rhhoplatty m l d  ba dsnhd as mrmauc sugsry. Surgery to ramwe excess skim h m  ma spuds 
(blsphampbrly) would be mrmalc I dons lo lmpmvs ywr appannm. but r s m W & 4 0  ii dons 
bscause p u r  ayeads kept p u  han rsahg wry mil 

S s h s  w axpenass far bsalmant ol  hlury surtahed h Iha mmmhsbn ol  a cdmm (axceptfw Uerbnanl of 
hjury as a retun ol a m s d w  und lbn  or as a rarul of dmasllc ddanw) or for @aabnsnl whlh m n n d  in 
a prison. Jan, ar omsr pna l  h r U ~ .  

Serviwt or s x p s s r  (or sustodY un. Care b 'wrtodlal' when I b  p h a r y  purpose is lo p r d a  mom and 
board, mubs  nursiq cars, tnlnhg h psnonal hypins, and omar f m t  ol  reCc.rs or r u p r v l r ~ y  cars by a 
phpldan fwa  person who b msnhWor phpidbdlrabied. 

D 
Dental lmplanb hto, scrms. wbsl abow the bone and relalad apphnwr Services or expanses lo prepare 
ma mourn far danlal Implanu such as moss lo hcrsass the uppar end lounr j am or mair bordsn, thus m 
praars. puled tfrsua r q &  w m y  OIher surgary, bone grab. hydroxppam and Similar matarlab. There 
services. supples ar axpsmss are not mvamd even ii lhsy are needed lo usat condlUonr s h b g  at bW1. 
Mi la gmhg.  w multhg h m  an a d a n t  There ssrviws, suppibs w expenses am sxduded swn If msy 
are medlcally or dnlally nswsury. 

r Services for w mielad lo a dopondon1 pragrunsy. hdudhg me sixucsk prlod aRer deliwry. A dapndsnt 
pregnancy means me pregnancy of any dependant other h n  lhs con@act holdeh Mfs. 

E 
Services. care. w uaabnant you mmks aflsr lhs onding data of your covsr.gs. Thb means. far sxmph 
mat ii y ~ u  are In me hospltll whsn p u r  mvanga ends. wa vi0 not pay fw  any mare hospllal dap. We do no1 
Insure agahrt any mndimn such as pregnancy or Wury. We p d a  bsnslilr only (or rarviws and sxpcntss 
fumhhed whlb lhb p h  is in snau 

PrssdpUm drugs (or.nctlIs dpfunalon 

Eymglus.. ormnlaclisnrss orrehhd sxamhalons w UlUngr. 

m Services or expenses f a  *yo sxsrclru. a p  rdracfions, viruai ualnhg MopUa.  rhaphg lhs mmsa vim 
m l a d  lenses, or any svpsrym l h a a p  lo lmpmvs Won hdvdhg radial karslolmy. 

F . Services or expanses h anyfsdsral haspimi or hslll ly except as nquimd by federal law. 

m Ssrviws or expanses fm r m b a  foot un such as mmwal of mms w calluses or me bimmhg ot ndb 
(except mymuc nalir). 



G 
Unlsrr olharvise mqubed by appilcabte law. rsrvlwr w expenses mvarea h wh& w in part under the laws of 
the Unlled Stater, any state. cwnly. dly. t m  w other ~ovmrnmmntll agency mat pmvidas w pay. for cars. 
thmvgh lnruranw or any other means. 

. Inv8stlgaIon8l mamenL pmwdumr. fadlUar. drugs. drug usage. squipmenL w supplbr, InduaIng 
hwrapalkwl rsrvlws mat am part of a dhlul Ma1 Unaa fsdsral law. the pian wnnot acny membsr 
~amdmtbn  In an .omwed diniul Wbl. b orohlblted fmm droodno mwr.0. bsuuss member choo..~ to 
bUtfdb.1. In an aiimved ~ l u i  u&l. a id  I r a  denying &erais for & ~ n a  can that pl&i&ild 
o h d a  provide just because a mmbsr b enrded in an sppmwd dhlcal W b l  Thlr apposr m all appwed 
dlnlul  Malr that beat canwr w dher Wbthrsatsnhg dbearsr. 

L 
Sarslcm or slpmses that p u  are not bgaUy oMlgeted to ply, orfor Plhlch no charg. would bs made U p u  
had no hsah  m a g s .  

. Servlws or expenses for ueamrnt whlch aoer not require a Ilun88d pmv1d.r. given the 1-1 ol shpbdry 
sna the pbsnrr  mnaluon. wl l  not h m s r  rartaa or lmprm the paUenrr boddylunctlons. w 1. not reasonable 
as to numbs,. hequacy. or duraUon 

M 
Servlws wexpmsesw determine are nolm.diuiiy n.c.s.vy 

Servlwr a rupp0er to the eMnt tlut a member b. or m i d  be. enUU4 to rslmbuMmsnt undar h d h .  
rqudiarr  of whether the m m b a  pmpsdy and Umely appilad fw. w SuubmiUed d a h r  to Madlcue. exwpt as 
o t h s d s  mquted by federal bw. . Care and beams* form8nbi h88Ilh discden or dbaass (hdudlng rubrlanw abuse). 

. - 
Servlws a expanses d any kind for nlcotln. .ddicUon ruch as rmdclng w r r a t h  beament The mly 
e x w p m  to thb axdurbn b expanses f a  nlmflm wlthdrawd drugs prssolbad by a phyrldan and dispensed 
by a Uwnrad pharmadsthom an h - n s W  phmacy. 

Serdws or expenses of any khd pmvlded by a NonPutlclp8Ung Hosplbl louted In Abbma for Majw 
Mdlcal benflls w m y  other benslitr under thb -bad axwpt hpUsnt and wlpaUant hospllal benenls h 
cared  acddsntai Injury. 

Servlws m e  or mament yw mwfve d~dng  any period d Ume u l  mrpad to which payment for ywr 
m n g e  b KII hen Mds and mat nonp.vmmnt msulb h brmhatbn of -rage. 

0 . Serdws or expenses fw mamcnt of any m d l t h  Indudhg, but not ihited to, obo.ny, di.behs, or hsvt  
dbaars. that b based upon weight redudlm or dist.ry m b d .  Thlr axdurbn does not apply to Bshblc 

10- LOUL MMRNhlENT HEUM NURUlCE P U U  43 

bsnflm. For example, braws on the teeth ere axduded fw  m y  ~umose. even m D m m  a =man ulth a 
dsn palat. for surgery on the boner ol the jaw or bscauso of Iniury d natural hem Thi. axduion does not 
apply. axwpt u lndlutea abow for bracer or other onhodonlic a p p h w r .  to mosa rcrvlwr by a phyrklan 
lo Weal or raplaw n a N d  U.th which are harmed by .cdd.nhl hbry mwrea undar mmmd . Servlws provided thmgh bl.COIUYk.Uon. 

Denhi mamsnt fw  w miated to 1mmpomm.ndlbulu Joht (TYJ) dlswd8m. Thb h d u d n  Phase 11 
acmrdhg to the guldeUnar awrwed by the AudemY d Cranhandibular DImdcn. There mamsni. 
parmandn~ atterms twth or b;e m y  thby meet and iduds  such r e d w s  as baisncing the twth. shaping 
the Beth, rarhaphg h e  teeth, rsrtmaUve InamenL treatment hvDMng amfldal dental rbudumr such as 
am* bddgar or dsnhlms, C l  mouth rehablGtaUon, dantll h p h m ,  mamsnt fw  ImgulariUsr h the 
porftkn o f h  team (such as brawr a d h e r  orthodmuc app lhwr )  or a mmbhaum ofthare barnants. . Se-r. suppee., hplantabb dalws. equlpmsnt and accerrorla bUld by m y  out-ol-netwmkthkd patty 
vmndor mat am ured h surgery w any apentlvs ralhg. TNs sxdurbn does m t  apply to rcrvlws and 
svpplter p r d a d  to a manbarfor use h malr h m s  pmuant m e p h y r l h ' s  praralpth. 

Sarvlws or erpcnrer for or related wan. Urrus w wlltr8n8pl8nb axwpt spacmdy as alkwad by lhb 
plan. . Tnv.1, m n  I p m s m  by ywr phyridan (nd hdudhg mbr lanw rervlws olheruLls m m d  undar the 
plan). 

W 
SeTVIMs w expenses fw  an a d e n t  u Uherr mruiUw hom a d k  partidpath h wu, or any a n  d war. 
dedued a undsdared, wfmm a d k  parti4aUon h riot a W m m o M .  

S e h r  w expuer rendered for m y  dbears, Injury or mndltbn adrhg out d and h the ~ a n a  of 
smpbpent for which bsnenta and/or mnpenumn Is avalteMs In whole w h p n  undsr the pmvlrbnr of 
any I- eomp.nsnlm or apioysn'  IhblUty lam. state w federal. Thb .pplisr whether p u  faU to ffle 
a dsm under that law. it aDDUer whether ma law b c n f d  aoalnrt w assumed bv the OMD. it aooYer 
whether the law pmvidca f&hcep l~  w medical rervlwr as ru&. It appasr whaths;the p;adcr of '&ore 
servlws IU 8uth~zed as q u M  by the law. FhaOy. It appltsr whether yDvr gmvp has imunnw mveraga 
for benenta undar h e  law. 

Surgical procadurns U medically nawssuy and h mmpUanw vAth BCBS'a guldeUnss. BahW!z Surglul 
procadves an lhltsd m m s  pa IUeUme. rubjed to prbr authdwbn. BsnsAh are thole rsrviws are 
p r d e d  miy when the rervlcss us psr lmed by a PPD Pmvfder. *a phyrldan and marthesla servlws 
misted m Bahblc Surgical pmcaduss u e  lhned to 50% d the allavabis nte. 

Serdws a exparer pmvlded by an o u t 4 - n a h h  prw1d.r fw  any bsnenb unda thb plan. unless 
o m c d e  rpadRwuy stated in the plm. 

P 
P h y l u l ,  Spach, andlor 0ccup.tlonsl thanpy f a  the 1 2  and subsequent virlta that were not 
preauthwked. . Prkate duty numing. 

Servlws w expenses fwr.u..Uolul or educational therapy. 

Hmpilal admisrhs h vhde or in part vhen the patlent primarily mwivar rarvlwr to nh.billtlt. such as 
mid th-, rpsach mcnw, or ormpaami thmpy. 

Ssrvlwr or -mar any p r d e r  rendsmd to a member who b rmtabd to the p m l d a  by blmd a marriage 
or who mgulvhl mslder h the pmvidah household. Examples of a pmvider induds a phyrldan, r lcsnrsd 
rqbterea nuno (R.N.), a Ucanred practical nurse (L.P.N.). w a Ilwnred p h p i d  thsrapbt. 

Room and boud  f a  holplW admbshs In whole u In pan when the p rbn t  pdma9 mwlvss rarvlws mat 
muld haw bean provided on M wlpamnt basis b a r d  upon ma paUcnls mnd l th  and the services 
pmvlded. 

RouUn. -11 child ur8and muUnahmunlraths axwptfw the rervlws d c r a l t d  in-PmwnUvs 
Bensrm.' . ROYUI. phyIuI8umln~tlonsexwptfwths rsrvlws d e r m  in - P n w n h  Bencnb.' 

S e d w r  or expanses fu, or related to. s.xu.1 dysfunctlms w inadaquader not related to organic dksasa 
(~dess  me W r y  reruns fmm an a d  of daerUc vcoienw or a medical mndluon) a which us relalad to 
s ~ r g l d  S U  bmdonnaths. 

Simp stud1.s p a f m e d  wtalde d a heailhum bdllly, ruch as h m s  r i w p  sNdiss. whetha w not 
supwbed w 8uend.d. 

Servlws or swnrar  of any kind form mlahd to reverse .mdib.tlons. 

Servlws w suppIbs for auhtanw abllae lndudhg any s m b  Cmbhed by asub8bnc8 .bus8 nsld.nU.1 
f8dllty. 

Sewhs or slpsnrar to cam fw, maL ffli, s m d ,  mmwe or mphw bath or m inoaase the pellodmuum. 
The pedDdonUum Indudes the gums. ma membnns runwndhg the mot of a mom, the layer d bone 
mvsdng the md of a both and ma upper and I w r  )am and that borders, which mntain the d i .  fw  ma 
teeth. Cam to beat the pallodmuum, data1 pulp or 'dad' twth. hagulariUar h the p o s h  d the teeth. 
avmdal denw smdurar ruch 8s sans, bddger or denNms. or m y  0th- tlps of denhi pmwdum b 
axduded. Hydmxyapaffle or any 0th- maisrW to make the gums rlgld Is emded. 11 doer not mamr whether 
met purpma b to impms mndlUms lnrlds or outrlds the mouth (on1 cavity). Thars servlcar, ruppltes or 
expenses u a  n d  m m d  even U they am ured m prspva a p t h n t  for tslviws a pmwdurer that ue plan 

lOI4 LOUL -MEN7 CEUM INSURIKE PL*N 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Prlvacy of Your Protected Health Information 
The mnMentlrUty of ywr p a m i  health i n l a m a h  Is h m n t  to the SEla Under a new federal Isw d l a d  the 
Health insurmw PwbblOty m d  AcrmntablUly A d  d t996 (H-PAA). plans ruch 8s thb m e  are gcncmily mqtdmd 
to h n  the use and disdorura of ywr pmbded health h f m a k w  to beamenL paymsnL and health m e  
openMr .  Thib asstion ol twit booklet axphim m e  ol H W M s  qulemems Mdlmnal M m a m  Is mntahed 
in the LGHIP'r n o h  d privacy p n b .  You msy request a mpy of thb MUw by mnbcthg h e  SEIB. 

Dlrclorunr of Protected Health lnformatlon to  thm Plan Sponroc 
in adsr f a  yaur banenis m be praperiy ahhklsred, the LGH P needs to share ywr pmtecled health intormabn 
4th the alan smnsar  lme Slat* nl A h h - n l  Fm*g are CbCUmstanws under which the LGHIP may dbdoss . . . . . -. . . .-. . .. . . >. . . - - .- -. . , .- ,. . . 
ywr pmtadeA health M m a t h  m the plan sponsor 

The LGHIP may hbrm ths p h  rpmsuwhether you amenmeed h Um LGHlP 

The LGHiPmaydIsdor. rummvy health 1nbm.m to the plan rponror. The phn rpmvv murt DniliU use 
of that Infamath m 0bUhIng quotes horn hruron or modUng. omondhg. a termhathg the pbn 
Summaw health h1m.M b Iintomuth that summulws dalms hi.bxy. d a h r  .~psns.s. w of 

. .. . The LGHiP may d b d w  ywr protected health In fmaDn to Lhs plan rponrw fw #an aamhbmUvs 
pu-s. Thb b bauur. omplopor of the plan rpontor perf- m e o f  me aamhbmbvs Cncdons 
nswrrary for A. managsm.nl and 0peraUon of the LGHiP 

F d M g  am the resmcUDnr that apply to the plan sponra's use and dbdosum of pur prmadd health 
h f m a t h :  

. The ptan sponsor ull only use or dbdme your pmtaded hoailh Inlormatbn p h  aamhbwauve 
pu~poses. mquha by law, w u permnma under the H'PAA rsgubths S w  the LGHlPs prlncynoucs 
l w  mon h l m a t l m  aban pamind Lsor ana abdceums ol protenea haaW h f m a u m  under h l P M  . H the pIsn rponra dbdoass m y  of ywr pmeaad health InlormaLbn to sny d ita agenb w submbadws. 
the plan sponsor A1 mquh the agent w submmaor to keep your pmteded health h fo rmah as mquted 
by the HlPMrquiaUm. 

The phn rponsx A1 not use u db&re ywr pmteded health h f a m a t h  fu mpbymenbmkled a M n s  
w dsdslmr or h mnnsdbn * any other bcnm or b a &  plan d the plan rponror. 

The p h  rponwx A pompw m p i  m h e  plan any use a dlrdorvm d ywr pmteded health 
h f m a m n  that la hcarrhtentullh the urea ordirdorvms aOovnd h thb ssdlm d mb bmldst. 

The plan r w w r  Mi ails yw or the LGHIP to l n r p d  and mpy any pmmded health h fwmath  about you 
that is in h plan r p m r d r  custody and m W .  The HIPM mguiamnr set forth the ruler that yw and me 
LGHIP murt f h  In this mgud. Thsa u a  s a s  exwpuo~u. 

The plan rpmror will amend, w aOw the LGHIP to amend. any patfm of p u r  pmtsded health 
Informath to the sflent parmitted u mqulred under the HIPM mgutetbnr. 

Wllh resped to acme W s  ofdbdoa~~es, Ihe pian aponsw Wm keep adb&s~m Ikg. The dbdorure will 
go back fw  rk p a n  (but m t  b a l m  April 14.2003). You have a right to see the dbdosum bg. The plan 
rponrw doer not have to maintain the bg U dbdmumr u e  for wrtah plm mlated pwprss. ruch as 
payment d benenb a healthcam opcraum. 

The pis" SWIM AImake l b  htanal pradwr,  W r ,  and r e d s .  rehung to Its use and dkchrvm d ywr 
pmtedd h a h  infonnath wallabis to the LGHIP and to the U.S. Department d Health and Human 
Sarvlwr, wits designee. 

46 MI4 LOUL WVUWMENT HENW INUtRINCE RW 



.nol 01 WL%W ue~d =.dl~si sa101dm 
'rm 'qql "ied sq ol enp st rsrqleq ~IHO~ sw swqa~ Aue m uqwnB mnd 'qmsm mol led 6uu dl~si ow 
'mqu e ue nd u m 'wualsdwolq m weep mnoA wdn 'dl~~i sw ,spun MA 01 uqleQlqo AM nslqdum qq 
'1apfiold ow m nd w4 PDMD IUIYIW. ow spnpp m sled S838 wq~ 'plsd lueusq su UXJ p~mo lunove elp 

UOOn-UOJYJ 10 cp103PI Y~~IAuD blsD4w m '6qm '6qyrlwn)'6~1qw mj qqsn aq nm wnnqu.h 
KI W-d lolllo B ~DPPO~~ AU* 10 S838 1DUION luaw6~nl I11 q DlqYSDP 10 6I~m.u P.l.p(SW S. uql.uuojq 
Duo SPlmu wnr As wnlueh m ruor~od low m .s.mm nun 0%" 01 ern,. uan un-uamn. ~mr 

-was )o a~wld AMU mueuodsal eq PU IW 813s pun S838 nol 01 smlddnr m 1uau.q .pm ra&os I;; 
L'Y~SIW~) 8011 m L~qqum) q ~a~fiold vwpq m 4w-I wnmnrq lua lq awawo x, 1euqlue1.q .luombu 
J*WW SwSqW x, W* AM 10) 4qlSuodSW Oq IOU IF (813s) We08 D1UOlnSUl C**qdd3 WmS 04 Pu. S838 

sealues 40 s~opwo~d JO SUOB~ JOJ N~~~qlsuodsay 

nol Awu IW Aaw qw cwp ~838 j1 lawd aw x, nd q luaa~d o~mn) 
AUD LJOI) tuaY*edl*o ow p turnwe aw PnwP low ~838 m tuad-&w Au- l*do~ 08 pqnbm eq IC ~apfiold 
wand ~ermrm.udtd~rnnn.p14.1~~~~8m~~ars1ddmx,-psw 
OW lawold -01 m nd 08 aPem us muadad 11 Am- Dur hdurud rum smmd m 0o.d n uoue &.A. 

2. m 01 6wlurAq Mm . ~sanbo~ un nd m L4mo.qlaqr.w~ I. qlsq-l~ol 69406Aq rnpwd Aaewd~~ Adm e ulqw leu nd 'll6ulpanv ~l(nX~lla)~z~.m~ ~33 sd 
SDlplPld hWWd S.plDOB WWEINI .CD*GldUI3 *.IS 01 P &mqs*~P VlWp lied sa~~hem o?W 1S.q 
1. WWu oq nol In1 ulnbu W 4nlqmuroPy PuO4111qwd wuwnsul Y~H sw p ruqwold Ax..+~d o~ 

nd nu, s6w- mnd pupsol louw 813s sw .(v~v ow) w unj D~~WPIOYV pus-u&mw IU~ID~ aw Ispun 
uolsslasoy 

.qronbu S838 nuapPDpUe WlleWjq 
'sp~mu 01 appld .nu ps- em muauaq wlw mj ceoddnr m saawss swnsl ow ~sqwu v . .rqlddnr m rwwos ow mj ppd 
ro psqw qualtaq ww wauwa q qrsnbru s83a wuaw pe 'uqlewiq 'rpmo~ aw owd lrnu 
requau P q rqddnr m swwas AUD p~qprud m psqs~wn~ ceq 1.w lsp~old lswo m 'lmldsoq '~awd v . '~838 Aq pswasl pun ol pawuqnr Ivad~d eq lsnm quauoq mj ulq, v . nuaueq mj qqlmo eq a laplo w1.w aol6s nd ~UWW 10) mlep m o6w mj uonolldd* u. 6wlwqns A8 

uogvuo4ul qsludnj 08 ueplrwd pue sdeqwaw 40 N~~~q~suodsey 

Lt HM~~NIWSNIHIMIIIN~TOX VLIK 

'"qd 
ow Aq wum wwsq ~nlhin. pun Inlwu 11- 4IoOumrqnr 01 qqnodds ruqlmlmo lusuqew pus 

muauqnbm ~epusuu ~usu~wpad ew usw D~~=WS~J emu ou am qwueq ~apmslp sm wumnqns 
m weoq nuam ol slqqdde swnmllq ~uoqeon pu. quauoqnbo~ ~rpueu~~ew smsus Isnu 

DIU~U~~ISPIO~P am mmrqnr lo weaq ~musm pu. 9usueq 1n15ns pue Inlpsu wq owo~d 
1.W Nlld 4U.W dnom :rnWUeq U)C.ll 1.lU.U 01 ~IIlUll Ul.)m i0 UOpWlldd. el0 Ul &lnd 

:~usmu!nbsl W~IH 6uwcw1 
010 M4 dl~m ow lduaxe 01 psve~a seq BWE~I 10 alms aql W~IH lo swold uwn w dl~si 
sw lduexs 01 vqa YD~ D~EFW io wms sw .uqd LIIIO~LI 1mueuua~06 IDI~POI-YOU w w :~011du.x3 W~IH 

'uqd sw ISI~UFUPD 01 lap q SPDOU 5838 1'aw nuewedap mulu 1nd PUD nd woqe ~838 4 
111 ~S~0l~lq SWU~~ 11. VqP 1Dw) no). 'VAq lq PUl~sd B WlJOW. uo(l3Un) -)lad q m ~qd 

sw JqIIquPe OI SPDDU S838 Pw ~USPYS~SP mqu 1nd Pun nd IWD SplOlDJ 11.  Oseqal pu. em 'ymw leu 
sa38 1.1 eu6e nd 'dl~si ow UI 6w.dpw.d pue s6uem mj 6Mldde Aq '~~~IPPU UI 'W~IH 14 psqnbu 
m psuluusd solodnd law0 puo 'ruqw.do emwag luaYL(ed '1uauqean mj uqlvuuojq waq I~UOU~ 

mnd em 01 ~838 wqp 1-w 813s sw YC 1uouow6= urn seq ~838 '813s ow lo s~wssw sssqmq e w 
:uo~~uuqu~ q911.m~ ~muoumd InoApa unsolasla pu. osn mo 

'SuqlqnBu W~IH 
WFolUEplon. "1 lDUW3Dq 11 VlWP lUDWUl hV8T3-r lUW 8135 Mill ol WdU UFlorWdS Uqd 41 

'suqlqnb~ W~IH sw lq pqnbo~ re rprenbj- 
s~qdo~dde OW weld q a~eq 01 wm~mqns m 1ua6e ow eqnh IIF mruodr uqd sy 'rmpeawaqns 
m qus6e 41 lo lue OI wns-jq wsq pal;)alold qwqa 1noA a lue rarcpslp mruods wd sw 11 . 

'=w1n6~ W~IH 
aw w ~UI-D UI uqlewoju~ wsaq pspqwd aluwqs ~nol ssopqp m osn ol r-e areq omqo 
peqprap arwds uqd sw p .raquau em- ~swo m radqdum lo ssssep srow amrue 
01 SB 'uqlWIWU1 1(11001( PPlWd 31Wsla moA P &Olq41eA. PW AW6DlUI 'hUoOUaFUUW Dill 
pelold ol rplenbjsl.~ 1nluwa1 pup lnlsAqd 'wcaqqm~= slwtlda~dde nmd ut we4 ow lorwds uqd sql . 

'nol q %pap 
lnluueq lw emllu 01 PUB 'suqlau~s olepdadde asdq q .wnew ow q ueld sw w~ DIWD~OO? 
or PUU 813s sw 01 uqlelow sw vodel A~d~uud UF mrwds uqd ow 'uqlw wnr lur lo u.me saumeq 
lorwdr uqd sy u .luouh~dua p wnequusl spnpy A.u lnw - ~opuc!r pup uope huudprlp q vqqns 
aq w s~aqmsu mmwn m sePlqdua sw .-= psul=~dxa me 1.w sqw aw jo wnw q uqm~ajul wpsq 
PDW~OJ~ mol swqp m asn msuods uqd sw lo usqwm em- m sODi(qdu~ 694060101 sw lo Le u 

wueq, . lebi . ruone~* Ppu uqlu41.4qu1upy quouog . :psqqdxo 
ussq ISN 1.w M~WP~J W~IH 01 ww nuspan. q LKQPWI~ wleaq pspmold ~nd P~OPSIP m 
ssn leu mruods uqd sw lo paum ow lapun uqwu mm&+-m~al(lo m rodqdum sonep 6wp~ -1 

'qo.qlseejul uqlewoiul ow p UO~UCDP a usu axeu 1.w sssodmd amw 
01 104s~ m usu A!o.qlseaj wuun 11 ~ew qeuuo1~1 wleaq pe~alold AM p e~nsopqp m osn ew UYI uw 
mwds ue~d ow 'uqmuuojq uesq ~epolod ~nd hnwp m un)o~ 01 lords ue~d sw nj qqseaj 10" SI 11 
I1 'Mld ~YIOIIIYIYD~OI W~~OIY~YI~~U ~vwd ~nd swou 106w ou lords umd OY Y~UM alepr? 



COORDINATION OF MEDICAL BENEFITS 

Cmrdham of Madiui BanQlb (COB) Is prnvirton asrlpnsd lo help manage lha cost01 health o r e  by avoldinp 
dupUuth of benonu when a p e r m  b mvsmd by hm w maa bmsnt p l w  COB provlrbnr aatsrmlne which 
plan Is pimaryana which is ssmndary 

A prlmary plan b one whose bsncrls for a paron's hsallh cam mwrags murt bs datarmhed m t  wimwt laking 
lha exktanw 01 any Dmcr plan hlo mnrldcntian. 

A semndaryplan b CM which taker hlo mnsldcrath me bcnsnb oflhc primary plan bsfwa dstermhhg bensnu 
anUabla under111 plan. 

S a a  COB lams haw d&cd maanhgs. mere mmu arc set folm at lhc and ollhir COB redim. 

Order o f  BenmRt Det*nninalion 
Whla pian is prlmary b dsdcbd by lhs nnt rula bsbw hat appUsr: 

Noncomplhnt Phn: M ma oUler plan is a nanmmpUant #an. then lhs olhsr plan sham bs pmary and Uis plan 
shaO bs ramndary unhrr me COB terms 01 born plans pmvldc lhat lhlr plan b prlmary. 

EmpmyUD.p.nd.nt: The plan mvcmg a patient u an cmpbpc. member. rubrcrlbsr, ar mnbad homer 
(mat b. olhcr man as a dependent) Is prlmaryover ma plan mvcring the patient as a dapndent. in m e  cases. 
dcpcndhg u p n  lhs r l l a  of ma employer. Madlcam secondary payer rubs may rsqura us lo w a n e  lhb wdar of 
payment. Thb u n  ormr when ma palknt b mvamd as an hacdva ar raU~ed ampinyea, is alsa mwmd as a 
dependent of an a&a ampbysc. and is also -red by Medicare. In lhb cars, ma wdar of bsnclit 
dahrmhauon Mi bs as fdlom: mf lhc plan mvsmg ma panant as a dependent: ramnd. ~ e d i u r a :  and UIW. 
me phn mvaring lhc palent as an ina&s w rewed smployss. 

0.wnd.nt Chlld - P.nnu Not S.pm1.d w DWo-d: n born planr m w r  me palent as a dependent chUd d 
pamntr who am manled or Mng topsmsr [regardlass ofwhalhsr they haw awr  bssn marrlad). lha plan of lha 
pamnt whws bW1de.y falls a a a r  in lhs ysar win be primary. il lha parent. have lhs same birthday. lhs p n  
Covering the palknt iongsr k prlmary. 

0.wnd.nt Chlid - S.pm1.d or 0Ivors.d Pvent.: Il two or mom planr -r h e  patient as a 
dawndent child of m e n b  who are d M ,  seeantad. w no longer Mng M e m a  Imardlasr 01 

a. h t .  lha plan of me wrtodlal parent 
b. samnd. lhs plan m m g  lha wrtodY parenrs spouse: 
C. UIM. ma plan mvarlng me m - W S M Y  prmnt and. 
d. last ma plan m w m g  lha noncurtcdlai prrenrs spouse. 

2. I a mun dsusa smtes mal a pmnt  is mrpanrbb lor lhs dependant chlbtt haalfhura expenses or 
healthcare mvanga and h e  plan of mat parent has ccluai kndedge of lhwa tsrmr. lhs plan of lha mn- 
wdsred parent b primary. 

if ma munadared pamnt has no hul thura mvsrags f a  lhs dependant chfld, barnfib Mi bs dstermhed 
In ma f~l l~wbrg order: 

a mst. me plan 01 ths spouse of lhs rmrt-xaarw parent 
b rsmna, lha plan 01 lhs nm-m~rt-xaered parant. and. 
c mlm. me phn d ma spouse of ma non-cwlt.omcmd parent 

il a rmrt dscrss ruter mat boll1 parents are rasponribla l w  ma aapenaenl chld's healthare axpenrsr w 
heailhare mwrage. lhe pr~vlsbns ofOapenasnt ChUa- Paranu Not Saparalw w O ~ w '  [lha'blrmday 
NY) a b e  shal detemhe me wasr 01 bsnsllts 

1014 LOCUMVERIMENT*EILTn VPURNlCE PUN 51 

COB T a m s  
N i a a b h  Erpns.: h w p l  st a a  lolm bsbw o whsm a atahits mqukaa a dmemnt dsllnith. lha tsrm 
I m b l a  expense' means any healthcars expense. hdudhg mhrurancs, mpaymcnll. and any appUcaUs 
d d ~ d b l a  mat Is -red In fun or In part by any oflhc planr m w m g  ma penon. 

Tha term 'albwabls axpsnrs'doer nc4 induds ma fdlowhp: 

h expense w a pmkm of an expense lhat 11 nol mvcred by any ofthe plans. 

Any cxpsnrs lhat a pmvldar by law w h h m a n c a  rrllh a mnbrdual agreement b pmhlbnad (mn 

charghg a mvcmd p n m .  

h y  typa 01 mvsnga or banslit not provided under lhb plan. Fw exampla, U lhb plan d m  not pmvida 
baefltr fw  mental hsallh diwrdsn and rubshca abuse, dental savlwr and rueeUsr. v i h n  care. 
prarcrlpbnr drugs, w hearing aids. or oms, simbr lypc of mvangc w benant 6;" it win haw no 
semndary bblUty wlth m r p d  lo ruch mvarapa w b a n d t  in addilh. lhe tsrm 'abmmbh axpsnrs' doer 
nm lnduda lhc amwnt of any r~~ In basf ib under a prlmary plan kcaura (a) lha mvasd pa- 
failed lo mmehl vllh lhc primary plan's pmv l rh r  mnamhg r-d rumlcal cdnlonr w D-Mcath of 
adml..ionr &scrviwr, u (b).ma m k m d  penan had a 1-r bendt i s c a k e  he ar .ha dld not use a 
preferred pmvldar. 

Birthday: The tam 'btmdaf mfan only lo m l h  and day h a calendar p a r  and doer not hduda lhs p a r  h 
whkh me hdhiduai b born. 

C~slodl.1  vent: The ts rm 'wnod~ pamnr means: 

A pamnt awarded wrtcdy of a chUd by a murt deuee: or. . in lhs abrsnw of a cM.1 dcasa, lhc pamnt wllh wham me chfld rasMar far m m  man m e  half oflha 
uiandar ysar wimwt regard lo m y  temporary v i s f b h .  

Group-Type Conb'ast: Tha l a m  'grwplyps mnbacf means a m n m d  lhat b nd m l b b l a  lo ma general 
pubuc and b oblahad and mahlalned only because of mcmbsnhlp h ar a mnnadbn wilh a p.mwlu 
Drnanlralon ar gmue, hdudinp blanket -rape. The hm doer nm hduda an IndMdwOv undsrvrlltan and 
b & w  g~ar.n& knswabla -@cy m n  n lh; pdlcy b purchrad amugh p a w l  a a d u k  at a pmmim 
savings lo lha hsumd slnm lhs hrurw wid have ma right to mahuh w renew me pdlcy IndcpcndsnW d 
mndnued empioymantwllh ma ampbysr. 

Hosplt.1 hdamnlty Benma: The term h o r p M  hdsmnlly bsnsflb' means bcnmlll M11 relatad lo sxpsnrar 
h w d .  The m m  does nm Induda mimbuncmsnt-typa banem wan nlhsy am designed u admhbtcmd to glvs 
ma hrured lha right lo clad hdsmnlly-type bcnclib at me Uma of dah .  

Noncomplhnt Plan: The term 'MnmmpOmt pian' means a plan wilh COB ~ l a s  mat am hmnrbtcnt h 
subsLUIw wim me wdar of bend1 datcrmhah ruler of mis p h .  Examplar of nanmmphnt plans am lhwc 
m d  slab msk tmnsnb am .axcarr.or~ahmp rcmndary: 

Phn: The term 'plan' indudes grmp h runnw cnnmcts. hul lh mshmnanw Wgan lnm (HMO) mnbaar. 
&red pmei p h r  w oIhar lams d gmup w gmuptyps cowrage (whslher hrured w unhrumd). medlcpi cpm 
mmananb d lonelam u m  m n m m .  ruch as rkmw nunino cars. medical banems unaar o m o  w hdMua l  
aut&nob~a mnmb.: and Madlcara w anyolhsr federa govemksnlal plan. as permfttsd by la;. ' 

Thb tsrm 'phn' doer not M u d s  nonprwp w tmlvlaval hssm w medlui rahburransnt lnrursnw m n m m .  
Tho term 'phn' aisa doer nm hduds hospitni lnasnnlty mvsmgs w olhsr h e d  Indemnity mvsrags: mcdacne 
onlv mversoe. s~edfied 4b.a~. u seefled acddent -r.oa: UmiW banm h d l h  mvcnaa as a s m d  bv 

I a murt decree slabs lhat Iha parants have jdnt wacdy wlthwt rpdfylnp mat one pmnt  has 
mrpnribUlly lor h e  heallhum axpansas w hsailhurs mvengs d lha dependent child, lha pmvlrbns 01 
h e  'blrmday rule' S M i  dctcrmha me wdar of bensnb. 

3. Fw a dependent child mwmd mdar m m  man m a  plan 01 indMduab who am nm me parent. of me chiid. 
ms wder of bsnQlb shall ba dstsrmhed, as apphbla, under lha'blrlhday ruia'ar Iflhors hdMduab m r a  
p a n m  of me c h ~ .  

Active Employm or Rmtind o r  Ll idOff  Ernpioyn: 
1 The phn mat cown s p s m  sr an empbyss [mat u. an amploysa who b nsllhar iald on nw 

ramed) u as dependent 01 an a h 0  smployss b ma primary phn. The plm mvsthg mat same penm 
as a rslted w irb.ofl snolasa w as a deosnaant of a relbed or lab.ofl employee Is ma tamnasry pian. . . 

2 il me omer plan doer nh i a w  lhl. rula.'and as a rerun lhs olanr do nm agrea m lhc wdcr of 
bsnenb. l h k ~ l a  b lgnmd. 

3. Thb rule d w r  not apply If lhc rule in lhc paragraph 'EmploysslDspsndsnr above can dshrmhs me ordar of 
bsnenb. Fw example. I a r a b d  cmpbysa b cowred undsr hb or her own plan as a r e h a  and b abo 
mvamd as s dewndant under an a*s soours's olan. Iha rctrca plan win bs primary and me spouse's 
a&c plan MI b i  samndary. 

. . 

- - . - . - . - - .- - -. . -. . . - . . - - . - . - --. 
il a p e m  whose m w n g e  Is provkied pursuant lo COBRA or under a right of mnthuabn pursuant lo 
stah or  mar federal law Is mvsmd undsr anomcr olan ma alan my- ms p m m  as empbys* - ~ .--.-.....7.-...7. 

member, subsmibar ar m h a  u mvemg lha p m n  as a dapndant of an amployes, member, rubcllbcr 
w mwac Is Iha pdmary plan and the phn mvsring lhat m e  wnan punuant lo COBRA or unda a right 01 
mndnuaw pursuant to stah w omar federal hwWb ma scmndary plm. 
if lha other plan dma not havs lhb rule. and L as r mruH. lhs plans do not agree an ths wdcr of 
bsncnb, mi.  la IS lpnwed. 
Thb rula doer n d  apply n ths N I ~  in Ihe paragraph.EmpW&ependenrabw can dehrmhe me order 
of bsnsnb. Fw axampla. B a f m r  smplope is mccfvhg COBRA banah  undsr hb tDrma empinyefs 
plan [lha -COBRA pbn') and b also mvsred as a dependent undsr an a*e spouse's pian, me COBRA 
phn win bs primary and the apoura'a **a plan Mi be ramndary. SimLriy, Il a d h c s d  spouse Is 
r c c a h g  COBRA bsnafits undsr hb w her fomcr spoura'a plan (lha 'COBRA plan') and b aka mvsred 
as a dependent under a new spouse's plan. Iha COBRA plan Mi be primuy and me new sparse's plan 
WUI bs secondary. 

Long.rlShort.r LOngIh of Cov.ra#.: il h e  pmmihg miss do not dstarminc ma w d a  of banam, me plan that 
-red lha p n m  f u  lhc longer psricd of h a  b lha primary plan and Iha plan lhat m m d  ma parran lor lhn 
lhmsr parlod of h a  b lhs secondary plan. 

~ q u d  ~iv ls ion:  n me planr cannot agma on me waer of b m e m  wilhh rnw 1301 d n a u  aap  enor me piens 
haw rewlvw .I d me inlormath needed to pay lha dalm. ma plans rhaii hmedbtdy pay lha d a h  h equal 
shams ana astermha IheC relative UabUloaa l a l w h g  pannent axccet lh.1 no pian rhal be mqulrw lo pay mora 
lhan U wwld have paid had it bssn lha prlmarypian.~ 

Delonnination of Amount o f  Payment 
1 I Uir plan b pimary. 11 sham pay bsnalb as n lha samndary plan dld not cxirt 

2. il w r  rsmds indicate mb plan k rcmndsry. va wlfl not pmccrs ywr dams unli you have med lhem vllh 
lhe prlmary plan and lha prlmary plan has mads Ib bsneflt dctarmlmh. 

i l lhb plan Is raquked lo make a secondary payment .ccordhg lo lha above ruiaa. I MI rubma lhs amount pald 
by h e  primary p h  (mm lha amwnt k wuld have paid h lha absence of ma primary plan. and pay the 
dinsmnca. U any. in many user.  lhb wi0 rarun h no payment by lhb plan. 

52 1014 LOUL W V E P N H E N T W T H  INSURINCE PUN 

The plan sihar has no ordar of bsnclitdstennhath ruler, u ibrulaa dinerfra mms permined by mb 
rspulalon: or. . All phns hat cover lhs p n o n  use lhs ordar of bcncrfidstermhalm rubs mqulmd bylhlr mgulath. 
and undsr moss rular lha phn dctarmlnsr i b  bsnaflb Unt. 

S.condy Plan: The tsrm 'samdary plm'maans a plan mat is not a prlmary pan. 

Right to  Rncatv* a d  Reinale N w d e d  information 
Ccmin lads abwt healthcam mvarags and rsn iwr  are needed lo apW lhaac COB rules and lo dstarmlna 
bcnmlb payable under mlr p n  and omar plmr. BCBS may get me fads I nwds trm or glva mcm mother 
arganlutiw ar penans la lha p u p s  01 apphlhg mess ruler and dstermhhg banelib payable undsr Uir p i n  
and olhsr plans mvadng lhs p n a n  dalmhg bcmfits. BCBS Is not mquked lo ten w gat me mnrsnt of any 
pe- m do *Is. E a a  parson daimhg bsnenb undsr lhb plan murt glva BCBS any laar n nwds lo apply mats 
COB mlas andlodetermha bcnends payabla ar a rerun of mess miss. 

Facliity of Paymnnt 
A payment mads undsr anomar p h  may h c l d a  an amount mat rhwld haw h e n  paM undsr mb plan. n n 
doe% BCBS may p y  lhat a m m t  lo me mpanhath lhat made Uut payment. Thm amwnt Mi men be bu lsd  
as lhwgh u wsm a banam pald under lhlr plan. BCBS win not have to pay mat amount agah. The mrm 'payment 
made' hdudsr ernvidhp bsnmlll in lha l a m  of services. h Wch cara'paymsnt mads'maans me marnabla 
cash vaha of I& tmnsni p d e d  h me form of services 

Right o f  Recovery 
il ths am-t of lhe e a m n b  made bv BCBS b mus han BCBS shwld havs pald undsr mir COB pmvlsim. 
BCBS may rsmvsr As~axwss horn &a a mom 01 ma psnm. it has pab t o w  IU whom I has p.m. w any 
omer penon a ~ g 8 n u a t h  lhat may be mspmibla l w  lhs bcnalns w sarvicas pmvidaa Iw ma mvemd p n o n  
The 'smwnt d ma payments maas'lndudes lha rsasonabb u r h  vabe ol any banflu p m w  in ma 1- 01 

Spnciai Ruins for Coordination with M * d i c m  
b c a p l  where o l h c h  reqLbaa by ledarsl law. Aa p h  wi l  pay bsnsnb on a samnaary bask to ~edicara w 
wlf1 eav no bcnsMa at .I l w  rarviwr w SLmYsr mat am h d ~ d e d  vWln lha r- of Msdlcara's mvsrsgs. 

~ ~ 

acpkdhg upon. among olha lhlngs. me rkd b wr gmup. whamcr your gmup b a member of an s1.odabn. 
and me lyps 01 cmdtnabn mamod used by your group. Fw sumpla. Y lhb phn b ssmnaary to Msdtum unacr 
ledanl law. mb plan MI pay no h a f i b  l w  rcrvicas w ruppiies mat are hdudsd wimln ma smpa of Mwlcam's 

ru ie  Ilw: id;& acddant lype &rags: benenb f u  non--&leal mmponcnb of bnp-h& i r e  p~;: 
Medicam supplement pollclar: Medlcald pdldar: w -raga under Dmcr ledsni gavemmsntnl p h s ,  unless 
permmed by law. 

Primmy PI.": The tsrm 'primary plan'maanr a plan whose bsndts I w  a pman'a haaimcare mvsraga murt be 
dalarmhed wilhwt Lakhg ma d a c n w  of any olhcr plan hto mnrldaratbr. A plan Is a pmarypian it 

1011 LOCU GO\rERNUUIT HULTII INSURINCE PUN 



wrenbad 6woq *I ~smddd- wlwmj -war mluaresq ~upsdr. DM 'uo~ddr m wnl- ICJIPW 
awdr n '~aqaaw JO DJOU aw ru~mum uqrsluqnr md 'lz) DU. .uau=u wuoq 6ugpus4 mj .~glruodrw 
IIV*Y~~SW q 1-41 S838 JO uun ~euqlmu-6mm wrmd m Iq mom su yep nweewd. ~luqnr q~dusp. 

Id 11) U llw d 4 ~Wou qw eDwd llln S838 6unw ul u ~OJ lrs nd srqun aq Aew ~ou 
r 5838 Isf4.p mwarsld 1uoLn.w~ mj) d*~ ayl m Inulep nwarsrd baLn a)) rmwq ez nwlm odnll.~ ew 
Io Cou 111 5838 '0s 6uPP mi rsrnpnord s.sg38 rrw~ 4 11-J mq ulw nluar.e>d. ~PJ ol ldwoll~ d II 

lawlsm s838 ow om plnoqs nd 'd mj qw lnol opj pu smp ~awd 1d 'd mj sqep OPJ IW pun 
nUDua4nbsl6ugu ulep r.sg38 la elmu ole ueplr~ld IW .nuwe q seypDds ~838 1.4 quaua!e wep ow 
wlm 5838 awd Isnu 'Srep PPJ Aualuoqlqa la arm ow UI 'm u~ml qep pzlpnpums plaldum AlredDld 
P uo puluqns aq lsnu g 'ulep mwas-lsod ~d se- ~aplrd 1d m nd Iq uqrquqnr e IPWI 4 S838 mj laplo ul 

S838 mu0 ppu uonmuuojq l~uonlpps awp ~awd >noA m d Cou WII qep n re hlenb low smp~eq! 
~~lsquqnc D SOY~W ~838 u mwd lnd m nd WIJ 4.p pqy pun pmqdum Apadold. oynw lrnw ~838 
Iulem nwor rrod sl Dsr.ulmd ral~ddnr m m~~uo, uaw u.u mwas lnaeu~m. rsreuao umw 01 nol a4 

CIUDP e~atdv~l m 14~d e ~~adde M d ~oq PUB sqw JO SON IUUDUP esaw sestmo~d sBje *Ylq-..IGm:6 
~WWJ eu luumum m 'nwes~ld 'nwes-lmd eq uo dl~91 ow ,=pun quauaq lsyw lo) s4.M 

rule13 Bulssaaold pun 8dleae~ 

Ow ID PlUDP PMFtlUm 4 IW UlPp ~d uql*WUl OY03D110U COOP S838 U w..&J~ ~~ll~nbOl Oql 
rayo?W U Ws *.P $1 u(w WPoP ql P nd Cou IW 5838 uq-uuo~u( CUWDD* 10) nor( IN 4 Onrnou 
I1 U JI MU $1 WIV W.0 UO DlWP MIp 10 d-0 OC UIIPY* WCPOP OW 10 d 4UOU IW 5838 4WQPY) 

DmWdUlpM ~~UPldS~p(uquo(~(m,Oq4P~S~~lo)~~d~oylYWs~dl~Ol 
ew I.dw 01 eq-d d 11.w ruead qql rsq md mj opw ap-d low w. nd pu. r&.unpmj - mdp I. WJ ~d 10" We d U 1DA-  ADYOU YOU^ 1". UIO IUU UdDl XJ PC>nqYI(OI Oq 41.@ Oql C=U dlH91 .UI 

ow Aedw wnd d ..IMCUI LUD md a .>amrul r.uouad 8.w .nol pmlq ow wuod aw 6qpnpq .~IHO~ 
ew raD!.oq Amdm m -4 Iu. Iq und om d JI 'pw dlH91 alp I-du lrnw nd 'owawo m luaw.mes 
I0 ~auaw 'mum. m ulm n lo llnra>. rn Aamw >orma> d u 1.u runaw on. n 'muouw und u molmd 



and vd maks a dsarmhatlon on ywr d a h  dmfn the pre-ssrviw or pmt-rswlw h e  frames dlswssed above, as 
appmpha. 

Urgant PnS.nls. Chfms 
BCBS MI weat ywr d a h  as urgent n a dday h pmcsrrhg ywr rWm muid rsriwrly Jwpadks ywr Ine, hsrlm. 
w abUlN to rmah m.xfmum lund!m or. In the adnlon d vwr beallno ohnldan. r dclav m i d  subkd vou to 
sewre pain m i  cannot be managed d m w t  me &re or weirmsnt that G 'mi sub~sd of& d a h  if& u'ea~ng 
php1d.n hdlcates mat ywr d a h  b urgent BCBS dD mat ft nr such 

If w r  d a h  b vmsnL BCBS wlll now w d me dsdrlon d m h  72 houn. If mam h f m a t h  B needed. BCBS 
GI Id yw b o w  i imln 24 how, d y&r.dalm. BCBS W l  ten yw what lurthsr h f m a t k a  b needed. You do men 
haw 4.3 hwrs m p M s  this I n f m a t h  to BCBS. You W l  rewive noUw of me dsdrlon withh 411 h w n  after 
BCBS mwlvcs Lha requested hfwmath. BCBS's response may be oral: fl It b, BCBS d O  f&w It up h writhg. If 
me rsguasted f n f m a t m  Is n d  mwked, wur drlm dm ba mnsidcmd dented at ms srnlratka d me 4.3-hour 
parid yw mre glven for lumbhhg me h f o h a t h  

n ywr Ah Is not urgsnL you dD receive a dsdrlon d m h  15 drys. If m m  hfmat lon Is needed, BCBS vd 1st 
yw ba M o m  the t5d.y p e w  sxplmr You n u  men have 90 a r p  to pmvla. needed hlormamn to BCBS To 
axpsdlta rawpt ol  tha IdormaUm. BCBS may requea It dire* horn p u r  p r d a r  Haavsr you ' 4 1  ramah 
m s w n b b  lm reek9 that me hlormath u o M s a  on lma You nl be nDtMsd ol ma d s d s h  wimln 15 dam 
andr BCBS nwlvcs-me requested h f m n k ,  If the requested hformalon Is n n  rewlvcd, your dafm wllf 6s 
m r l s m d  denled at the qbauon  d me 90-day per id yw were gkcn for lurnbhhg me hfmatlon. 

 court..^ Pr.0.t.rmlnstlons: Fw some pmcedurss BCBS enmuragas but daes n d  rsaufra, wu to mhd 
BCBS bdua  you haw ma pmcwum. Fw eumpk. H you w your phpidan mhlu a pnxadura m lh t  ba ~ d l d e d  
as m e D C .  yw w n  a l l  BCBS to aalermhe balamhana whether A. p m d u m  b mm.tlc u nernlbuaha 
BCBS calls Ihts t y p  ol m v i a a  multsry pradatermhaUm If you ark for a mutery pad.t.rmhath. BCBS dl 
do hr b u t  to p M .  you d m  a tlmeiy mrponr.. If BCBS a.dd.1 Vut tt cannot p r d a  yw ulm s munasy pr.. 
astermhalon (lw exampla. BCBS unnot gal me hlmat lon n neeas to mzks an hlumed asdslon). BCBS vill k t  
yw ba n e1m.r cam. munasy pmd.t.nnhalw u a  n n  pre.rarviw dams vnasr me plan. When BCBS 
o m c n r u  rsgusrQ fw multsrv oradstermh.Ums. BCBS b n n  band  bv me h e  hm.1 am rUndvdr bat 
ippiy to p n - i s ~ u  ciaims. in &dcr to request a munesy p r e d e a m h n b i  yw u ywr p M c r  rhwld can me 
BCBS customer serviw dspamnent. 

Concurrent Cam Determinations 
D.hrmln.Uons by BCBS to UmR w Raduu Pnvfously Approved Cam 
If BCBS he. prevbudy appmved a mums d beamat  to be pmvided aver a p e w  d h e  or number of 
weabnsnts. and hter dedder to lh f t  w mdvw me prsvfourly apprwsd muns d ueabnent. BCBS wilt give you 
enough a d m w  mltten notlw to permit you to hltlats an appsal and a h  a dedsfon bafwa me date on which 

w b-rmsnte are no longer apprwed. Y w  must fcdm any reamable ruler sstabUrhsd for the fOlng d ywr 
appeal, such as me h i t s  d m h  vhfch me appeal must be mod. 

R.qua.1. by You to Erand hv fous ly  Appmvad Cam 
U pravburiy appraw m a d  Iearmsnt b about to expire yw msy Iubmlt a request to enand ywr appmvw 
w m  You may make mlr requat h d u n g  wmPyatmer directly to BCBS u A w g h  ywr wasdng phpldan The 
phone numben to u 8  ul order torequart an anenrlon ol cam am as l o lom 

Fw hpaMnt hosplW ur.. u8205 988.2245 w 1.800248.2Y2 (tol free) 
Fw h-nal*onphplotmanpy or ocaptlonal merapy (n c a m a  by y a r  phn) ca8205-2207202 
Fw ur. hom an h - n e w  chlmpndu (n mwmd by your plan) u 8  205-2207202 

n w r  mqusrt lm addlthal cam Is "want. and H wu rvbml R M hter man 24 h w n  More ma end of wur ore- 
aipmwa stay w m n e  d wasmsnt: BCBS dnbb you s dadslon wimln 24 hours ot when your r&ua;t b 
submlMd. If ywr request Is n n  made belor. mb 24 hour tlms lnms. am y a r  mquut Is urgent, BCBS ril gwe 
yw 1Ud.termhaUon n m h  72 hours. It ywr request 1% n n  urgent. BCBS '41 beat It u a n a  d d m  lm benente. 

. h y  ddsrmfnatbn by BCBS d m  mspsn a a pos-service d a h  mat results In yow owhg any money to your 
pmYlda other man m.paymenu yw maks. or are required to maks, vhen you see your pmvldsr: 

The denial by BCBS ofa prbrerviw drbn: a. 

h adwns mnwrrent cars dstermhalon (fw sxamph. BCBS dsnlsr your request to &end p m h r l y  
appmwd services). 

in all cases ornu man dstsmhatlons by BCBS to nmfi or reduw pmviouriy apprwsd un, you have 1.30 d a p  
Idlaring an .&ens bensRtddemhstlon by BCBSdthh vhlch tosvbmlt an appeal. 

How to Plrrwai Post-Service Adverse Benefit Determinations 

mat yw uta a I- mat 1 has aaveloped l w  mb purpose Tha lo& ' 4 1  hslp you pmvida Blus Cross n m  ma 
hlormatlon mat n nwar to mrldar y w r  appeal To gat the lm. you should u t l  the BCBS Cutmar  Service 
De~amnen~ You mav also (10 to Lha lnlemst mbrlta at m bcbul mm Onw maa. M, mavark BCBS to rand 
y&ampydms&.  - . . 

n yw choose not m use me BCBS appeal form, you may send BCBS a letter. Ywr letter must m n h h  at least me 
U M n g  h fma lon :  

The palsnlr nams: 

The pausnrs m n m d  numbec 

sumdent h f m a t h  to rear-bfy fdsntny me d a h  w cWmr being appeakd, such as dats of rcrviw. 
p M e r  nams. pmcadum (U knom). and d a b  nvmbar (navrllable) (me bast m y  to raurtymfr mqulrsmsnt b 
to lnduds a c ~ p y  ol  your Chlma R s w  d m  ywr appeal): and. 

A statement that yw am Mng an appeal. 

Y w  must send yar appeal tothsfadowhg addmrr: 

Blue Cmrr Blue Shkid d Alabama 
Attsntbn: Customer S r v i w  Aqpeab 
P.O. Box 121.35 
B h h g h m .  Alabma 35202- 2185 

b a s e  nom m a  n yw call w write BCBS d m w t  Mlowing me ruler Jun descrlbad f a  Uhg an appeaf, BCBs wllf 
not ueat ywr hquty as an appeal- BCBS d o .  d murse, use bar1 effm to rerche your qusr th r  w concsrnr 

How to Appeal PmService Adverse Benefit Determinations 
Y w  may appeal an a h m a  baneft dstermhatlon by BCBS mhthg to a prbserviw d a h  h mllng a wsr the 
phons. n over me phone, yw shwid callthe appropriate phons number listed bsbw 

FOT Inpatlent hospital u m  and admbrhr.  call 205 91111.2245 ( h  Bhhgham) a 

1 800.551.2294 (tdUrs.3) 

For Preferred Phpfcaf Therapy w Ompstlonaf h r a p y  call 205.220.7202. . For cars fmn a PutidpaLg Ulfmpramx can 205.220.612L 

If h mltlng, you rhwfd send your htter to: 

Fw Inpatlent hosplW cam and admlsslonr: 

Bhrs Cmrr and Blue Shhld d Alabama 
~ t t s n h :  Hedm Manapsmsnt - ~ q p r b  
P.0 Box 2504 
Bhhghrm.  Alabama 35201-2504 

or 

Your Right to Informatton 
v w  have me mht. upon request, to receive mpks of any dDcvmcnU mat BCBS mUed an h reachhg INS dsdsion 
and any documents mat vas submitted. mnridsred. w generated by BCBS fn ma uxlm d machhg a dsdsfon. 
Y w  abo haw me mht to m w l w  mphr of any htsmal rules. guldshsa. or p r n d r  mat BCBS may have refled 
u p n  h reachhg me dsdslon. I! me dsdsbn war bared on a medlcal or sdcn* dstemhatka (such as medical 
nswrrltq). you may also request mat BCBS pmvfde you d m  a statement sxphhlng IU appflcath d those 
medlul and scknthlc prindplss to you. If BCBS Dbhhed advim hom a health cars proferslonal (regardless d 
whamsr it mlkd on mat advlw). you may request mat BCBS gks yw me name d mat penon. Any request mat 
yw maks for hfmat lon under thb paragraph must ba In mlthg. BCBS MU not &ups you for any h f o r m a h  mat 
yw request under mb paragraph. 

Member Satisfaction 
n yw are dlruuned d m  me advsns b e r m  dsterminatlon ol a dah ,  yw may Na an appeal with BCBS. You 
cannot I O ~  a dalm fw baslit. vnda me plan In M e n 1  or state mun unkrs you exhaust mere admlnbb.ttvs 
mmder.  

Customer Selvicm - - - . -. . . -. - - . . . - - 
n yw have qualmns about your avenge. w need aM1tlon.l lnlormatlon aba t  how to fls dabs. you should 
mbd BCBs. BCBS Customer Service (locstea h Brmhgham) b open for phons hqulrias horn 0.00 a.m. to 5 00 
p m. Momay through Friday. me phme n m b a  b: 

When you call about a dalrn, be sum to haw me followtng lnfwmatlon avauabk: 

. Ywr m b a d  number . Named ywr smpbpr . Date d service N m s  ol  the p d s r  

BCBS abo has r spedal24 hwrs a day. 7 d a p  a week. Customer Saviw mqusat Uns. called Rapid Response. 
for you to use whsn you need drLn forms and amcr prtnted matehfr rekvant to your baneno. 

Rapid Rsrponss Is quick and s u y  tours. w ws enmumge yw to use It whsn yw need matedab such as: 

C h h  Farms . Rsphwmcnt ID Cards Bmchumr . 0cnsut B0olrkb 

A v d w  aahated rptem dl1 ark lor y w r  n m s ,  mmpkta malhg adararr. day(hne p h a  nLmber. what matermtr 
you am rsquerdng, h a  nuny yw need. and the m w s d  number born y w r  ID cala I yw km., the BCBS I- 
number. you u n  request me Hem by mat numbar 

The numberr for Rapid Response am: 

205.988.5401 in Binningham or 1.800.248.5123 toii-free. 

Ywr  m q ~ w t  1s ramrded and MU be mailed to you me nslt warlifng day U yw anmsr all the qusatlons mmpkfefy. 
Allowlng mahg h e ,  yw ahodd rawks your requested matehis dmln 3-5 d a y  (exdudhg wssbnds and 
hdbiap). 

Biue Cross Biue Shield Appeals 
f" G."."l 
The mhs b thb sedan of the rummuyaOm you w your aModred mprsssntattve to appsal any adverts basnt 
determination by BCBS. h &ens bsnslif dstermhatlon hdudas any m e w  mu0 d me faOaPlp: 

For h-ns& physical therapy, occupaUmn1 therapy. w cam fmm an chboprador 

Blue C m s  Blue Shkld of Alabama 
Attention: Health Management- Aqpeab 
P. 0. Box 362025 
Blrmlngham. Alabama 35236 

Ywr written appeal shwld p r d s  BCBS d m  ywr nams, mnbad numbar, the nams d me fadntq or provider 
h w h d .  and me dats or dater of rerviw. 

bar .  nns mat n you u n  or mlb BCBS withovt Idlowing me rubs lust dsrcrlbad fw 6hg  an appeal. BCBS vd 
not weat ywr lnqufry as an appsal. BCBS Wl, d murra, use barf s N M s  to rcrolvs ywr qusstlms OT m w r n r .  

Condust d the App.1 
BCBS vd asrlpn yw appeal to one w m m  persona wimh me organlmth vho am nslmsr me persons who 
mads the hl la l  detsrmhah nor rubotdlnatss d moss p e ~ ~ .  If r s r ~ o n  d you appeal mqubss BCBS to 
maka a medical Judgment (such as whemar ssrviwr w ruppliw ma medlcaPy nswrsary), BCBS wIO consun a 
health cam pmferrlonal who has appropriate axpdstlrs. If BCBS mnsullsd r hedm cam pmfssrlonal during It. 
hlhl dsdsbn, n vd n d  m r u H  that same paam or a aubordlnate d mat penon dumg our m i d s r r t b n  d your 
appal. 

It BCBS needs mwo Inlmatlon. BCBS vill ask yw to pmloa It to msm n some ores BCBS may ark your 
p r d s r  toturnkh mat tn lmatbn directly m mom. H so. BCBS vill rana y ~ ,  a mpy of IU rsquest. Howvsr. you 
' 4 1  mmah rsrpnribla lm taahg mat BCBS gets the hlormath. 11 BCBS am. not .el ma Inlormatlon It mav be 
newsmy fw BCBS to d a y  yoti appal 

- , - 

BCBS W l  mnridsr ywr appeal fuliyand f.Hy. 

Tfm. Llmla f w  Consid.ntlon of Your Appeal 
n ywr appeal ulres fmm the danlal of a poat-rsrviu dah ,  BCBS dl1 noWy yw of l b  d s d s h  wimh 60 days d 
me date which yw fled ywr appeal. 

n ywr appeal ulrar from ma aanW ol a pm SsMW dah .  and n your dam 11 urgent, BCBS riO m s l a a  ywr 
appeal and notify yw d IU asdrbn nmln one busherr day u. n aurtng a bng uaelsna, nmtn 72 h w n  II ywr 
p r ~ e r v i w  cWm b not urgent. BCBS m8 give you a rasponsa d l h h  30 aap 

n ywr app.al Prlrsr ovt of a dstermlnatlon by BCBS to Pmlt w reduu a mune d marment mat was pmvlousty 
appmvsa lu a p n d  d tlme u n m h r  d marmenu. (re. Conwnant Cars DatamlnlUons abova), BCBS w 
maka a aedslon on your appeal as xm as poulble. but In any event balom It hpolss the lh l t  u mductlon 

If y w r  appeal rahter to a dedston n d  to anend a pmviousiy appoved kngm ol stay 01 -mad marme9 (sea 
coowmnt Cars Dstamdnatbns .bow). BCBS *PI m.);e a dsdslon on ywr appeal wthh one bushssr day w 
72 houri Y over a long wssrana (In urgent om-service carsrl. YI d a n  m non-urnant ore.scrviw cases1 or 60 

b some carer, BCBS may ask fw addIlona1 h e  to pmcsar your appeaf. If yw do not wish to give BCBS 
addlUonal h e .  msy d n  go ahead and dsdds ywr appsal based on me Infmatlon they have. This may mrvR In 
a denial of your appeal. 

U You k. D1ssaUsfl.d UI.r Exhausting your Mandatory Phn AdrnlnlstraUv. R.med1.s 
fl yw havs f h d  an appeal and am dbraUsLd d m  the mrponse, yw may do one OT mlve d me f&Mg: 

Y w  may ask me BCBS Curmsr  Srv iw  Dspalrmsnt fwtunhsr hslp: or 
Y w  may Na a vdunhry appeal (dlrwrrad babw): or 
Y w  may me a d a h  for &ma1 re* for a d m  hvoMng medical ]udgmenl u resdsslan d your 
phn m n g a  (dlrwrred bclm). 

ValvnhrV Appsh :  If BCBS has gkcn you ltsappeal dsdsbn and yw am atOl dlsratlsned, you may fla a rsmnd 
appeal (callsd e d n l a r y  appeal). If ywr vdunhry a p p l  relates to a prs-asrviw adnrrs bsns(it dstermlnath. 

1016 LOUL EOVERNAENI WlH INSURWCEPUV 



'W 0103 OWPIOW DUE WLY 
luwed aw p uuaueqnbD1 ow wc muepane UI pequua~ap eq uc ~unoue pornone alp 'lerldsoq wnuau-p 
-am ue jo auewdep urm kruoslaua ow qlpw pmppd rapua6a~a 1-vl q smwos LYOLOU. mj 

.a6191)3 s.~appwd elp p lunouv sw pemxe IDU IW IU~OUR P~MDUD aql ~uouw mp ow 
P rraaxe q saLelp mblequlpm sw mq Aeu laward ey 'appmd -OYIDIM UD Aq powd smwes mj 

.nsm END wndpreld wqedwo q  padre^ lpw paqnbe~ eq Leu re 'syuql qqpurree~ dew 

'PU. :mseeu WIULIO?~ e 6qm vqlqq P alu au 

:uopej eloqueeq qnr qqnnddv 

:-was ~qlqs D m ewes alp mj eueqqv ul m-e -au-q eu 

:mpos ow lo hvqdwm ewnw eu 

:PVIOPUU us smwas wew ueld nqqs enla mpue rrw enla lnq ow w4 sep 6upw 

:mwes IqIYs e a ewer ey mj o6lolp 0601a0 m e6mlp su . 
'mW s.lolwrlquw swn3 ow 1. eu uo SI lew nuaueq WP~DI~OIILM 6un~dpwed ow apun 

sa~npmld esow mj muoue aeb pun sampmd al~wdorlln lo qnpelps 091 :qnp.q=s "4 011~dalq3 eq Leu avowe rlu 'wapuad we S-IN~S OIOW uqd PI~I~S en18 apue rrw enla w dq rau~wewp 
UDUO q uowd XWWaU-jWM 4 PPIaPUDI OlW mb lWWulV PM(ID Oql :SJ.PlAad Wor)*Wb*LO 

'sueqw DIQS ew a~qm 
llp~ 1.w rluaue6uure 6upenum alp P vqldprap e mj '1- rlw "I denma .'mw% eew-WO. aos 

.~awd alp pue uqd ~qqs anla mpw 
*roo anla 1-1 aw uaweq wulum ow >.pun pw- we 1sw renddnr m rmwar sw (E) pu. 'uewd 
Odd plD30Ra WIOUSXI? Oa u!a wwd owr lo lasans WIUU (2) 'ueobuwd uoluau.u w~eaua 

'swelnllsd pup S~N Evnv~uqdy ru pm w tqqlpvmay puonnnp3 pup 
01.3 YIIEVH alp 4 PPUDW l@ 'OIOZ I0 PV a-3 4qPPlaW Due WOlW UlDUDd :W -3 ~19.PIOYI 

'omlpsly q wedpwnd mj ruqllpum alp ~DDW lsnu h!pj ey 'uqd ay apun 
Lleeb lmlslnr Amqnqme ue plaplsm eq 4 lapm ul 'pq mldsoll om qm. luqedul ue ddm a pee" wu 
OD ow sluawd mj s~eq IUanedm us w rwer plLns Sswd 1.1 4wq v uqu.3 lnllns &oa.lnqw 

7---- 

alp dq pelam ale cd qlw um lew luawe ue dq Alqos pan- cd 4 hnlul ~peunul v :hnlul ~mueploov 

'~838 dq pelqqulupe 
I1 umhd qu .'eaue6emw ssp3 Inpwpul. pue .me3 paburw mlsueqwduto3. re wur( osw ~uomebeue 
uual.hC4 Weua 1s- lsovl sw q pun ha~mu ~oj lwmwe lreq ow ww luanrd ow eppwd 4 pavElrep q 
11 'mnnneudroq nwsuq q q~a.uaue UP 41uej 1d pun nd say6 1ew uplhd 1wusq v :9w.u.8 C.A~.YI.I~ 

q qep mwai& id ieqi DlillOqAiM 1d-FfiGu 10;14;0 elp w wlspap D mj MA qlw 
perwum dler~nbepn sq ~mm l~w qed mueladxa Leu d 'u.pldqd md p uqqdo ow q 'a ApnW roves 
14 aq Aeu w1waq 1cd lplw ew q uqlsnllr luasln up 'dflwaua~ .e~qsmd se Lmcn~pdxa I. p~pnpum 
Oq lw YLteP 1cd 10 MW.01 Imlueme alp 'fin lapun 1vaLLln lo wuyap alp naeu uep was-ud 1M1 u 

'PeuqlronD sq IOU IIC suqrpsp (mlpoy( 'lournu qqqpbe pup -1. q pepnpum su. fiwod q 4 oquuaap 
01 PawOI sq 101) lole4slqup~ ~~01 wnnnnn Ow am ~earlulwe SVP ew p rwlrpso    lo^ 

'-WE OW Y pewq swed 
11- 4 Bww UI uqsw eenssl llev eoulunuo3 wan we4qu1uw au ,813 alp 1.9 p~wdde sserun fiwan 
~AD~nllulvlw uw ul WeArum sq lou ow qwunsls 1u0 .Mop (09) m(gl qw Alpnrn mue~ql6 OW fiww lw 
eauuw men e~~ulqqmw aw 'rnb plqdwm ew P Idlmed uodn .WJ lrenbu fiepen wenslupuw 
ow 4 wlpwe aq lrnu 6uam 813s w m s838 aw 10 wlrpep ow 10 ddm v '813s alp lo EUIIN &1916na 
mr ruaurgodua ow lo 1d1-w OW P ~CP 09 qlpw m '~838 uo4 WP And lo PIU~D I~OI m ~mnd 8 p slnov 
lDyl ow P ldl~~6~WnoJ deP 09 ullplr ow0 813s aw UI wmu sq asnu Ismnbu mopw ewulqqvlpv w swngsul aymol OW cd 'polq~lq q fisps~ ~elus~~s ~d mug uqmlur6m low1 alp 4 mueuum uouw 

IewIPPn lluqns dew MA uqrpop mo mops, #p vqlezp5~ luopuodapq ue lwd ~purslra ua lrenbel cd jl 

WlO.ZOZSE I\( 'JW~UIUIE 'WlOl m8 'o'd 
q~ad& mwas>ouqrnj :uqluwv 

wrusqw lo PI~~S an18 PW 8-13 eq8 

:sw~ppo 6wqpj olp 
01 Pwlwqns sq lrnvl pur 'fiwo~ CUWD mj lranbu e 6w wend qqr lrnu '6ww q eq lrnvlfiwa~ IPUIWD 
UP a1 rsenbel ,no* 'umeuuunoo mad* wme lour m umevlwele~ ltlpuw srrame mo ro ldlnal d m 

'Psdde m mown ~euoj e mj peu ow mow ssmd  pan leuuoju~ 0w q6nodw ewqd ew IMO pqpueq 
aq UES vle~qord ow rerw Auru UI .way prnjul m mi 813s ow ~erum uow Asu cd 'peodde Alpwmq 
sJeY. nUauDq s.dl~~l OLD ICW lamb mr cd sale wr ramp.?oJd ewulrlqupe no 6upmeqxa JWE 'm 
dlHD1 aw P rwnwd pue ralm sw w L~uojum s IOU srm Euam 41nqlfila m lueurgolua ue wlp wb d u 

MaIAau lBW0)Ul 

YD el(u 01 nd 41. IC ucnmumjq IVWQIW- SNI qeodde hmunpr lmqo vqlewq emu w d e~nwd 
4 S838 qrp 1.d  no^ ~podd. bnuqon md p upd re d uo nrm a raoj hue orodw $0" lllm ~838 ~PPP 
u lu~uad n fieadds h-lunmr md imn mum eu luun~ wrn oa nm stmurun ID mruns ro sraueum uodn 



Durabla Madlul Equipmant: Equipment appmved by BCBS as mcdlmuy nacasrary lo dlagnosa or beat an 
Uhsrr w Inbry w to pmvent a m n d i h  fmn bammlng m e .  To ba durable medlul cuubmcnt an Item murt ba PPO pmviden. Pmfened M i c a 1  Docta. IPMD phpldam). and Panidpatlnp Phanadcr. A pmvidcr win be 

mnridcmd an In-nalwo* pmvlda only If the kcal Blue Cross andlor Blue Shhld p h  dsrbnatea h a  pmvldsr as 
a Bluecard PPO pmvlda fw the re- or suv~ty belm fumhhed. Thh means that If wu recalve a rcrvfca or 

(a) mads lo withstand repaatad use. (b) mahly for a msdlul purpose rather than (a m f M  or mnvanknca. (c) 
useful only If you am r i d  or hjuma. (d) related to your unaltlon and prermibed by your phpldan for your use ln 
your hme. and (el determhed by BCBS lo ba m.dunq necarsery lo abgnots w weat ywr l k e u  or hbry. help 
a mallmea pan d p u r  body umt battsr. or keep your m n d l h  horn bamnhg mrne 

supply horn a pmvlder b t  has a mntnaual r6k.imrhip wiIh a Blus Cmrr andw B& Shbld plan but It not 
designated by the 1-1 Blue Cmss andw Bbs Shbld plan as a Bluecard PPO pmvldsr. m mu pay at the out. 
d-nen*oni k w l  d benenu 

EmmIY. 0.1.: The date m whlch me m n g s  of each lndMdual member bsghs as lhtsd In ma Slate 
Emplopas' lnruranca b a d  r e d s .  fnpatlsnt: A rapbbmd bed palient h a hmplbi: pmvlded that m mrerva the Oht h appmprfata usas to 

mdaulty h p a h t  s lap as outpatlent rsrvlcer, as s r p b M  abwc In lnpatlant HmplW Banallts'-and 
'Outpabnt Hospllal Banallu.' 

EkctIYa Abortton: An a b d m  padmed f w r a u m r  other than the mmpramlrsd p h p l u l  health d tha  momar. 
sewre chmmoramal w fab l  dsfmlly, w m n c a p h  due to Incart w np. 

lnvastlgational: Any tmabnent, p d v a .  fadlity. equipment. drugs. d ~ u  usaua, w auvellcr that almsr BCBS 

Emargansy Tmabnsnt: Traamsnt rendered h a hosplbl. dnlc w d ~ c M s  dnca for an hbry or Ylnsss ha1 
rw l rea  lmmedlab a r e  or mamant. and must be p d m c d  withh 48 houn aner the hbry Is sustained or me 

has not mmgnired as havtng sdsnrmuuy ertalrhed m w l u l  vabe, w mat dm* na me# generdy acrsptsd 
sundams d m d u l  practlw. Whan parrlbb. BCBS *UI develop winen a d a  (u l sa  med id  miterla) 
mncamhn servlmr a su~otlet that BCBS mnrldem m be InvesUaaUanal BCBS bases lhae crits* M na-.. 

Uhess fint bemmsr marvtsrt A mMlUan mat requuer hmedlate cam or mahsn t  means ar3y permulent 
health-Ihsabnhg mnalUan The m d l m n  murt be one lw  which lalbrs to recalve on a mahsn t  rmld resun ln 
debrloralim to me m h t  rvhers the oauenrs ocrmanent health -Id be h laoommv W l v  fundmns w i d  ba 

mvi& iihratum. m w n h e d  standards d medical vractim anb tschnbv  asrsssmanb BCBS iuts k&;;a 
medlul milaria h poUdas that BCBS mabr  avahbh'lo ma medical m m m & y  and our members. BCBS do& 
this sa that you and ymw pmvldcn know In advmm. *hen passibla. *hat BCBS will pay (a. If a sravlw w 
supply b mnrMamd hvasUgaUanal acmrdhg lo one d BCBS'r pubbhed medlul mibrfa polldsr, BCBS will not 
pay for It n ma Invss~aUmal natured a re- w supply b not addmsred by m a  of BCBS'a pubtlrhed medlul 
miterfa pander. BCBS conrider it lo be ndnvcaUgalma1 mly U mafdhwhg rqubsmcnb am mat: . The tachmlogy murt have llnal appmval from the appmpdak government nguktDty bodies: 

The sdsnUIlcavldanca mutt peni t  mdurlonr mncamlng h e  cffaa d h e  lschndogy m haalth wtmmss. 

The hchndogymurt h p m w  ma nal harim rulmmc: 

The khndogymuat be as bcnsfidal as any aslablirhed allmaUvas: and. . The hpmvementmurt ba amhabk w Q l a  the hveaUgalbna1 rsnhg. 

Ewbynr Sea eqdmath h lb 'EU@uly and EnroUnmt S. 

Fml ly  Cwmg.: Coverage for an cmpbpa and anew mote dependents. 

Fsa Schsdu*: The rcheduk dmedlul  and ruqlcal pmcsdurar and the fee amwnufw m a s  procsdumr under 
the Prcfaed Medical Dadu p-m and other Prakned Pmvldsr pmpnms as appumbh. 

Homo Health Cov.ngs: SUed nunlng vfrlu ordered by a phpldan. mndsmd ln a pathnrr h m s  by a 
Rqbtcrec Nurse or Llcenred Pradkal Nuna and baed by a hams health agency. Any v r e + M u h  It Is h p a t l n t  for you to m m m b u  mat *hen BCBS makes dctarmhaUons about the hvsrUgaUon.1 nature d a 

scrvlca w rupply BCBS k maljng them s&ly (a the purpose d dacnlnhg *homer lo pay for the rsrvlca w 
supply. All dcdrlonr mncamlng your traalmsnt must ba made a ~ l v  bv w r  rttsndlno Dhnldan and omsr 

rmbemenb mdlor any s p e w  bansnt madmums we apphble to the skba  nunlng vlrlts only Other 
servfcas lndlded am h w  hfutbn Uanpy and medlulbnt aImhutaed by hams health agency S.rvlmr 
such as a m c h  menw. ocaoauMal msraov and v h n l d  thuaov mav be bllsd bv a h a e  heaim aoencv medical p r d a n .  

. . .  - .  . 

Lou1 Govrrnment Haalth Inauranc. Plan (LGHIP): A sell-hsumd hadm bsnallt plan admhirtsmd by the Slab 
Empbysar'lnrunnw bard. 

however. hey am cmirldsmd bndar the m& mcdi&thcr m v d k  r~ rv lms  6 of the m n m d  a id  not 
mnaldamd unda h a s  health roveraga. 

Homa Plan: The BCBS Plan that pmvldan w subsdbars sand dalmr to when ma tuhdbar  mcelvcr msdlcal 
u m  h a dUfamnt Plan's geographic area. A gmup's H m a  h Is the P h  that has mtd d of gpmu. Lou1 Govormant Unlt: Any agency dtha state. any wunty, any munldpallty. any munidpal fwndalbn. any h 

or mter d k m a  or authorlly, a mopamtlvc. any regha1 plannhg and davabpmant mmmbsbn, ma /Clsadatbn 
d County cMml.alons d Alabama, tha Alabama League d MunlcipalWaa. the Alabama R a h d  State Emplopas. 
AasadaUm, ma Alabama Sbts E m ~ b v w r  Credit Unbn. Eutar Seals Alabama. Alsbuna Stale Unlnrslw ma 

HospIu Coverau.: Hosplca servlca Indudes s~ppOes or d ~ g s  hdudcd ln ma daUy fee f a  hosplca cam 
rendered by a hosplm pDvida m a tanha6y 81 membcr when a phpldan ceM8er L a  mcmbats life apaaancy 
lo be less than rLx mmmr. 

. . - -. ., , - . - 
Alabama Rural Water Assadah. d d ~ h  Omega. lnc..tha ARC d Alabama. lnc. and&o(ma~mr~ 1-1 
chapbra d the ARC d Alabama. Inc.. Unlmd way. d Alabama and Its member unltsd Wap, ma k b & i  
N E W  d Chlldmn's Advwcy Centan and h mmbar Chwmn'a Advwcy Cenkn. any r+d aumdty, or 
any sokt wark disposal authdty wganhed punuant lo me Coda d Alabama. 1975. S d k m  38-29-14. u last 
amended. Host Phn: The BCBS h assodated with ma pmldar mat fumlrhcr rervlcar to a rubscdbar fmn a dbrcnt 

F3an. It ir a Plan Ihal heas me H a a  Fian ssrvlm ma gmup. 

Managamant Prourn:  A p w n m  born as 'Baby Yournsir Is admlnbtcred by BCBS hat oLrs  a madranlsm 
fw  ldanluying hlgh-risk pragnandss and mmpktaly managhg them lo pmvcnt mp l lw lons  at the Lime of 
deksry. 

Implanmblaa: An hplantabls dsvica ir a bbmmpaUbk mschanM davim, bbmedlul matcrfal, a thcnpuUc 
agent mat b hplrnted h whds w In part and server lo support w mpiaw a blologiwi armdun, ruppolt andlw 
enhanca of m n m n d  m d  mud d a  dogi id pmwsa, or pmvldc a menpauuc f l e d .  Examples hdudc, but 
am not Umltsd lo, mdlhar hplurb, ncumstmuhton, hdwslhg Drmopedlc dsvicar, culhlmd bsuss. bsua 
rna*m, radlarctlva sssdr, m d  hfurlon pmpr.  

Medical Emsrgsncy: A m d u l  mndlUan that manllssb lbcn by awls symptoms d sufldcnt rsvsrlty 
Ondudhe m a n  p.h) so that a mdant I a w n m .  with an avsrauc ba.(sdos d hsalth and medlrha. mid 

InWaIwmk Prov1d.r: A pmvlda Is mnridamd lo be an I n - n e W  prDvldu U, and only lo the sxtsnt hat, me 
p m l d u  ir fumlrhhg a rervlm or supply that h r p a M  as an h - n a W  benefit undcr ma tens  d ma -bad 
barnen the pmvldcr and h e  Blus Crass andlor Blua Shkld plan (or Its amU.tes). Examples hduds Bluecard 

~ ~ ~. --. . 
matonably srpaa me abrsnca o~ immwlatemediui a l tenh to  rerun h (1) pidng the heam d ths  p e r m  (m. 
with r e s p a  lo a prapnanl m a n .  the h e m  d the m a n  a her unbar *Pa) In scriwa 1wp.d~ (2) rsrlws 
lmpabmsa la bodly lundkmt. or (3) serious dy(undon d m y  bodily organ w pan 

Madlully Nsc.rsry or Msdlul  N.sssslty: BCBS uses Ihara lama lo ha@ dctcnlna rvhathsr a p a r u w t  
se- w supply bc m e n d .  When p s l b h ,  BCBS dsvslq~ winen miterfa (u lbd  msdlml &ria) that 
BCBS will use to dstcrmtna medlul nscasrfty. BCBS buss  mare miterfa on pear-rsvlaad literature. 
mwgnlzed rbndardr d medlul pracdca, and kchndogy ausumcnh. BCBS pub mesa medlul crllsria In 
pdldsr that BCBS m a b  avaIlaMs lo the medlul mmmunfty and our m e m h .  BCBS dws this so that yw and 
your pmvldcn win b o w  h advanca, whcn porrlbla. *hat BCBS pay for. If a ssrvlca a supply ir not 
m s d l w  nncassary a d h g  la m a d  BCBS's pubnshed medlml dta* Wdaa. BCBS will m t  pay for It If a 
sc* or supply Is not addmrsad by m e  of BCBSr published medlul crltaria polldss, BCBS willmnrlda It lo 
be madidly nacars.ry only H BCBS dalarmhsr that I1 Is: 

Approprfata and nacarraryfor the symptoms, dlagnoalr, w mamant d your medical mndllim: 

R d e d  for me dhgnodr w dbsa care and treatment d ywr medlul mndltlm; 

In acmrdanca with standards d good medlul pracllw amplad by the qanlzed medlul 
mmmunlly. 

Not p b n m f w  the mnvsnlsnca andlor mmlat d you, your famUy, your phpldm, or anDmsr pmvlda 
d ..-.; 
Not-hvcrUgahC and. 

Pedwmsd In me leas1 mrfty ssnhg, memod. or manner, w with the kart  ws ly  suppllcr, rqutad by p u r  
madlml mndiUan. A 'scfflng' may be yDur hama. a phpldan's om-, an ambulatory sunplul faduty. a 

Non-Putlcipatlnu Hospkal: Any hmplW (other than a Pani*aUng Hospltai) met h u  bsen approved by the 
Alabama Haplbl  ArrDdalbn or the Amsdan HmpW.1 Assadah  as a 'gemrPP hosplbl w msstr the 
mqulramana d ma Amdmn Hoap4tal AsrodaUon for ngbwalion w dasrhlmUan as a 'gcncnl madlcal and 
ruqlcar hospital. 'Ganud' hmplhls do not hduda those darahd  or aassinabk under sbnduds d ms 
Amsriun HapW.1 Assodalm as 'SpacW' hwplbb, such as Ihwa dutmsd as for paydlrhlc. almhobm and 
other chamld dependency. mhaMmation. mental relardah, chronk disease. w any other spadally. 'Gannnl. 
hotpitah also do not Indude fadliuaa primarily f u  mnvalsamnt u m  or mst w for the aged, t c h d  w d o g s  
hhar i ss .  mat&, or nunhg homer. 

Non-Putlclpating Phunusy: Any phmacywhlch Is not a BCBS ParUdpaUng Pharmacy. 

Non.PPO Pmvldar: Anypmvlda that Is not a PPO P r d e r  with any Blue Urns andlw Blue Shkld Plan. 

Non.Pmhnad Ham. Heaith Cam Monty: Any home haam u m  agency ma1 ir not a Prdensd H m a  Health 
Care Agency. 

Non-Pnhmd Hosplu: Any hmplca that Is not a Re fand  Hosplca. 

ONlur: An aledad dnci.1 d ma b l  government mil. 

O Y t 4 h a  YsnUI Health Bensflu Bensnb fm msnbl heam rervlmt. lndudhg rervlcar fw cha. lu l  
dependency. d the rubrmiber Uvsr parmmenly outrlae of M a m a  and the subr&sr w hi. aepenacnts w both 
m m m  weanent m l d e  Alabama 

hosplurs wtpatlent aepamnsnt. haplm~when you are an hpathnt or another hlps d facity pmwiaing a 
lesser 1-1 01 u m .  Only your madu l  malUan Is mnslduw In asddlng which reuhg is m.aIuny 
nemssw Your Ihandal w fml l r  r l b a h .  Ihs alrtanm vou 6-a h a  a hDs~Iu1 w 0th- fa& m anv 
other n&medM fadm b not c&rldsnd Al your med!&l mnd~lbn change;, the ranhg you n'sed ma; 
#so change Ask your phpldan II any of your scrvlcas u n  ba p e h d  m an outpatlent bash or In a l e u  
m f t y  tcmng 

O w n  Enrollmsnt: The annul open anrohent parbd Is held each Nwambarfu a January t mc&s dab. 

Out4.NatlMLI Prov1d.r: A pmvldar *ho b not an h - n a W  pmvldu. 

It ir impatant (a you lo remember that M e n  BCBS makes med ld  namaalty dctcnlmtions. BCBS ir making 
them sdcly fw  the purpose d daknlnhg whether ta pay for a medlul aervlw a ruppw All d a d r h s  
mnmmhg youbeahant must ba made r&y by your attsndhg phpldan and Dmcr medlul providers. 

Putlslpatlng AmbuhtDq Surulul F.sllfty: Any faduty rlth which BCBS has r m t a a  f a  fumlrhlng health 
cam servlms. 

Putlclpatlng Chhopmctor: A Docla of Chlmpncllc that has a contad with the U a h s  Mmlnlstalor for me 
fumbhhg d chiropractic aarvlwr. M a d i m :  The Health l n r u n m  fwthc Aged Program undaTlUc XVlll of the Soda1 Sawrity A a  (P.L. 89.97)as 

amended. 

Putlslpatlng HoaplUI: Any holpllal wim which L a  Clahr Admlnlamlor (BCBS) has a m m c t  fw hlmlrhlng 
heaim u m  sarvlws. Ycmhr:  An a&dmtcd I d  ummment unit amebyaa w eOdbla davsndant who has mvanoa under the 

LGHIP and whose appllolbn f&snga under &ntract h mads and amplsd by h e  ~ ta t ;~m~b~aar '  
lnsunnca bard.  A member Is also a f m e r  dependent andlor amp!qes aUgibh for and mvsred undcr COBRA. 
Ekaed olllcan d m c  Iml gwcmmant unltmc engblafw -raga whUa they am h oflm. 

PMlclp8thg Phumasy: Any pharmacy with which Blue Uors Blus Shkld d Alabama h u  a m n m a  fw  
pmvidhg phanacy rsrvfcas. 

M e n u  Hsalth Pmfemd Pmvldsr Organhation: Thoss pmvldan who have mnmded with h e  State 
Empbpcr' lnrunnca Bcad (SEIB) thmugh the CaltMed Community Manbl Haalm Csnlcr (CMHC) to provlda 
camln mental health and rubrlanca aburs rsrvfcar. 

Putlclpatlnp Ram1 Dhlysla Faclllty: Any hw-rlandhg hamodhipi. fadl i l  with wNch Blua Crms Blua Shkld 
of Alabama has a - tad fwfumlahhg health u r a  rarvlcar. 

PhpIcIm: Any health- pmvldarwhen Ifcased and.ctingwithlntharmpadhtllmnra u mnincatlm atha 
tlma a d  plam you am matad or mcalva sarvlosr. 

Pkn  Admlnlswata: The Slak Employaas' lnsuranca b a d .  

Phn Sponsor: The Statad Alabama. 

MenUI Hsakh DIsordsn and Subsoncs Abuse: These are msnW alwxdsn. menu Uhetr, psychlamc 
Uhesr. menu1 mnaluau. m a  prychlsmc mndiuonr There dlsorden. Ulnesrer. end mnalu~ns am cw lderw 
menu1 health d M s n  m a  rubrunce abuse vhstha Ihev am doroanlc. b l ~ l u l  chsmlul or oanstlcdoh - - 
They am mnridcmd mental hadm dlroden and subrtanca aburs ngardlsrr d howmsy am mused, bared, u 
bmught an Mental heaim dirudcn and rubrtanca abuse Induda, bul are not Limited to, psyChores. neuroses 
raliaphmnk-aflecnn ~ISWLIS. p e ~ ~ a l l f y  alsoraen. and prlchdopkd a bshaviwal 8bnormdlbr 
a r d a t w  rlth temporary w permanent apfundkm d the bnln w related rp tsm d hormones mntrmed by 
newas They am neneniiv htenaea lo hdlde dlwxwn. mnallionr. and Unetses k t w  ln h e  m n a t  

Pmadmlsslon CaltMutlon and Poat-.dmlaalon R a v l w  Tha pmcsduraa used lo dchmhs whamcr a 
member rsqulms mamaa as a hosplbl hpatlant prkxlo a membeta admbslon, w by tha nan bushass day after 
the admlrsbn h ma u s e  d emaqsncy admbalona. baaed upon msdlcaGy mwgnllad mileria. The program b 
admlnirtarad by BCBS. Dlapnostlc i d  S b l i ~ l i u l  ~;nual d Mental D i d a n .  

Non-Putlcfpatlnu Chiropractor: A Doctw d Chbpradc (DC) who ir not a Panidpaling Chimprador PPO: Prdened Pmvidcr Drganizetbn. 



PPO U l o w a n ~  The amomt hat any BNa UDsr andlw Blue Shield Phn has agreed Lo pay l b  PPO Pmvldsr Iw 
p!m k " M b .  

PPO Fa. Schedul.: The schad~ls of mdlcal and surgical praadurss and ma fan amwnts for moss pmcsdumr 
under ma Pnfanad Madlul Pmvida pmgram and DUlar Pnkned RovUsr pmgramr as appllcabla. 

Pmhnad Car.: A pmgram whereby providers have agmamanb with Blua C r s r  Bba Shlsld of Mbama to 
fllmlsh wrtah madlcally nscsrrary rsrvlcsr and ruppkr a d h g  to an agraad upon fee schedule fw m w l d  
and aurglcal pocadums. such servlws pnd supplisr to msmbsn enfikd lo kneflb under h e  Rafened Cam 
pmgnm. 

Pmfmnad Prw1d.r: Any p m d a  of haalm u r a  rawlcar w SUppWr when I l u n t w  and aehg wmh h e  ,cops ot 
ma1 Umnsa a1 ma h a  and plats ya are wealad and m w b  rervlwr (such a t  a Relenw Phy1d.n. Refanad 
W l c a I  Laboratw. Rsfanw OutDalsnt Fadlltv. Rslanw Phn1d.n &rlrlant a Rsfemd Nune Ract iher 
Rovlder) who ha; an agrsement'wlh Blua ~ r b s s  Blus Shlcd of Mbama lo furnish rervlwr a ruppbr lo 
m c m k n  anUW lo bsmfltt vnda me Re land  Cara pmgram. 

Pmgnansy: The mndllkn of and mrnpUuUonr aPhg rmn a m a n  having a fcNlkad m m ,  nnbrya or faNs in 
her body - urualy, but not atwa* - h h e  ufarur. h r h g  han me Uma of mncapUon lo h e  h a  of chUdbtm. 
a m ,  rnlrcarriags w oher lsrminalkn. 

Pnv.nth. or Routin.: Ssrvlws parfmsd p b  to tha mret of signs a symptoms of Uner. W l f i o n  or 
dlsaase w sewlcas which am not dhgnorUc. 

Prfv.1. Duty Nunlng: A s s r r h  of fwr a mua hwrr d h g  whlch mnfinuour sMDed nurshg cam Is hmlshad 
lo you alone. 

PsyshlablsSp.chlly Ho.plta1: An hrUNmn h a t l t  darrMsd as a prydlamc rpsciallyfadty bysuch mlsvartt 
UsdsnUaIhg onp.nlzahr as BCBS aany  Bba Cmrr sndlu Blus Shisld plan (w Ib afMatcr) datcrmhcr. A 
psydisIk specialty horpllal doer m t  lnduds a rubrtanw aburs hd0ty. 

SkllIad Numlnu F~sllIty: Any &dl- partfdpathg r W M  nushg fadtitywhlch provider nm-awta care for 
pafiants nwdhg r W M  nushg ssrvlcar 24 h w n  a day. This hdUty must k stand and equippad to p m r m  
sWOd nunhg u m  and omsr m laM hmlm saMcar. A SWIM nuning fadtydoas notprovlds curtodlal w pan- 
Ima w e .  

Substanca &us.: The unmnbolbblaor axwrrlve aburs of addlctbs rubrlanws, such as (but not Umlfsd Lo) 
almhd, drugs, a d h e r  chernlulr and h a  raruiiant phy r lo l~ca l  andlor p r ~ l o g l u l  dspndsncy mat develops 
wlh mnUnued use. 

Subs1.n~ &u.. F.sllIty: Any htututim ha1 Is dasriTiw as a subtlanca aburaladllty by ruch ralwml 
u . ( ~ n ~ l h g  orgadzatimt er BCBS a any Blua Cmrr w d a  Blua Shlsld plan (or 11s aWh1.s) dslsrmins and 
ha1 wlely pmvider rerldsndal andla  oulp.Usnt rubrtanw abuse rah.blbUon sarviur 

Retkad Employ": See axplanalm 0 he'EliglblUtyand Enrdhant S a w .  

S.mlPrlYaa Room Acsommod.tlon.: A hospltal mom m t a h h g  2.3 or4 M r .  

Sp.sl.1 Cam Unlt: A r p d *  equ1pp.d unlL re1 asba as a d l t lhn  palanl u r n  ares. sUfls6 and squppw lo 
usat rarlouriy I# pawnu rsqudng axmordhuy cam on a mnwnua1.d and mnthumr barb Soma sxmp&s are 
in lanrb u r s .  coronary cam. a bum o r e  udls. 

Slat. Emplop..' lnsuranu B o d  The Slate agency chargad wlh h e  admhlrUaUon of h a  LGHIP R o g r m  
TNs agency b atso referred Lo as SEIB. 

Subsdbmr: The hdMdusl whose appllcaUon fw  weraga Is mads and auapted. 

1014 LOCU UMRNYENTbEM*W IWURINCE P U N  

Local Government Health lnsurance Pmgram 
Benefit Plan Administered By: 

SIalc Emplosm' Insumn- Board 

post om- BOX W)(W 

Ifonlprncry. Alabnmn J61304W 

Phone: SS406SBSl6 

TolCFrec: 1866dJ691J7 

Web sltc *nmrlr lb.ors 

Claims Administralor 
& Utilization Managemenl 

BlueCmuand BlucShlcld of Alabama 

450 RIwrchasc Porkwily &st 

Blrmlngham Alabama 52% 

T.l.sonsulhtlon: ConrubUon, WaNaIon. and management aervlcas pmuldad lo palent. via tsiscommunlcaUo~r 
syrlerns wlhout penma1 hca-1-fa- htemcUDn bstwwn h e  pa&nt and hsallhure prmklar. Tsbmnsunrlknr 
lnduds mnrullatlms by a-ma0 or omer aisclmnlc means. 

Total DIs.blllly: The mmpkt. Inabuity of an actbe smployea Lo prform m y  m d  every duty psdahhg lo hir 
o v u p a M  a employment, or h a  compts inabluty of a m h d  amployea or a dcpndcnt lo perf- h e  n m a l  
aC1MIes of a pamm of like aga and sax. 

U w e n t Z ~ .  Canter: A prtmuy care p d d a  hat provide pmfesrhr l  scMws by a Uwnrsd provider h a dlnlc 
ratUng. not mquhg an appohlmcnL and oflcllng rsrvlwr oualda bad1Uon.l omcs hwn.  

Utllbrtlon Rav1.r Mmlnlsbatn: The company chosen by ma Slab Employees' lnrunnw Board Lo ahinlafar 
yarr UIUzalkn R d e w  R q n m  ruch as Pmadminh CenMuUon and IndMdual Cara Management. The 
UIUzaUon Ravisw Mmhlsbrta Is BCBS. 

We, U., Our: BCBS, h a  SEIB a h a  LGHIP as r h w  by ma mntad. 

YOU. Your: Tha mnhacl holder amcmbar as show by h e  contsn 

Customer Senice: IBW321.4Mt 

Rapld Response: tlUWL2411jt2S 

Fraud l lot  b e :  tMIOB24.4S91 

BabyYoursclPlfdemlbPmpm: tMIO.5511294 

Caac.Uana~mcnf: tMIO.5510294 

JfedlcaVSur&al h r U f l c a t l o n :  tdmj512294 

1Ycb sltc: m.bcbul.com 



'Sv~uoq 1d ~umua~n lw d lsql or ruquuusp ocsln 
WU. IWJ~ emflwel 01 ws aql earn1 .nula1 piruyap elwap 01 wuq pealm~dm PRH ocn IOU 
oP 4plaud om 'qq~w~1 am lam a111 ~DW 4 mpm UI .sBu~umew mlmlwd m paz~ppads sheq 1-41 
r-~qd PU~ SPM seusuap! YJ!IIM:FYONUI~O(I. pew uoplsr e PUB uc d ~*l(ocq rlqllo puo -41 NN 

suonluuoa 

1se3 Awed aseq=an!u asp 
eweqenlo Pla!qs anla ssm3 anla 

------ --. pue ow!) Aue Ie ueld ay pua lolpue suo!)!puoa pue suuq aq1 a6ueq3 o) 1q6u a41 saNasa1 
pue ueld eq) JO suon!pum pue suuq ay lwbalu! 01 huoune pue UOII~J~~ID ain~osae eneu 
lleqs 813s au .ma!Aal~oj alqel!ene we pue a3y)o gi3Seyle elu i~o )day ii spw)uoj 
Ile p sa!do3 .suope6!lqo ho)n)qs q! &no hn 01 hesseaau s! swaap N leq) yw pw)uoa 
Xew 813s ay ley slolws!u!wpe bed p~!q) lay0 lo eweqen p ple!qS anlg ssm3 anlg 
pue (813s) pleoa wuwnsul saaAoldw3 qqs au1 uawaa smenum lo iaenum au LO 
suollellwll pue suotllpum .suual aqlol Ga~qniwe qpuaq qalywq asaql UI paa~a 
we SUOQ~IUII pue suoqlpum 'suual Ile IOU 'JanamoH qyauaq lquap lnoA lo suollellwll 
pue suoplpuoa 'suue) au Bu!u~uualep uaqm uoluunlum u pasn aq lsnw qanm uoa 

DL- ----- wa=n=a-m- 



In-Network B e n d t s  
One way In whkh the LGHlP bier to manage dental cars m r b  and W e  enhanced dsnW benefits is 
mrargh negobatsd drmunls wnh n n s w &  dsnt~su tn-netwon dentst* u s  asntstr that wnuau wm 
Blus Cmu and Bbs Sneld of Alabama (dk* or mamcny) for bmlrhng dental a t e  -Ices at a 
maw& I*IW Relared Dsnthts an ~n.nstwon dentists m me stale d w m a  Nabonpl Dental Netwon 
(Dentemu) are ln-nstwd dsnUrts 1-tsd wtslds the stale d AaLw.ma To 1-ta ln -nswd dsnUsts fw 
the LGHIP, go to wm bcbral m m  Auumlng the services us cowed. you MI n m a l l y  only be 
msponlM for outd-pocket mrts such asdeducabkr and mlnruranw when urlnp In-nstwrk dentists 

If you receive mvamd services or suppiles fmm an wt.d-nslwo* denthL In most cases, yw will havs m 
pay sgnEcanly more than what yw m l d  pay m in-new* dentist beuuse m a s  w t o f - n s h k  dental 
cars W e n  can bill you amwnts In sxceu oftheallowable amounts unda As LGHIP 

Relationship between B lue  Cross andlor B lue  Shleld Plans and We Blue Cross 
and B lue  Shleld Assoclat lon 
Blue Cmra and Blus Shield d Alabama Ir an lndspandsnl -ation operating under n license fmm the 
Blue Crou and Bbe Shkld Asrocintbn. an assodation of Indeandent Bbs Cmu and Blue ShlM olanr. 
The Blus C m u  and slue Shlcld Assochtbn prmhr us to uie the Blus Cmrs and Bbs Shlcld &dca 
m u t . h U l s r t . t s d ~ . s l U . ~ r ~ ~ u ; d ~ h u S h ~ d d ~ h ~ t ~ u a n s g e n t d ( h .  
Blue Cmu and Blus Shkld m a t i o n .  No representstion Is mads that any qanizauon other than Blus 
Cmu and Blus Shield of Alabama and your employar will ba rsrponriMs for honorlnp this mntrau. The 
WIDXB ofthis PMneDh I. for lscral d d h t b n :  It dces not add edd'ibnal oblbaUonr on the Dart of Blus 
& s a n d  Blus~hl& bf~labamsnal created under the dglnal apreemenL 

' 

Claims and A p p a l s  
When you mwive se-s from In-nwwk dsdrta, your dentist wll generaoy fls da lm for you. In 
other cases. you may be rsqulmd to pay the pmvidsr and then fk n daim tviU~ us for reimbursement 
under the terms d the LGHIP. If M deny a dalm In whda or I W yw may fie an appaal with us. We 
will gbe you P b P  and fair redew. 

Termlnatlon o f  Coverage 
N m r r g s  terminates. no bensfiir mu be pmvided tharen(lsr, awn If fw a mndition that bepan M w s  
the LGHlP or ywr mwngs termination. In soma car- yw win havs the oppormnlty lo buy COBRA 
cowage a h  yarr grwp wveraps tamlnater. 

BENEFIT CONDITIONS 

To quplUy as plan tenslib, dental serviwr and supplier murt mwtths following: 

. They murt be furnhhed aner your mverags barnmar clledve. 

BCBS murt determine bsfwa, during. or &or services and rupplics are bmlrhed that they are dentally 
new-. 

Preferred Dsntirt benefits murt be bmlrhed whb yar us mvered by the LGHIP and the pmvider must 
bea Referred Dsntlrtwhsn the serviwr are furnishedlo yw. 

Sepata and apM horn the nquomrnsnt m the prwiour parsgraph. s e w s  and supples must be 
brnshw by a -d.r (whemer Rslened R w s r  or not) who u r-naw by Blus Cmu as an 
. D D ~ Y . ~  Dmnda lor the Ivw d s e w  or wodv balna brnhhed C d  Blue C m u  C w m m ~  S m A o s  d 
w haw any question whither w r  pmvldcr i. ;amnked by Blus Cmrr u an a~-ed &or for 
ihs services & rvpp l i i  you planin rswkinp. 

. Services and suppler murt be bmhhed when the LGHIP and your -rags us both In snsct and blly 
pas fw. No bencfils will be pmvlded fu rervlccs yw rewive after the LGHlP or your mvarags ends. 
wen fi they us fu a mndnion that bepan befm the LGHIP or your merage ends. 

SUMMARY OF BENEFITS 

lhb 1. not mnmcr h m U h  .n .ubMt to l h m  oms, t l m ~ n s  n d  mndltbns al lh. COUP sontr.sL 

S 

PREFERRED DENTAL BENEFITS 

COST SHARING 

BENEFITS 
Deductible 

- ... ... b 

Dlagnoatlc 6 
Pmventlve 
Servlus 

- . - -  
Baslc 6 Major 
Servlcos (Fllllngs. 
O n l  Surgery, 
Perlodontlcs. 
Endodontlcs. 

C.1.nd.rYm.r hductlbl. 

Calsnd.rYsar Out-ofPosk.1 111,250 per msmbmr 
M ~ l r n u m  for In-Nstwork 112,500 appmpab per funlly 
Bonmllt. for chlldmn up to .ps 

(Thla la a cmblned maximum .ppllublm Iwntwork cost-shsrinp 

Caicndar Year Mulmum St.500 
Banmnt.for Adulb (ap.. 19 
and over 

(dm. not apply to orthodontls ~sw1c.s) 

Calendar Year O u t o f P o c k e t  Maxlmum for 
Chl ldren Ua to Arne 19 

PREFERREO 
$25 per member each calendar year; 
maximum of three deductibles per 
family. 

. . -- -- -. 

Covemd at 100% of the Preferred 
Dental Fee Scheduk with no 
deductible 

L- - ,  

In-Networlc Dental S e ~ l c e s  for 

NONPREFERRED 
$25 per member each calendar year: 
maximum of three deductibles per 
famlly. Member responsible for any 
dtfferenm between billed charge and 
fee schedule re mbursement. 

- .-- 

Covered at 100% of h e  Pmferred 
Dental Fee Schedule with no 
deductible Member responsible for any 
d~fferanm between billed charge and 
fee schedule rurnburremm. 

Orthodontlc 
Services 

- .. - - - - - 

. . . . . -. . . . - . . . . - . - 
The d n a u  year wt-ol-pocket -mum lor n -new*  aentai w m a  fu cn~ldrsn up to nps 19 u 
spsofied In the table above. Cost-rh~np amounts tor IrrnMrmrZ semces lnarred unacr the nedm and 
dental plan am wmblned lor children u ~ t o . ~  19 (Fieas r e f e  to the LGH~Paowment la a dcMDllon d 
sppl~cabls mrtuharlng amwnts for heakh &cn ) Only m-netwon cost-sharing amounts (calsrdL p a r  
deduct~~e and mlnruranw) fu cmed services fu ch~ldren up to age 19 appiy m the calendar year w t d -  
pcdcst maximum 

Cowmd at 50% of the Preferred 
Dental Fee Schedu e subject to a $25 
annual deducbble 

Cowred at 50% of the Preferred 
Dental Fee Schedu e subjecl to a $25 
annual deductible No do1 ar I mit for 
medically necessary services for 
msmbsrs under age 19 All other 
serv~ws limited to a separate lifetime 
maxlmum of $1.000 per penon for 
Dependent Ch ldren under a g s l 9  
a. 

- -- -- 

Onw the catendm ysar wtd-pocket mxlmum hat bsen reached, chYdmn up to age t9 win no bnga ba 
rvbyu lo l n - n s M  mrt-sharing fu n(laaed ln-netwon -red hsakh and dental serviws for the 
remainder of the calendar year W will pay 100% of As a h a t &  amwnt fw me remlnda of As cdsndar 
Ye-). 

Covered at 50% of the Preferred Dental 
Fee Schedule subject toa  $25 annual 
deductib'e Member responsible for any 
differen- between billed charge and 
fee schedule reimbursement. 

Covered at 50% of the Preferred Dental 
Fee Schedule subject to a $25 annual 
deduct b e No dollar limit for medieally 
necessary semces for members under 
age 19 All other services limited to a 
separate liietlma maximum of $1,000 
per person for Dependent Children 
under age 19 a. Member 
responsible for difference in billed 
charges and allowed fee schedule. -- 

Calendar Year Maxlmum Benefits 

Annual Benofit 
M u l m u m  

Chqes  appled loward annual andlor ~fieDme mumums nwmd by you or your mvsmd dspndcnb ape 
19 ma over -1s covsrw under another Bbs Cmu dental m n m a  l u u M  thmvph your same cmploysr or 
prwp w11 be applad l o w M  me annual andlor ldebms mulrnumr unaa ms mntrau 

No maximum for members under age 19 
$1.500 per member age 19 and over for a I mwred servims. 

Other Cos t  Sharing Pmvlslons 
The LGHIP may Impose other types of mrt  rhdng rsqubemsnw such as the foMr 
Colnsunnc.: Colnwranw Is thsamwntthat you must pay as a percant d lhs  dDwaMs amount 

Annual O u t d -  I For members under age 19, deductibles and winsuranw for in-network 

Amount In exuaa d tho alla.bh mount: *r a gcncrpl ~ 1 s .  the allowsbta nmwnt may Dnsn be 
l e u  than the dsntirt's amd charges. When you mwivs b e n s h  from an wtd.nstwon dsnUsL you may 
be mrpontibisfor paying the denlbrs chargu in e m u  ofthe allwabls smwnt. 

Pocket M u l m u m  (preferred) dental services wil apply to the annual health mnelwork out-sf- 
pocket rnaumum 



DENTAL BENEFITS 

The LGHIP's dental n e m k  is Prcfmed DentirL We pay benefN toward the icrrsr d the allaabie 
amwnt m the denUsh achlal charge for r e h r  whether yw rewive s e h s  fmm an in-netwon w wt- 
Oenshwn dentirL There am mrw differences: 

AIl in-newon dentisb a g m  w r  payment is payment in full except fm ywr dedudiMs and 
minrumncc. If you are mwnd vnder another grwp dental p!m. an in-mhwk dentilt may bill mat 
plM for any diffcnncc belwwn the aovnble amwnt and hh  w w i  charge f a  a r e h .  

Out-oFnehwk denUsQ may charge you the dinerencc belwwn me dovnble amount and their b i kd  
chaw.. 

in-netwon dentists may not m h c l  their f w  fm plan benefnr fmm you e m p t  f a  dedudlbler and 
minrunnw. They must bffl us ~ t a x w p t l o r  swim whkh are not plan bendb. such as implanlr. 

Dental exam, up b Mw per ulsndar year. 

Dental Xmy exams: 

o Full moum X-rays, one rst during any 36 rmnthr in a row: 

o BULawing Xqays, up lo twhs per calendar yew and 

o Other dental X a p ,  usad to dlqnose a s&c mndiilon. 

Tmm sea!antr on 1st permanent moian, hem n u m k n  3. 14. 19 and 30. Umitsd b two 
applluuon per Lmm per benefit perid. Bendb am limned lo a m i m u m  payment d $20 per 
tmlh and iimRcd b children underage 19. 

FhlOMe Ueamsntfmchudren through age 18, twicc per calsnda par. 

Routine dsanings, twics per a n d a r  year. 

Spa- mrinhhcn (not made of psc iwr  metals) thrt replrcc pemahlrely b r t  twth for chlldren 
through age 18. 

Flhgs mods d r h r  amalgam and moth m(or mptarWs (Imm m b r  nuterialr induda mrnpslta 
Biings on the fmnt uppa m d  lDwsr tsslh numben 5-12 and 21-28: payment .Oowancc fw  mmpslla 
Biings used on postabr twth is rsducsd to me dovancc given on amalgam fillings). 

S i m p  twm sxiractbns. 

D M  pulp upping. remwal of pulp. and mot una l  beatment 

Repairs to remwsb(s dentures. 

E-ncy meatmat for pain. 

Exhdons and limitatbns on MhodonUc benew 

. The benef6b tar Mhodontk S e h S  rhal  be pald only lm rmnms mat you ham M h W M L C  
wmage There am no benefns la athodonuc -er to you bdms your m g e  by thlr m n m u  
s m effect fl ~w r t M H  Mhodonr r e ~ c s r  b s l m  thlr -am h a n  and mmdsh mem -Us 
mwnd,  well .-te me bendus fm the re* you arm* ~ k h ~ e - m a e d .  

' 

Any chnrge fmthe repwment mdlm repair d any applianw furnished under Lstrsabnsnt plan 
shao n n  be pld. 

--- -----I-- . - . - -mEFn- 

Su@men!A Srvlces I 50% 1 
Oral surgery. La.. toom sxtractbnr and impacted twth and to trsat mwth abswsses of me inuwral 
and exbwnl son tluue. 

G e n d  ancslharhvhm givsn for mi w dental surgery. This mcanr drugs 1n)act.d w inhakt to 
relu you w k u s n  the pin,  w make you unmnschs. but not analgesics, drugs given by i d  
infilhatbn. w nibour oxide. 

Treatment of the m a  tlp d the tooth induding iis remwal. 

Ful m partial denhlrer. 

F M  m removable braper 

inlays, onlays. venwrs, w m o m s  to restma diseawd or ambienlany bmken twth, If less elpsnrivs 
Riings w l  not rerme me twm. 

Umib on pmrthaUc services: 

PMW denNms - If a mmwable pertial denNre can rerbre ma upper w lovn dental arch 
sallsfacwdy. m wui pay asmwgh n waa supplied wen If you chose a mora expensive means. 

Prscirh altachmsntr - There am no benenQ for pedrbn altachmenm. 

DsnNrer - We pay only toward sLondmd denNres. . Repccment d eiining denNrea. rued Lxidgwwk, vennn,  w aowns- We pay t o d  replacing 
an exisung &nNre, a e d  Lxid-. vcnaer, w m only 1 the dd one can't be rued. If one can 
be fixed. m w01 pay toward Rxlng il (this indu.de. repain fa Bed  dsnNms). We only pay b replam 
there Uem every five yearn. 

There are no benefltr to replaw bst m slden ihmr. 

Periodontk exam -each 12 months. 

Remwal ddhearad gum t h u e  and mmnstructing @m.  

Remwal ddheased bone. 

Rsmnstructbn d gums and mmus msmbraner by wrgmy 

Removlng plrqM and caiculur b o b  me gum ihe fw  periodontal direus 

O~lhodontic bencfib are pxv4d.d for me inHW and rub.aquent mamsnt and insMalion d Mhodonb 
equipment. 

7 

DENTAL BENEFIT LIMITATIONS 

Exarmnalbn and diagnosis no man than tvhe during any calendar yau. 

Full mwlh X-rays wil be p r d e d  onceeach 36 rmnlhr: bilwhgs no morethan Mw during any 
calendar yen. 
RouUne dsaning wiU be pmided no m m  man Lwlw durhg any ulendar par.  

Fivoride matment Mi be pmvided to Mmben through age 18 no m e  man lwiw during any 
calendar par.  

TwB sealants on 1" pamnent moian. W h  numbcn 3. 14. 19 and 30. limned to two 
appliutbn per twm per bendt p e w .  Bsnsfib are ihmited b a muimum payment d $20 per 
tonh and iimitsd to chndmn under age 19. 

if you change dentiris vhOe bshg mated, m 1 hm m mme dsnurb do one procedure, well pay no 
mme than if one dsnht d a  ail me vmt.  

When mere we m ways to beat you and bom w i d  othavise bs plan benc(iQ, well pay toward me 
less expenrivs om. The dentist may charge you fm any ex-. 

Pmrthstic - Gdd, baked pwwlain restwatsnr, w n w n ,  m s  and Jack- - if a lmm can bs 
restmd with a mslerial such u amlgam, mll pay lwmrd mat powdurn smn Ifa rmre expensivs 
mcanr is used. 

PmnheUc - Payment wUi be made lward diminating aal disease and remdng mluing tam. 



DENTAL BENEFIT EXCLUSIONS 

The fdowing bendils wm not be pmvlded: 

Charger (or impbnta. I Chargcsfuinhstion mnbol, An~~..th.tIc serviws pavformed by and Macd for by a dentist other than the anending danbt u hb 

A ~ p ~ ~ ~ . m  or m s h t i m s  to alter v e d d  dlmslans hom ib palent state u m s t h g  the 
ocdusbn Such pmcsdumr Indude but am not Ymited to equmhauon. prlodontal rplhthg, full mourn 
rehabilllatlon. m r h t l o n  d Imth rmdurc lost ha the grinding d l n t h  u the wculng d m  d the 
teeth acd r a l h t l o n  fmm the mal-qnmant d teeth. This dmr not apphr to mvsmd mhodontis 
services. 

a 
h y  dental beamant orpmcsdum, drugs, drug u-a. equipmsnt. usuppllas thatls inn.UgaUon.1. 
induding scrviwr h t  ma part d a dinlcai trlai. 

Services u exppsnrsr m m a  h vhd. or #n pan under me laws d the Unnw Stabs. m y  sue. 
mn ly .  4. t m  a other Wmmanla l  .pang that r d e  u pay la cue, through ~ S U M W  or any 
other means Thb appser even 11 me law a w l  not m r  an your ap.ns.s 6; ;en~;;w~;~;,extcnt werage IS avaua~e to ma ma*, under any omcr ~ i l n  ems and 

M Denbl S ~ ~ W S  with r e s p d  lo ~ i f ~ r m ~ l l ~ n ~  f~ birth U prfm.dMfU .ppa#7znW 

Dental scrviwr (or which p u  are not chargod. 

Serviws or expanses f a  h b a o d  dabsty of or beamsnt by sh.moth.nputls agents 
SaMws a axpnses f a  which a claim is not pmp* subnmsd. 

Sarvlwr u axpnrar d any Wnd either (a) fw which a sblm rubmined f u  a m b e r  h the fum 
pmrdbsd by Bhls C m u  has not bsan mwNed by Blue Cmrr, or (b) (or whlch a dalm b r e w M  by 
Bhle Cross later than 12 months after the date services ware padormsd. 

Servlwr u axpsntea of any h d  (or sompllutlons mrulthg ha rarvlccs rewived thL am not 
m n m d  banells undar thb m b a d  0 Charger (or oral hyglane and dlalary in fmt lon .  

Sarviwr usxpsnrcr fumamntofIn]urysusbined h the mmmbrlon daedme (sxcaptfo~ 
tmabnsnt dlnjury as a result d a madiul m d i l o n  u er a mrvit of domestic M c n w )  or for 
tmamsnt vhOa mnnned In a m n .  Ian, or other pami inrUtuUon. 

Chaqas ta dantal cam o r m a m n t  by a p n o n  other than the anending dsnlirt unicss the 

a, mament is mndemd under the dima rupalvlrion d ths  anending danlirt. 

Oantli cam whaamant ndspdflcally Identillad as a m r e d  dental expnse. 

Servlws d a dentist rendered to a mcmber vho is mlatmd to the denlirt by Mmd u manlap or who 
ragularly resider in the denUsrs househdd. Dental rcrviwr you rswivc W w e  purdfmRk. dam d sovmg.. orancr your dfadiw dab d 

E termlnatiM. = Dental ssrviws you rcwlvs ha a dentalor medicai dcpamantmaintained by or on behanofan 
mmp1oy.r. a muhlai bendit arroclatlon, a labor union. rmrtca or rhi luperron orpmup. Osnlai scrvlcss u axpsnrar in carer mvsmd in vhds or !n pan by wort.n' sanplu.tion w 

emprqeri IIabUily Ims, rbte or feded. This app(las whathar you fail to 61s a A m  under that law. it w ,s m e r  the hw is e n f o r d  &st u w m e d  by the em,, k appllas whether ma law 
pDvldcr fw d c n l  services as such. Finaily, it applies whether your employer has brsunnw 
mvere+p for benefits undar the law. 

Chergcs to use any fasiilty rvch as a h o s w  in whkh dantal rarviwr arc rendered, whether the 
"I. of such a fadllNms denla* newsran. 

I- Charges for purf.ilumlo keep a rcheduied visit with the danlirt. 

10 

FILING A CLAIM UI durn. lor banefils must be Iubrnfiaa popady by you u your W a r  d mrvlcer wmln 355 days of the 
date you mww the w m r  u supplier C l n u  not submltsd ana rscarvad by BCBS wlth n lhb 35M.y 
parbd w l  na be mnlaered lor payment d benefib 

The fcW+dng eq!ainr the miss undar the LGHiPfuPiing d a n l  daimr with Bhla Cmu. RocelpI and Prosesming CIalms 
U a h r  (or d c n l  b e n c h  are atways pa-semi-. Fillng dCialm. R.quir.d 

A d a h  pmpamd and submined to Bhle C m u  muL be mwived by Biva C m u  befon it can mnsidcr m y  
daim for mmsnt  of bendits (or servlcer or ru~d ic r .  in addiuon. them are -in serviwr m r t  be 

You ~ Y L  .d on your own behd  or thmugh an authorized mpnWnlativa % ~u wish to sxacira vovr righb 
under this seekon d your bookkt An auth&izaa mpetenUINe 11 vlmsone y&. aes gnaw in rd inb  to act on 
your behd BCBS h.1 aenbpsd a form ma1 you must UM d you woh to dslqnate an suthaized 
remsentatwe Y w  u n  slro 00 to the BCBS Inlanet web rite at m bcbvl mm and u k  BCBS m malo you 

appmvcd &BCBS in advanw W u e  they win ba'mognked as bendus. No mmmunicatbns with Bhle 
C m u  by you, p u r  pmvidsr, u e n p m  cite about the axktenw u extent of mvaragc can be reilsd on by 
you or your p&cr u Mi be binding in any way on Blue C m u  when the mmmunlutbns are mada Mae  
Ihetewker w rupplla us pmvided and a d a h  fw them is rubmined and receivsd 

- - - - - - - - .. 
P &py d the tam. If a mi b nM propatty designated as your authodmd mpmrentaUva, BCBS win not be 
aMe to deal with him u her in mnnedbn with the axardaa of your rights under this W o n  d y w r  b m b L  

. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . 
h v i d s n  of serviwr who have rgnsmcnb with Blue C a r  wncrdty pmpvs and rubmil da im d i d y  to 
BCBS. Uaimr (or ravicsr w ruppllar furnished to you by pmvidcn without agrnmanb with BCBS must be 
pepared and svbmined by ahcr you u the p&ar. Wh.1 COn.UIu1.s a PostSe~v Iu  Claim? For you to obtaln benefits ana dental aervlcss have bwn 

rendered w svppllel prwharad (a pal-Wrvlcs daim), BCBS murt mcclv. a pmprly mmplslcd and fded 
daim hom you or your provider Who RoseNes Pannmnt 

Bhlc Cr& agcn&nts wlm soma pmvldcn mquh it to pay benafitl d i m  to them. On all omsr d a h s  it 
may c h w r s  lo pay either you u the pmvldcr. if you or ma provider o m s  BCBS any sum, it may dsdud 
horn ib bandit payment the amount that H b owed. ib pymant lo you or ma pmvidar (or dedudbn hom 
~ a m s n b  m ether) of amounts asd will be mnridcred to satistv ib Dbibatbn lo vou. Bhla C m u  doss rot 

on order lor BCBS m m a l a  submiasan by you or y a r  ponder as port-WMW dam 1 must be rubm ued 
on pmpaly m m m l w  smndardiled dam l u m  or, in me c u e d  dsmonldty fled ddm, murt pmvlde 
BCBS w h  the aab elements mat BCBS s d a r  In m a n w  MDJl aDndem am nrua d BCES s dam 
(Uing rsqutcmantr and will R1s daiml fw yo;. flyour pmvldcr dm. notias &rdaimic-&:G;h~ call 
the BCBS cusmmcr service dapwtment and u k  fm e dalm form. Whan you mwlvs ma form. mmplcte it. 
attach an itamized bill, and rend H to BCBS I 4 5 0  Rlvawhara P&ay E u L  Bhningham. Nabam. 35244. 
2850. U a h r  mua be submltmd m d  m w i v d  bv BCBS within 12 months after ma rervlcs taka daw lobe 

h a k  to honw any &ipnment d your daim to anyone. induding i povx(& 

NDming in me mnbad giver a p r d a  the right lo sue (or ncovcry horn BCBS (or bcnefb py .b la  under 
the mnbacL 

aiiglbla (or bendus. 

if you d1s or bemma inmmpstent or are a minu. Bhls C m u  pays your estate, your guardian or any r d a w  
that in ib judgment is a n t M  m the paymsnL Payment of benew to one d maw popla win satisfy ib 
Dblqatbn to you. 

M BCBS rscaNevar a rubmhaion that d a s  not qudfy as a daim, it MI n o t i  you u your pmvlder d the 
additional infmatbn needed. Onw BCBS mwives that information. it mli pmcsu the submirrion as a 
dah. 

How to FIh Cieims 
Whan you "re your bemfm. a daim must be filed belora pymant can be mada. The LGHiP wUI p y  for 
mv& semicar you m c s b  after the aUscdva data of your mvengs. 

Prousslng d Cialms: Even il BCBS has mwivsd a0 of the infumtion medad to mat a rubmirrion as a 
daim. hom tlma to time it M'ght n n d  addlUon4 ihbmatwn in uder to determine whether the daim b 
payaMe The m M  mmmon & m P  of Ihs b dental mmml  nseded to aebrmne whsmer sema u 
suppllar were a.nWly n k s q  11 aadlU0n.l mlunutbn is n w a a  BCBS Wl as* you to furnosh IL and wm 
suswna furUler -ulna d ~ u r  dam unto the inlormaton s m w M d  You nl h.vs 90 dam m m e  Pr&t.rmlnatlon d bnef lb  for Brldg.rrork. Crowns. Onlap and Inlay. and 0.m.o~ Surgery 

Your d a n l  dan indudas a &ion fm wbdsterminatbn of bendits (or b r i d u m .  m r .  onbvs and 
thiinformation io BCBS.?~ k i a  rewbt of ma Informawn. BCBS may requGt-it-di& horn your 
pmvidcr. BCBS wUI rend you a mpy d ib requast. Howsvar, you MI remain mrpnslbb ta m i n g  that 
BCBS gets me information on time. 

inlays and &seas surgery.  he purpose oi pn-datermination d bendits b to a&um you and the denkt that 
the aenw m.tmanl is mMma d 8 pallent expam to incur cnugca (or one ol the &car luted 
.bove a lor priodmth or pmlthsl~c t e m w r  (exclualng fun1 and p M d  danlura n e m u  d $ 9 0 .  a 
Rmuest ta Re-Osmlnatbn d Bendla  should be flea bvIhe dentist on a dental darn (om, The bsamsnt 

Odinarity. BCBS wsl notify you d ma dscirim within 30 days oftha date on which your daim is filsd. if it b 
new- to ask you f u  additional informekx!. BCBS wUI notify you of iU decirbn within 15 days after It 
rewives the mqucated infwmrlbn. if BCBS dms not rawiva the informal'wn, your daim mli be mnrldered 
denied al the expbulon of the 9Way pried BCBS geva you for furnishing the informal'wn. 

@a" abngwith pn-opanth radiograph. should be lubminbd to BCBS 

induda the findiqr d the w d  examination. mmmmcnded mvna of bcabncnt and other infwmt'bn to 
ldcnuff the tervlcer m be rand&. Vsrification is than made as to the avai!abiiily d these benafib under the 
dead p n  and p u  and the dentist are notified in advanw d m a m n t .  

in same caras, BCBS may ask fm additional t h e  m pmcsu your daim. if you do not wish to give BCBS 
addluonal tima. H MU go ahead and p o c c u  p u r  daim barad on the informtbn it has. Ths may mwit in a 
denial of your daim. 

Pmfcnsd Dantisb will h your dantal d i m s  when dental work is mmplcd. Rsfcmd Dentirts are provided 
daim forms by BCBS to use in (Uing your dalm. 

Courlesy Pm4.mrmln.Uolu 01 Tlwbnent Plan We enmurage. but do not rmume. ya or y a r  pond- 
to wbml  Mabnent plan a BCBS lor a munery padeterminabon of banfib n you =k for a unrusy 
PredetermlnMon d a tmslmant plan. BCBS WI do 1s best lo Dronds wu wm a tom& mrmnte d B a s  

H w e v e ~  1 your dantbt is not a Rdcned Danlllt, p u  may have to Pla the daim p u n c n  by mmplsting s 
dantal d a h  form. Send the mmplalcd (orm to BCBS. Anentbn: Danui Claims Dapartmcnt Be sure to haw 
your dsnlirt mmplala hir p t w n  of the form and sign the dalm. 

dadda that ~t cannot provide you with a munesy pmdaterminion ((or ixampls. wa m b d  det ma 

13 



Inlormation BCBS nwds I0 make an infDrmed dacirbn). BCBS wD let you knar. In either cus, courtesy 
psdalerminalbns us not daims under lha LGHIP. When BCBS pocesser raquesu for murtcsy ps- 
dstcrminaUonr. BCBS b not bound by lha tims Immes and slandardr lhat apply to dalm. 

Niowabi. Amount The amount 01 a asnlst'r charge mat Bba C m u  w l  raognue u mvered expanus 
lor mealMyldanWy ncwuary wrviwr provided by the LGHlP Thm amount u psneraly lumted lo the 
lesser 01 ma danbsrs chupa for cars u Iha lw lor s powaura m the ~n-netvmh dantse In schedule on- 
natmrk asntuts n m l y  accspt ths .dovab(s amount (suqsd m any apgmbb mpaymenb mlnannce 
w dedumt&s lhat am ths rssponriblay d tha pabent) as payrent n bli (or m ~ r e d  raviws Out.01- 
nelWOTk aantue may b l  the member l w  charges m ~ X W U  d thealtowabla a m n L  

Blue Cross 61". Shleid of Nab-: Company cham by lhs SEIB, lhmvgh mmpatltiv. Md, lo prows 
benefit daims filed by members (also rehmd m u BCBS). 

C~olms Adm~nirtnlor Tha Company c n m n  by Iha SElB mrmgh mmps0m bki to pmcsu banefit 
dorm filed by memben The Clalmr Mmnllbamr k BCBS 

Donbi Noussity: S h r  w ruppl i r  that are new- m mat your iunur. injury, w lymptm. To be 
dsnWy nswsury, s e h r  or suppies must bedstermined by BCBS lobe: 

appmplale m a  new- (or me rympmma, a qnmlr or matmsnt of y a r  aenm mnalOon . prwdsa for ma dmgmsk or awed m a  and beatment of your asnw mnaobon. 
#n auwmanw mIh standams of a n d  cars and tearmcnt d yau d d  mwm, 
on a-anw wlh smnduar d g m d  asntsl p a m w  accept- byaa apanusa aenW mmmunnty: 
not m W v  br lhe mnvenbnw andw mndm of you your lam* wr denPIL u anolhsr p d e r  d 
.elice.: . 
is not -invsstgauonai.' 

0mntl.l: One d me foOowing when iiwnred and when adi ig within the rmpa d his iicenw al lhs tims and 
plaw where lhs s e h  is rendered: Docaw d DenW Surgery (0.D S ) w Doctor d Media Dsntiiby 
(D.M.D.). 

Eff~c1Iv. Oat.: The dale on which the raverags of each individual m e m k  begins as iblcd in the SEiB 
r e d , ,  

Family Covmmg.: Covsrqc (or an e m w y w  and one ar mw. dcpandsne. 

invrtigalionai: Any bealment. procsdurs. fadlity, aquipmsnt drugs. drug usage, w supplks lha  either 
BCBS has nm nmpnlzed u havlng sdentifimy established m e d M  v&s, u that does not mwt gsnsmb, 
ampled standards ol did practice.. When possible. BCBS will dsvabp mittcn mbrfrfa (CAM madical 
mtcrla) mnwming ssrvicn w rupplbr that BCBS mnsidcn m be invsstigauonal. BCBS bsuas l haa  
dterla on per-revbmd illenblrs, rscqlnilsd rlandards d media pactice. and tachnofaW ursssmcnb. 
BCBS pub these medical criteria in @Wss that BCBS makw amI!ab.blC to lhe medical mmmunily and our 
members. BCBS dm. thb lo that you and your p M e n  Mi knau in advance. when posslMc. what BCBS 
win pay for. U a service ar supply is considered invesWatbnd acmrd'rng lo one d BCBS's pMished medical 
aitaia polklcs. BCBS Mi not pay far iL if lhc invsatigalbnal nrhrs of a W w  ar supphl b not eddreusd 
by one d BCBS's publbhed medical mleria @ides. BCBS wit1 mnrider it lo ba non-lnvwugationd only d 
thefdloving raqubsmenb am met: 

The tschndogy w a i  hem final appwal hom lhs appropriate wcmment npulalmy bodbs: 

The sdentificavidsnw must psrmitmndurbnr mnwmingths enen d lhs  taanDlopy on hsallh 
outmmes: 

The tschnokgy mvrl impmvc the net heah outcome: . The tschnology must be u beneficid as any established allemather: and. 

. The impmwment must be anainabh ouWds the invertigatbnal rauing. 

it is hponant for you m remember lhat when BCBS makes dstmninatbns abu t  the invsstigatbnd nablrs 
d a rarvlcs ar supply BCBS is maklng lhan sde fa  lhs purpors d delemining whether lo pay for lha 
s e h  w supply. All dscirbnr mnwming wur bsabnsnt must be mads sdshl by wur anending physician 

Losl i  Oonmm.nl Haalth insunnc. Pbn (LGHIP): A SeKinsured benefit pian adminktered by the Stam 
Employees' inrvranw Bovd. 

Out-ol+tmlwork dantim: A dentkt iiwnred m p p d i w  dantkby in any stale who is not an i n - n e w  
dentist. 

Sbl. Empiqr...' Inmunnc. Board (SEIB): The St* qsncy charged wiIh the adminktntbn d lhs dental 
be"& plan for slate cm@uywr andtheb depndsnb. This qency b alro dened toas SEIB. 

Subssribar: The Individual whose applicatbn fw merqs is mads and amptsd. 

We. U.. Our: BCBS, the LGHiPor SEIBar sh- by the mntsxl 

You. Your: The m n h d  h d d a w  member as sh- by lhc mnlext. 

Local Government Denlal Benent Plan 
Administered By: 

State Ernpioyced l n s u n n a  Baud  

Port oma BOX ~ 1 9 0 0  

hlontpmew. Nabama 36150.4900 

Phone: 3149618316 

Toii-mC: 16668369137 

l l r b  site: n n n n l r l b a r c  

Claims AdminisIralor 
Biuc Cmu and BiveShicid orAiabama 

450 Ri r rmhor  Porkway &st 

Birmlnghnrn Aiabama 55298 

Custom=rSenia: IdW32IA39I 

Rapid Response: 18mU8j113 

b u d  I lot  Unc: idW624.4391 

l Y r b  site: nnn.bcb..l.com 

Croup N u m k  3 m  
MKT-232 (Rev 12-1013) 



EXHIBIT B 

Description of any State Law, Investment Policy 
or other Guidelines or Limitations Relating to Investments 

(attached) 



RESOLUTION NO. 09-053 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the 
City's investment policy (as previously adopted by Resolution No. 01-354 dated October 22,2001) is 
hereby amended as follows: 

"CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

I. Policy 

It is the policy of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama ("City") to invest public funds in a 
inanner which maximizes return and provides maximum security in preserving and protecting funds 
while meeting the daily cash flow demands on the Treasury and conforming to all applicable federal, 
state and/or local statutes governing tlle investment of public funds. 

2. Scope 

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City except those (if any) which are 
governed in another manner by specific reference in federal, state and/or local statutes. All assets to 
which this policy applies are accounted for in the City's books and accounting records and include: 

A. General Fund 
B. Special Revenue Funds 
C. Debt Service Funds 
D. Capital Project Funds 
E. Any other existing or newly created fund, unless specifically exempted. 
F. Any Sec. 11 5 trust established for retiree welfare benefits pursuant to GASB 45 

3. Maturities 

All investments of current operating funds shall have a maturity of not greater than two years. All 
investments of capital projects, reserve, trust and agency, and debt service funds shall have a maturity of 
not greater than five years provided that the maturity of such funds is made to coincide as nearly as 
practicable with the expected use of t l ~ e  funds. Lesser, more restrictive, maturities may apply as 
specifically stated elsewhere in this policy. 

4. Prudence 

Tlie standard of prudence to be used by investment staff shall be the "prudent person rule," which 
obligates a fiduciary to ensure tliat: 

. . . Investments shall be made wit11 tlie exercise to that degree of 
judgement and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons 
of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of 
their own affairs, not for speculation but for investment, considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be 
derived. 



5. Delegation of Authority 

Unless investments are held in trust or otl~erwise managed by an investment manager under 
contract with the City, the responsibility for the City's investment program is held by the Finance 
Director who shall establish, monitor, evaluate, and devise procedures for the operation of the investment 
program consistent with this investment policy. The trustee or investment manager under contract wit11 
the City shall be responsible for managing the trust investments in accordance with a trust and/or 
investment management agreement. The Finance Director shall be responsible for all transactions 
undertalcen and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the investment activities of all autl~orized 
officials including subordinate delegates. 

6. Objectives 

The primary objectives (in priority order) of the City's investment activities shall be: 

A. Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the City. Investments of the City 
shall be undertalcen in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation and protection of capital in 
the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification shall be utilized to hedge against 
potential losses to & the portfolio. 

B. Liquidity. The City's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
City to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated. This policy 
mandates that appropriate forecasting of receipts and disbursements be developed andlor 
maintained to facilitate the knowledge of liquidity needs. 

C. Return on Investments. The City's investment portfolio shall be designed with the 
objective of attaining at least a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, 
taking into account the City's investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the 
portfolio. The Finance Committee, from time to time, may adopt benchmarks for use in making 
performance comparisons. The benchmark rate (or rates) should be a widely accepted, published 
rate (or rates) for a portfolio (or multiple portfolios) whose investments and/or investment 
structure (or structures) is reasonably similar to that of the City's portfolio taking into account the 
levels of investment. 

7. Reporting 

The Finance Director is charged with the responsibility of preparing a quarterly investment 
report within -forty (40) days of each quarter end for presentation to the Mayor, City Council, and 
Finance Committee. Within forty (40) days after the end of the fiscal year, the Finance Director is 
be required to present a comprehensive annual report on the investment program for insertion into the - 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City. The annual investment program report 
may include suggested policies andlor recommendations for improving procedures, operations and 
controls to assure the continuation of a prudent, productive investment progrnm for public funds 
managed by and for the Treasury of the City. 



8. Qunlifications of brokers, investment companies, and depositories 

Municipal funds may only be invested with companies registered under tlie Investment Company 
Act of 1940, FDIC (or similar federal insuring agency) member financial institutions, or registered 
brokerldealers. 

9. Investment instruments, terms and conditions, authorized and permitted by this policy are 
as foIlo\vs: 

A. As provided in § 1 1-8 1-19 and 11 1-81-2 1 of the Code of Alabama, the City may invest in 
direct obligations of the Department of Treasury of the United States of America andor 
obligations of certain federal agencies whicli represent the full faith and credit of the United 
States (including obligations issued or held in book entry form): 

1. The maximum time period from date of acquisition to maturity of 
securities may not exceed five (5) years. 

2. Up to one l~undred percent (200%) of tlie portfolio may be invested in direct 
obligations of the U.S. Government or federal agencies thereof in accordance with 
511-81-19 and $11-81-21 ofthe Code ofAlabama. 

B. Certificates of Deposit and other evidences of deposit at state and federally chartered and 
insured banks and savings and loan associations up to amounts whicli are fully insured to the 
I~older by the FDIC or similar federal insuring agency or which are fully collateralized in 
accordance witli standards applicable to secured deposits of tlie State of Alabama. 

10. Safekeeping and Custody 

Securities are to be delivered to and held in an account entitled City of Mountain Brook or in the 
legal name of tlie City's trust, if applicable. Securities may be held in book entry form by the City's 
custodian agent, The custodian agent is to be selected and designated by tlie Finance Director andlor 
Treasurer. Release of tlie securities by the custodian agent may be accomplished only by appropriate 
release executed by the Finance Director or Treasurer. 

11. Internal Controls 

The City Manager shall be responsible for establishing a process of independent review of the 
investment program by an external auditor. This review should include the internal control(s) and an 
assessment of whether the appropriate policies and procedures are being established and complied with. 
Such review may specifically result in recommendations to change operating procedures to improve 
internal control(s). 

12. Performance Standards 

The City of Mountain Brook investment program will be designed to obtain a marlcet average 
rate of return during budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the City's investment rislc 
constraints and cash flow needs. The basis used by tlie Finance Director and Treasurer to determine 
whether market yields are being achieved in the portfolio shall be the average of the tliree-month United 
States Treasury bill rates for the equivalent comparison andlor reporting period(s). This calculated 



benchmark rate is intended to comprise a minimum standard wit11 actual performance typically exceeding 
this threshold. 

13. Periodic Review 

This investment policy may be reviewed periodically in its entirety by the Finance Committee. 
The review process shaII not inhibit desirable modifications to tlie policy at other times during the year. 
Any modifications of& the policy shall be submitted to the City Council for approval. 

14. The following policy will apply to acquisitions of any of tlie above authorized securities: 

A. Securities sllall be purchased through authorized brolcerldealers for the security to be 
ncquired. 

B. All transactions will be executed on a delivery versus payment basis. Due bilk or notes 
are not acceptable as collateral in lieu of the purchased security. 

C. All transactions will be traded in U.S. dolIars. 

D. Reverse repurchase agreements are prohibited. 

E. No securities will be purchased on margin and no short sales of securities will be made." 

ADOPTED: This 27th day of April, 2009. 

v i r g i n i d .  Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 27th day of April, 2009. 

Lawrence T. Oden, ~ a ~ o r  
- 

CERTIFICATION 

I ,  Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on April 27,2009, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 



Page 1 of 1 

Section 11-81-19 

Investment of sinlcing funds generally; reports as to investment or deposit of sinldng funds; contrncts for 
purchase of savings certificates. 

All sinlcing funds provided for the retirement of bonds shall be invested in bonds of such subdivision or in 
bonds of the United States or in bonds of .the State of Alabama or in bonds of any county in the State of 
Alabama or any municipal corporation of tht: State of Alabama, or deposited in a'badc on interest; provided, 
however, that the proceedings authorizing any funding or refunding bonds may prohibit the investment of the 
sinlcing fund for such bonds and require that such sinldng fund shall be used exclusively in the purchase for 
retirement or in the redemption of such k d i n g  or refunding bonds, 

All  sinking funds created by resolutions or ordinance heretofore adopted must be properly set aside each year in 
accordance with the resolution or ordinance providing for the same and a report made thereof and filed with the 
clerk of the municipality or with the probate judge of the county, as the case may be, showing in detail how said 
s&g fund is invested or deposited. 

AU contracts now in effect for purchasing savings certificates under the law as it heretohe existed shall 
continue as legal investments. 

@crs 1927, No. 678, p. 534; Acts 1935, No. 195, p. 575; Code 1944, T. 37,5265.J 



Page 1 of 2 

Section 11-81-21 

Investment of funds obligation in which sinlaing funds may be invested. 

Any municipd funds or county h d s  not presently needed for other purposes may be invested in any 
obligations in which sinking funds are now authorized to be invested, pursuant to Section 11-8 1-19, and in 
addition in any of the following: 

(1) Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book eniry fom on the books  of^ the 
Depnrtment of the Treasury of the United States of America; 

(2) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies, which obligations represent the full faith and credit of 
the United States of herica:  

a Farmers Home Achhiskation. 

b. General S e ~ c e s  Admi.uistt-ation. 

c. U. S. Maritime Administration. 

d. Small Business Admbistmtion. 

e. Government National Mortgage Association ( G W ) .  

f. U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

g. Federal Housing Administration (FHA.). 

(3) U. S. dollar denominated deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with b& or savings associations 
which are qualified public depositories under Chapter l4A of ~ i t l e  41. 

(4) Pre-refunded public obligations, defined as follows: 

Any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or 
local governmental unit of any such state (i) which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity 
or as to which irrevocable notice has been given by the obIigor to call on the date specified in the notice, and (E) 
which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting ody 
of cash or obligations described in subdivision (1) above, which fnnd may be applied only to the payment of 
such principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the 
maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable 
instructions, as appropriate, and (5) which fund is sufficient, as verified by an independent certified public 
accountant, to-pay principal of and interest and redemption, if my, on the bonds or other obligations described 
in this paragraph on the maturity date or dates thereof or on the redemption date or dates specified in the 
irrevocable instructions referred to in subclause (i) of this paragraph, as appropriate, and (iv) which are roted, 
based on the escrow, in the highest rating category of Standard & Poois Corporation and Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc., or any successors thereto. 

(5) Interests, however evidenced, in any common trust fund or other collective investment fUnd maintained by 
any nationd or state chartered b d c ,  trust company or savings association having trust powers, or securities of 
or other interests in my open-end or closed-end management type investment company or investment trust 
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as fiom time to t h e  amended, so long as all of &e 
following requirements are met at the time of purchase and during the term of investment: (i) At least 65% of 
the portfolio of such common trust fund, collective investment fund or investment company or investment trust 



' . ~ection 11-8 1-21 Page 2 of 2 

must consist of investments authorized in subdivisions (I), (Z), (3), or (4) above, and (ii) the remainder of the 
portfolio (if any, but not more than 35%) may consist only of the following invesfments: (x) obligations issued 
or guaranteed by the following agencies: Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA)), Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation @HL,MC), including FNMA, and FHLMC participation c e ~ c a t e s ,  Federal Land 
Banks, Central Bank for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit Banlo, Student Loan Mulceting 
Association, and Federal Home Loan Banks, ly) mortgage related securities (as that term is defined in Section 3 
(a) (41) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78c(a) (41)), or (2) repurchase agreements fully 
collateralized by obligations, securities or investments otherwise authorized under subdivisions S(i)-(ii), so long 
as the common trust fund, collective investment fund, investment campmy or investment trust talces possession 
and delivery of the collateral for any repurchase agreement either directly or through an authorized custodian. 
The fact that any financial institution making such investment on behalf of the municipality or aounty, or any 
m a t e  of such financial institution, is providing services to the investment company or investment trust as an 
investment advisor, sponsor, distributor, custodian, transfir agenf registrar, or otherwise, and is receiving 
reasonable xemuneration for such services, shall not preclude such institution from malting the investment in the 
securities of such investment company or investment trust; provided, however, that with respect ta any account 
for municipal funds or county fimds to which fees are charged for such services, the said £i.mncial iustitution 
shall disclose (by prospectus, account statement or otherwise) to the beneficiary of such account or to any third 
party directing investments the basis (expressed as a percantage of asset vduc or otherwise) upon which the f e q  
is calculated. 

The terms "munioipal fundsf' and "county fundsf' as used in this section shall include all general, special, 
permanent, trust and other funds, regardless of solme or purpose, held or administered by any county, city or 
town, or by any officer or agency thereof, in the State of Alabama. 

I 
hvestments of municipal funds or county funds shall be made by the officer or agency controlling their 
disposition. Such county2 city or town, or official or agency thereof, may at any t ime sell such obligations 
purchased pursuant to this section, and the money received from such sale and the interest and profits on such 
investment shall be credited to the fimd ikom which the investment was made. Any such obligation may be 
deposited for safelceeping with my bank, trust company or savings association organized either under .the laws 
of the State of Alabama or of the United States. 

p& 1943, No. U6,p. 203; Acts 1975, No. 1120, fl; Acls 1989, NO. 89-655,~. 1298, Jl; Actc 1990, NO. 90-981, p. 708; AcLr 1991, 
No. 9148ZJ p. 872# 81; Acts 1993, No. 93-340, p. 523, $1; Act 2000-748,p. 1669, $2). 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-004 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution a Notice of Assignment, in the form as attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the assignment by Ajlouny Investments, LLC of its 
Development Agreement (2014-070) and Parking Agreement (2014-072) as collateral for its 
Iberia Bank loan. 

ADOPTED: This day of January 20 1 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This day of January 20 1 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certifL the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on J a n u a r y ,  201 5, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Ajlouny Investments, LLC Notice of Assignment 



Sirote 81 Permutt, PC 
2311 Highland Avenue South 
Birmingham, AL 35205-2972 

PO Box 55727 
Birmingham, AL 35255-5727 

Joseph T. Ritchey 
Attorney at Law 
jritchey@sirote.com 
Tel: 205-930-5292 
Fax: 205-212-3813 

December 26,2014 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Whit Colvin, Esq. 
Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent, LLC 
1 9 10 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 3 5203 

Re: Ajlouny Investments, LLC / Iberia Bank 

Dear Whit: 

Enclosed please find two execution copies of the Notice of Assignment between Ajlouny 
Investments, LLC and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. This Notice is requested by Iberia 
bank to acknowledge the assignment by Ajlouny Investments, LLC of the Development Agreement 
and the Parking Agreement as collateral for the Iberia loan. 

As we previously discussed, will you ask the City Council to approve the execution of the Notice of 
Assignment? Upon approvaI, if the City will sign both execution copies, please send one of the 
executions copies to me and retain the other for the records of the City of Mountain Brook. 

Thank you for your assistance and cooperation. If you have any questions, please let me know. 

C: William B. Hairston, 111, Esq. 

Birmingham Huntsville Mobile Fort Lauderdale Pensacola 

sirote.com 



NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT 

December 18,2014 
TO: City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

50 Church Street, 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3 52 13 

RE: Tax Revenue Sharing and Incentive Agreement 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

By a Mortgage, Leasehold Mortgage, Assignment of Rents and Leases, and Security Agreement 
(the "Moi-tgage") dated this date and a Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") referenced therein, 
AJLOUNY INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., a1 Alabama limited liability company (the "Owner") has 
collaterally assigned to IBERIABANK, a Louisiana state banking corporation (the 
"Mortgagee"), the Tax Revenue Sharing and Incentive Agreement (the "Development 
Agreement") Owner entered into with the CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA (the 
"City") on December 16, 2014 and the Parking Agreement, dated on December 16, 2014 (the 
"Parking Agreement"). [Capitalized terms used herein not otherwise defined shall be defined in 
accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement.] 

In connection with this collateral assignment of the Development Agreement, Moi-tgagee has 
requested that we obtain the City's acknowledgement as to the following: 

I .  The Development Agreement and the Parking Agreement are in full force and effect; 

2. The City is aware that the Development Agreement and Parking Agreement have been 
collaterally assigned by Owner to Mortgagee; 

3. The City recognizes and acknowledges that Owner has mortgaged the Project to 
Mortgagee in accordance with the terms of the Mortgage and Loan Agreement; 

4. No default has occurred under the Development Agreement or the Parking Agreement; 

5. The City recognizes and acknowledges that Owner has agreed with Mortgagee that no 
changes or modificatioils to the Developn~ent Agreement shall be made which would 
decrease the amount due Owner under the Development Agreement without the expressed 
written consent of Mortgagee; 

6.  Upon delivery to Mortgagee of the $1,200,000 Lump Sum Payment set forth in sectioil 
3.l(a) of the Development Agreement, Mortgagee will cause the Church Street Access 
Parcel and the Parking Lot Parcel to be released froin the lien of the Mortgage. 

7. The City recognizes and acknowledges Owner has agreed with Moi-tgagee that if Owner 
is in default with its obligations to Mortgagee under the Mortgage, and in the event 



Mortgagee sends notice to City that Owner is in default in connection with its obligations 
to Mortgagee under the Mortgage, then upon receipt of such notice City shall be 
peimitted to deliver to Mortgagee, payable to the Owner/Mortgagee, any and all Sales 
Tax Incentive Payments that City would be obligated to remit to Owner under section 
3.1 (b) of the Development Agreement. 

8. The City recognizes and acknowledges that Owner has agreed with Mortgagee that the 
Option granted to the City in the Development Agreement is subject to the Mortgage; and 

9. Copies of all notices the City sends to the Owner under the terms of the Development 
Agreement and the Parking Agreement, will simultaneously be sent to Mortgagee at the 
following address: 

IBERIABANK 
2340 Woodcrest Place 

Birmingham, AL 35209 
ATTN: Joe Medori, Senior Vice President 

Very Truly Yours 

AJLOUNY INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., an flabama limited liability 

ACKNOWLEDGED, AGREED AND ACCEPTED this day of December, 2014. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

WITNESS : 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 



IRESOLUTION NO. 2015-005 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the Fire Department uniform bid submitted by Municipal and Commercial Uniforms and 
Equipment (MAC Uniforms), being the only bid submitted and determined to be in conformance 
with the expressed specifications, is hereby accepted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, 
to issue a [blanket] purchase order to MAC Uniforms and to execute any other documents that 
may be determined to be necessary with respect to said uniform purchases. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of January, 20 15 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of January, 201 5 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on January 12,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Fire Department Uniform Bid 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK'FIRE DEPARTMENT 
102 Tibbett Street, Mountain Brook, Alabama - 352 13 Phone: (205) 802-3838, Fax: (205) 879-5919 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: Sam Gaston, City 
FROkf: Robert Ezekiel, 
DATE: January 6,20 15 

SUBJECT: Uniform Bid 

In accordance with State bid laws and City purchasing policy, specifications were developed and 
a request: for bids for fire department uniforms was posted on December 2, 2014. A formal bicl 
opening was held in the office of the City Manager at  2:00 PM on Janua~y 5, 2015. 

There was one bid submitted and received. Mui~icipal and Commercial Uniforms ancl 
Equipment (MAC) was the bidder at $774.84. 

Note: The bid price of $774.84 is not an amount that will be paid for uniforms. It is simply an 
indicator of the cost of all uniform items overall with a factor of life expectancy built in 
(magnitude factor). The department has an annual uniform allowance of $450 per employee. 
So, the FY2015 operating budget is reflective of the clothing allowance and not the bicl price 
amount. 

Our historical experience with MAC uniforms has been very good. Therefore, we respectfully 
request that this bid be awarded to MAC uniforms and that it be placed on the City Council 
agenda for consideration and hopefully affirmation. 

As always, if anyone has any questions, I will be available to respond. 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 Church Street 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213 
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER) 

BID COVER SHEET 
. , .* .- , , 

Bid Request Posted this Date: Tuesdav. December 02,2014 - .' - 

Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: Monday, Janual-v 5,2015 at 2:00 p.m. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall, City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama, prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at the date and time 
specified above o r  as soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply wit11 Alabama law, including, but not limited to, Ala. Code 
(1975) 5541-16-50 et seq. and 31-13-1 el seq., and provide documentatio~~ of e~irolltnent in the E-Verify program 
pursuant to Ala. Code $31-13-9. 

All bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet should be 
completed and submitted wit11 the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids shoixld be clearly 
marked "SEALED BID" and indicate on the outside of the envelope "UNIFORM BID - FIRE DEPT" and the date 
of bid opening. 

The City resewes the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be provided with 
the request for bids. ' 

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycIe cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible bidder, in 
which case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids. 

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities. 

Sam S. Gaston, City Manager and Purchasing Agent .. 
___I, - 

- 
~/&;5) Phone: d& -. %?q -b 

EMAIL: 

STATE: @r 

BID AMOUNT (AS PER SPECIFICATIONS) $775?w 
Note: MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX 

/ Notary ~ k b l i e  
My. Commission ~ x ~ i r e s : ~ / . ~ / f ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  





1_---_-_ - - - -  
MOUNTAIN BROOK FIRE DEPARTMENT -- 

UNIFORM SPECIFICATIONS, NOVEMBER 2014 

ITEM 

COMPLY 

21. Training Shoe 

UNIT 
PRICE YES NO 

79 75' 
MAGNITUDE EXTENSION 

22. Chucka Boot 0.25 

23. 8" Zipper Boot 0.25 

24. 8" Pull On Boot 

I 

, /  

0.25 19 77 

25. 8" USAR Boot 

26. Socks 

27. Officer Shirt Badge 

28. Firefighter Shirt Badge 

29. Officer Cap Badge 

30. Firefighter Cap Badge 

31. Officer Name Plate 

32. Officer Serving Since 

33. Firefighter Name Plate 

34. Firefighter Sewing Since 

35. Belt 

36. Officer Belt Buckle 

- 

/%?%' 
0.25 

0.25 

3.7g 

37. Firefighter Belt Buckle 

38. A10 Collar Brass 

39. Lt. Collar Brass 

4x0 
,&a 
,53 

d?. c/., 40. Battalion Chief Collar Brass 0.1 
4 

0.1 

0.25 

0.1 

0.1 

d?~ 
6700 

/,cod 

440 

660 

d& 
/ ,uO 

L U G  
Loo  

/, 

-~LC, 

5?%?:' 

/d 0'9 

Id, LC' 

/d a' 
Id, Lz 

/D, 6'0 

& '  

0.1 

0. I 

I/ 

b/ 

k' 

J 

J' 

0.1 

0.1 

0. I 

0.1 

0.1 

0.1 

0.25 

0.1 4 ,.J'd 



TOTAL BID (THIS IS YOUR BID!) 

,. .--- 

MOUNTAIN BROOK FIRE DEPARTMENT --- 
UNIFORM SPECIFICATIONS, NOVEMBER 2014 

BIDS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED ON INDIVIDUAL UNITS - BIDS WILL BE CONSIDERED ON TOTAL 
BID. 

41. Rain Jacket 

42. Rain Pant 

TOTAL = 

No definite quantities for each item can be established at this time. 

(62) Firefighters and Fire Officers will purchase the items listed in appropriate quantities and sizes according to 
need and price. 

&5 . .  
1 . . -  

Bids should include the cost of any alterations or adjustments necessaly. All members of the department will be 
clothed regardless of size and or  gender, no exceptions. 

jA 0.25 

Please indicate. your delively from time of awarding of contract: 3 Lr?$ eq F,FI 

0.25 

s d n  L=~=Q&Q 
No Greater Than 90 D a p  is acceptable, unless special or  ers are inv&ed. Special orders m be completed in 
120 days from the day of order.) 

MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX 

This bid must be notarized, 
. ,- , . - . . . . 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this d y d a y  o&!m ,10 /.f 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-006 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into an agreement with All In Mountain Brook, in the form as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by 
the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This - day of January, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This - day of January, 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on January -, 2015, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 



STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this the - day of January, 2015, by and 
between the City of Mountain Brook (hereinafter referred to as "City") and All In Mountain 
Brook (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"): 

WHEREAS, municipalities in the State of Alabama are authorized to promote the public 
health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment and the general welfare of the 
community; 

WHEREAS, All In Mountain Brook is an organization which has as one of its goals the 
promotion of public health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment and the general 
welfare in the City of Mountain Brook-specifically, the enhancement and protection of the lives 
of Mountain Brook youth; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama desires to enter 
into a contract with the Contractor for the purpose of providing services and resources to 
residents of the City of Mountain Brook which are designed to combat issues and problems that 
place the lives and well-being of Mountain Brook youth at risk; 

WITNESSETH, 

1. That the City, for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements 
hereinafter set out to be kept and performed by the Contractor, does hereby agree to pay the 
Contractor the sum of $10,000.00 (Ten Thousand and No1100 Dollars) (hereinafter referred to as 
the "Contract Amount") for performing the services herein provided for the period beginning 
October 1,2014, through September 30,201 5. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

In consideration of the covenants and agreements made herein by the City, the Contractor 
agrees that the Contractor shall be totally responsible for, and shall have exclusive control over, 
the management and disbursement of the Contract Amount, and that the Contract Amount shall 
be used only for the purposes herein described: 

a. To underwrite All In Mountain Brook programming at the six Mountain Brook 
City schools, thereby targeting families and youth in grades Kindergarten through twelfth 
grade, including but not limited to All In Mountain Brook speakers, activities, services, 
materials, and communications designed to combat issues and problems that place the 
lives and well-being of Mountain Brook youth at risk. 

b. Activities will be planned by appointed Parent Teacher Organization 
representatives in each school, along with administrators and school counselors. 



c. Contractor anticipates the following disbursement of the contract amount: 

(1) $5,000.00 to Mountain Brook High School; 

(2) $3,000.00 to Mountain Brook Junior High School; and 

(3) $2,000.00 ($500.00 apiece) to the four elementary schools-Brookwood 
Forest Elementary School, Cherokee Bend Elementary School, Crestline 
Elementary School, and Mountain Brook Elementary School; 

d. Contractor agrees to provide any and all personnel, supplies, and/or equipment 
necessary for the services herein to be provided. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide to the City at all reasonable times and places an 
accounting of the Contractor's expenditure of the Contract Amount. 

4. The Contractor shall not transfer or assign this contract or any of the rights and 
privileges granted herein without the prior written consent of the City. 

5. The Contractor agrees that upon violation of any of the covenants and agreements 
herein contained, on account of any act or omission of the Contractor, the City may, at its option, 
terminate and cancel this contract and to exercise any remedy, at its option, available to it 
whether in law or equity. 

6. The Contractor agrees it will comply with Title 6 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
assuring that no person under its employ will be excluded from participation in, be denied 
benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination on the grounds of race, sex, color, 
national origin or handicap. 

7. Notwithstanding any of the other provisions contained in this contract, the City 
shall maintain the right to terminate this contract upon proper notice, which shall be in writing 
and shall be provided to the Contractor at least 30 days prior to the intended date of cancellation. 

8. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any notice, consent or 
other communication required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and will be 
deemed received at the time it is personally delivered, on the day it is sent by facsimile 
transmission, on the second day after its deposit with any commercial air courier or express 
service, or, if mailed, three days after the notice is deposited in the United Sates mail addressed 
as follows: 

To City of Mountain Brook: City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
Post Office Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 352 13 



To Contractor: All In Mountain Brook 
Leigh Ann Sisson 
2653 Montevallo Road 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223 

9. Any time period stated in a notice will be computed from the time the notice is 
deemed received. Either party may change its mailing address or the individual to receive notice 
by notifying the other party as provided in this paragraph. 

10. No oral agreement or communication with any officer, agent, employee, or 
consultant of the City either before or after execution of this Agreement will affect or modify any 
of the terms or obligations contained in this Agreement. Any such oral agreement or 
communication will be considered as unofficial information and in no way binding upon City or 
Contractor. Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this the - 
day of January, 20 15. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 

A Municipal Corporation 

BY: 

Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 

WITNESSED: 

BY: 

ALL IN MOUNTAIN BROOK 

BY: 

Its Authorized Agent 

Print name: 

Title: 



STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

1, , a notary public in and for said County in said 
State, hereby certify that , whose name as Authorized 
Agent of All In Mountain Brook, a nonprofit corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument 
and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the 
contents of the instrument, she, as such officer and with full authority executed the same 
voluntarily for and as the act of said corporation. 

Given under my hand this the - day of January, 201 5. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-007 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby approves the conditional service use application submitted by Rodney 
Fulmer for Mountain Brook Crossfit, LLC to allow exercise classes and personal training at 2703 
Culver Road. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of January, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of January, 20 15. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on January 12,2015, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

2703 Culver Road Conditional Use Approval 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

Dana 0 .  Hazen, AICP 
City Planner 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: 205/802-3821 
Fax: 205.879.6913 
hazend@mtnbrook.org 
www.mtnbrook.org 

DATE: January 7,2015 

TO: Mayor 
City Council 
City Manager 

FROM: 

RE: 

Dana Hazen, City Planner 

Conditional Use - Mountain Brook Crossfit 
2703 Culver Road (previous Little Hardware - original left side of space) 

See attached. letter from the applicant regarding the proposed operational characteristics. The hours of 
operation are primarily early morning and late afternoon (closed from noon-4:00 p.m.). There is to be 
only one employee (business owner). Given the fact that Little Hardware employed approximately 12 
people during a peak hour and most likely had a similar or greater customer demand (proposed 5-8 
people at one time), this proposed use represents a decrease in parking demand on the subject site. 

The zoning ordinance requires council approval of service uses as a conditional use, and states that any 
proposed conditional use will be reviewed as to the following: 

Whether the use would disparately impact public parking in the area; 

a Whether vehicular or pedestrian circulation would be impacted by the use; 

Whether the use is compatible with surrounding existing uses; 

a Whether the hours of operation or peak traffic times would impact existing uses. 



Mtn. Brook CrossFit Description Summary for City Council Review Approval 

Hours of operation: Mon-Thurs 6a-12p, 4p-8p 
Fri 6a-12p, 4p-6p 
Sat 9a-11a 
Sun Closed 

My normal busy hours are targeted to be early morning (6a-8a) and evening (5p-8p). 
During these times, I will have approximately 5-8 people a t  any given time. Outside of 
these hours, I am either closed entirely, or accommodating 1-2 people in the late morning. 

I am the only employee at  this time, and will be for a several months. My aim is to hire 
someone by the summer, but even then it will pretty much be to fill my role during the 
day, so still just one person working at  a time. 

I find that parking along Culver on the west side of the building is the most 
accommodating for me and anyone who will be helping me out. It is away of the front row 
for patrons of the post office, or mine and is easier to get in and out of as well. 

I hope this covers any concerns that may arise with my business venture. I appreciate the 
opportunity to come to your community and look forward to helping your residents any 
way I can. 

Sincerely, 
Rodney Fulmer 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-008 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution the Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit 
Authority (MAX) fiscal 201 5 Transit Service Agreement, in the form as attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This day of January 20 1 5. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This day of January 20 15. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on J a n u a r y ,  2015, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

2015 MAX Transit Service Agreement 



Executive Director Board Chairperson 
Ann D. August Johnnye P. Lassiter 

BIRMINGHAM-JEFFERSON COUNlY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
2 1 2 1 Reverend Abraham Woods Jr. Blvd. + Suite 500 + Post Office Box 102 1 2 

Birmingham, Alabama 35202-02 1 2 
Phone (205) 52 1-01 6 1 + Fax (205) 252-7633 + www.bjaa.org 

September 22,2014 

The Honorable Lawrence Terry Oden, Mayor 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 35209 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

Re: Proposed MAX FY2015 Annual Capital and Operating Budget 

In accordance with Act No 87-449 and Act No 71-993 of the Alabama Legislature, the Birmingham-Jefferson 
County Transit Authority (AKA- MAX) is submitting its Proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budgets 
request for funding. We apologize in advance for the late submittal of our Annual Budget request. 
Please note that our budget request does not include any major increases in costs. We are trying to hold things 
down, as low as possible at this time. 

The proposed service hours to be provided for the City of Mountain Brook In FY 2015 are 1627 at a cost of 
$87,337.36 or $53.68 per service hour. The Operating Cost is included in the $87,337.36 request. If the proposed 
anticipated revenues of $87,337.36 are received; it would drastically assist with the Operating Costs of Max. 

In this current year we received an annual payment. We are proposing that the same process continues in FY 
2015. We look forward to meeting with you to discuss your continued support of BJCTA /MAX, the proposed 
service hours, capital projects and costs for fiscal year 2015. As you are aware, demographics and travel patterns 
have changed over the years; and MAX is reviewing its bus routing as well to accommodate the growth and 
economic development along Routes in your city. We ask that you permit Max appropriate staff and I, to revisit 
later in FY 2015 to discuss the possibility of other transit service improvements in your city. 

Enclosed for your information is the following document: Max - FY2013 Annual Audit and Community Report. 
if you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me at (205) 521-0117 Ext. 7117 or Starr Culpepper, 
my executive assistant at the same number. 

Sincerelv. 

LA.+& 
Ms. Ann D. Augus , CCTM 
Executive Director 

Enclosures Sum G a ~ h ,  C A / r / l a n y r  
Cc: Director Joyce Brooks 



TRANSIT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Transit Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 
22nd day of -September 2014, by and between the Birmingham-Jefferson County 
Transit Authority, an Alabama public corporation (the "BJCTA") and THE CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA, a municipality organized under the laws of the 
state of Alabama (the "City"). 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the BJCTA is charged with providing public transportation service 
in Jefferson County, Alabama; 

WHEREAS, Alabama Act 1987-449 provides that any municipality which 
receives service from the BJCTA shall pay for such service based on the total projected 
hours of operation in such municipality, multiplied by the hourly cost of operation of the 
transit system; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to receive transit services from the BJCTA; and 

WHEREAS, the BJCTA desires to provide transit services to the City. 

Agreement 

NOW, THEREFORE, in' consideration of the foregoing recitals and other good 
and valuable consideration provided herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The BJCTA agrees to provide transit services in the City for the fiscal year 
beginning on October 1, 2014 and ending on September 30, 2015 (the "Fiscal Year"). 
Transit services will be provided on such routes and schedules as provided on the 
enclosed schedule ("Transit Servicesyy). 

2. The City agrees to pay the BJCTA $87,337.36 for the Transit Services for 
the Fiscal Year. This sum represents 1627 hours of Transit Services at a rate of $53.68 
per hour. 

3. The BJCTA will invoice the City at the beginning of the Fiscal Year. The 
City agrees to use its best efforts to pay the BJCTA's invoice by the October 31, 2014 
which occurs during the Fiscal Year. If payment is not received by the November 30, 
2014 which occurs during the Fiscal Year, the City shall advise the BJCTA in writing of 
the reason for the delay and the expected payment date. The BJCTA's Board of 
Directors may grant a thirty-day extension, and, in that event a second invoice shall be 
sent to the City. In the event that the City does not pay one or both invoices, the 
BJCTA's Board of Directors may direct its staff to commence the process of canceling 
the Transit Services. If the Board should at any time determine to terminate the Transit 
Services because of nonpayment, this Agreement shall be terminated, and a written notice 



of termination shall serve as authorization for the BJCTA to cease providing Transit 
Services within the City as of the date that the Agreement is terminated. 

4. Notice whenever required or permitted under the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given three days after the 
deposit of such notice in the United States Mail, via certified mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed: 

if to BJCTA: Attn: Executive Director 
Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit Authority 
Post Office Box 1021 2 
Birmingham, AL 35202-02 12 

and, if to City:  tin: C ~ ~ Y M Y  w 
City of Mountain Brook Alabama 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 13 

5. This Agreement shall be terminated upon the conclusion of the Fiscal 
Year. 

6.  The BJCTA and the City do not intend that any benefit inure to a third 
party under any provision of this Agreement. 

7. No Party shall be liable or responsible to the other Party, nor be deemed to 
have defaulted under or breached this Agreement, for any failure or delay in fulfilling or 
performing any term of this Agreement, when and to the extent such failure or delay is 
caused by or results from acts beyond the affected Party's reasonable control, including, 
without limitation: (a) acts of God; (b) flood, fire, earthquake, epidemic or explosion; (c) 
war, invasion, hostilities (whether .war is declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot or 
other civil unrest; (d) government order or law; (e) actions, embargoes or blockades in 
effect on or after the Effective Date of this Agreement; ( f )  action by any governmental 
authority such as curfews or imposition of Marshall Law; (g) national or regional 
emergency affecting bus services; (h) strikes or labor stoppages by BJCTAYs employees; 
(i) shortage of adequate power or telecommunication facilities; (a "Force Majeure 
Eventyy). The Party suffering a Force Majeure Event shall give written notice within 
thirty days of the Force Majeure Event to the other Party, stating the period of time the 
occurrence is expected to continue and shall use diligent efforts to end the failure or delay 
and ensure the effects of such Force Majeure Event are minimized. 

8. In the event that the BJCTA should not provide the Transit Services 
throughout the entire Fiscal Year, the City shall pay a prorated amount to the BJCTA for 
the Transit Services provided up to the date such services cease. To the extent that the 
City has prepaid for such Transit Services, the BJCTA shall refund to the City the 
prorated amount paid by the City for Transit Services not provided by the BJCTA, or the 



BJCTA may provide such Transit Services until the prepayments by the City are 
expended. 

9. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and no modifications hereof shall be effective unless 
executed in writing by duly authorized personnel of the Parties hereto. All previous 
communications between the Parties, whether verbal or written, with reference to the 
subject matter hereof are null and void and are hereby superseded by this Agreement. 

10. Either Party's delay in enforcing or exercising or failure to enforce or 
exercise any provision of this Agreement or rights existing hereunder shall not in any 
way be construed as or constitute a waiver of any such provision or right, or prevent that 
Party thereafter from enforcing each and every other provision or right of this Agreement. 
Any express waiver of any obligation by either Party in any one instance shall not limit or 
waiver in any other instance. 

11. All provisions, terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to 
be severable in nature. If, for any reason, the provisions contained herein are held to be 
to any extent invalid or contrary to the Constitution of the State of Alabama or any statute 
or applicable law, then to the extent that such provisions are, or shall be, valid and 
enforceable under applicable law, then this Agreement shall be construed and interpreted 
to provide for maximum enforceability under applicable law. 

JN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to 
be duly executed by persons duly authorized as the date first written above. 

BIRMINGHAM.JEFFERSON 
COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

CITYOF ~%ouFJ%!&I~ 
ALABAMA 

By: .. 
Mayor 



EXHIBIT A 
Routes and Schedules for Transit Services Provided in the City 



BIRMINGHAM - JEFFERSON COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
P. 0. BOX 10212 
(205-521-01 49) 
BIRMINGHAM A 1  35202- 

lnvoice 

Bill To: CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 CHURCH STREET . 
MOUNTAIN BROOK AL 3521 3- 

10/112014 

lnvoice # 
00000001 31 57 

ff 2015 TRANSIT SERVICE OCTOBER 1,2014 - SEPTEMBER 30,2015 Terms: Net 30 Page 1 

Line item # Description Quantity UIM Unlt Price Extended Price 

ROUTE SERVICE 1,627.00 HR $53.68 $87,337.36 
FYI5 TRANSIT SERVICES 
October 1,2014 - September 30,2015 

SubTotal: $87,337.36 
Invoice Total: $87,337.36 

Please remit to the'above address. 



City of Mountain Brook Mail - RE: City Code amendment to Chapter 14- Stormwater Detention Review and Permit Fees 

Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> 

. ..... 

RE: City Code amendment to Chapter 14 - Stormwater Detention Review and 
Permit Fees 
1 message 

Steve Stine ~sstine@bishopcolvin.com~ Mon, Jan 5, 2015 at 2:39 PM 
Reply-To: sstin-bis hopcolvin.com 
To: Steve Boone < boones@mtnbrook.org>, Jerry Weems <weemsj@mtnbrook.org> 
Cc: Sam Gaston <gastons@mtnbrook.org> 

Steve, this morning Jerry and I discussed the ordinance to revise the City's fees in Chapter 14 for 
Stormwater Retention Reviews and Stormwater Retention Permits. We want these fees to be $500 each for 
single family and $1000 for commercial and multifamily structures. Attached is a revised, Jan 5 version of 
the Ordinance. 

In looking at this, I reviewed the Stormwater Detention part of our Code -- Section 113-224 et seq. - to see 
whether the terms "single family residences" and "commercial and multifamily" structures are used in 
Section 113-224. In the Stormwater Detention part of the Code we make references to "projects" and 
"developments", not just to single family or multifamily. 

Also, in Section 113-128 there are references to types of "projects" in zoning districts (i-e. Single Family 
Residential District, Multifamily District, Professional District, etc.) and to various other types of projects (i.e., 
a Single Lot Development, Ground, a Permanent Lake, Parking Lot, Dry Reservoir and Open Channel projects ) 
where a stormwater detention plan review/permit may be needed. To make the terminology in the Fee 
Schedule in Chapter 14 consistent with the way projects are described in Section 113-228, in my revised draft 
I have referred to the two categories of fees as those payable for " Project in Single Family Residential 
District" and "Project in Multifamily District & All Other Projects Requiring Stormwater Detention Permit". 
Jerry and Steve, I think these two categories are more appropriate than "single family" and "multifamily", but 
let me know if you do not agree. 

Of course, feel free to call me if you have any comments or questions. 

Steve Stine 

1910 First Avenue North 

Birmingham, Alabama 35203 

Phone : (205) 251 -2881 

Fax : (205) 254-3987 



Marked version 

ORDINANCE NO. 1926 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE CITY CODE WITH RESPECT TO 
STORMWATER DETENTION PERMIT AND REVIEW FEES 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that Chapter 14, of the 
Code of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama ("City Code") shall be amended as follows: 

Section 1. Section 14-1 of the City Code shall be amended as follows with respect to the fees 
associated with Chapter 1 13 of the City Code: 

Section 2. This ordinance is cumulative in nature and is in addition to any power and authority 
which the City of Mountain Brook may have under any other ordinance or law. 

Section 3. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder 
of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

Fee 
(in dollars) 

1,000.00 
400m 
500.00 - 

1,000.00 

500.00 

1,000.00 

100.00 

Section of Code 

113-55 
1 1 3-229(d) 

1 13-229(d) 

1 13-229(d) 

1 13-229(d) 

113-229(f)(2) 

Section 4. This section shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication as 
provided by law. 

Description 
CHAPTER 113 

ENVIRONMENT AND NATRAL RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT 

Soil erosion and sediment control permit fee 
Stormwater detention review fee - for project in single family 
residential district 
Stormwater detention review fee - for project in multifamily district & 
all other projects requiring Stormwater Detention Permit 
Stormwater detention permit fee - for project in single family 
residential district 
Stormwater detention permit fee - for project in multifamily district & 
all other projects requiring Stormwater Detention Permit 
Fee for appeal of adverse action on stormwater detention application 

ADOPTED: This t h  day of ,2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This -th day of ,2015. 

Mayor 

boone
Text Box
Marked version



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on , 2 0 1 5 ,  as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on -, 2015, at the following public 
places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



Clean version 

ORDINANCE NO. 1926 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE CITY CODE WITH RESPECT TO 
STORMWATER DETENTION PERMIT AND REVIEW FEES 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that Chapter 14, of the 
Code of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama ("City Code") shall be amended as follows: 

Section 1. Section 14-1 of the City Code shall be amended as follows with respect to the fees 
associated with Chapter 1 13 of the City Code: 

Section 2. This ordinance is cumulative in nature and is in addition to any power and authority 
which the City of Mountain Brook may have under any other ordinance or law. 

Section of Code 

113-55 
1 13-229(d) 

1 13-229(d) 

1 13-229(d) 

1 13-229(d) 

113-229(f)(2) 

Section 3. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder 
of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

Section 4. This section shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication as 
provided by law. 

Description 
CHAPTER 113 

ENVIRONMENT AND NATRAL RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT 

Soil erosion and sediment control permit fee 
Stormwater detention review fee - for project in single family 
residential district 
Stormwater detention review fee - for project in multifamily district & 
all other projects requiring Stormwater Detention Permit 
Stormwater detention permit fee - for project in single family 
residential district 
Stormwater detention permit fee - for project in multifamily district & 
all other projects requiring Stormwater Detention Permit 
Fee for appeal of adverse action on stormwater detention application 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of January, 20 1 5. 

Fee 
(in dollars) 

1,000.00 

500.00 
1,000.00 

500.00 
1,000.00 

100.00 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of January, 20 15. 

Mayor 

boone
Text Box
Clean version



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on January 12,2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on J a n u a r y ,  2015, at the following public places, 
which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 


	2015-Jan-12 Agenda
	1.  Patrick Davis Resolution
	2.  12/08/14 minutes
	3.  12/16/14 minutes
	4.  2015 building codes
	5.  Retiree medical trust
	     Resolution
	     Amended trust document
	     Medical benefits
	     Dental benefits
	     Investment policy
	6.  Notice of Assignment (Pig)
	7.  Fire uniform bid
	8.  All In Mountain Brook
	9.  Conditional use
	10. MAX agreement
	11. Storm water plans review and permit fees



